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I am pleased to present to you the annual results for 2012.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2012 was
HK$1,410.1 million (2011: HK$1,986.7 million), a decrease of 29%
compared to the year before. The profit attributable to owners of the
Company was HK$401.4 million (2011: HK$747.0 million (restated)),
representing a 46% decrease from 2011. As a result of the application
of the amendments to HKAS 12, the results of the prior years have been
restated as disclosed in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

The decrease in profit for the year was the result of:

(1) no realised contributions from non-core disposals: in 2011, a non-

core disposal resulted in a gain of HK$118.8 million;

(2) adecrease in contribution from sales of completed properties;

(3) a lower contribution from the cement division; and

(4) a decrease in the share of profit of jointly controlled entities of 41%
because of the lower profit margin from sales of properties.

Earnings per share amounted to HK26.64 cents (2011: HK49.58 cents
(restated)), while the net asset value per share attributable to owners of
the Company was HK$8.93 at the end of 2012 (2011: HK$8.73 (restated)).

DIVIDEND

The board of directors of the Company has recommended a final
dividend of HK4 cents per share for the year ended 31st December, 2012
(2011: HK4 cents per share) payable to the shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”) whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on Friday, 7th June, 2013.

4 KLZHBEHREARAR Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(1) For determining the entitlement to attend

and vote at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company (“2013 AGM")

The 2013 AGM is scheduled to be held on Thursday, 23rd May,
2013. For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
2013 AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
on Wednesday, 22nd May, 2013 and Thursday, 23rd May, 2013,
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be
registered. In order for a Shareholder to be eligible to attend and
vote at 2013 AGM, all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar,
Tricor Secretaries Limited of 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 21st May, 2013.

(2) For determining the entitlement to the proposed

final dividend

The proposed final dividend is subject to the approval by the
Shareholders at the 2013 AGM. For determining the entitlement to
the proposed final dividend for the year ended 31st December, 2012,
the register of members of the Company will be closed on Thursday,
6th June, 2013 and Friday, 7th June, 2013, during which period no
transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order for a
Shareholder to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s share registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited of
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 5th June, 2013.
Subject to approval by the Shareholders at the 2013 AGM, dividend
warrants are expected to be despatched to the Shareholders by post
on or around Friday, 28th June, 2013.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is engaged principally in the development of high-end
apartments, villas, office buildings and commercial properties, property
investment and property management, as well as the manufacture, sales
and trading of cement and clinker in China.

An outline of our achievements in 2012 is described below:

M

3)

)

We have introduced a strategic investor into our Tianjin Tian An
Intelligent Port project. We expect the investor to add value to the
commercial aspects of the project.

Total attributable sales (including sales of jointly controlled entities
and pre-sales of properties under construction) of the Group
amounted to 177,300 m2 in 2012 (2011: 98,400 m2), representing
an increase of 80%. A total attributable gross floor area (“GFA") of
approximately 343,300 m2 (2011: 230,600 m2) was completed, an
increase of 49%.

By the end of 2012, a total attributable GFA of approximately
688,800 m2 (2011: 737,400 m2?) was under construction,
representing a 7% decrease from last year, including Shanghai Tian
An Villa (Phase 2 Part 1), Shanghai Tian An Place (Phase 1 Part 2),
Wuxi Manhattan (Phase 1 Part 2), Wuxi Tian An Intelligent Park (Phase
1 Part 1), Nantong Tian An Garden (Phase 5 Part 2), Changzhou
Tian An Villas (Phase 2 Part 2), Huizhou Danshui Tian An Sun Life
City (Phase 1 Part 1), Changchun Tian An City One (Phase 4 Part 1),
Nanjing Tian An Cyber Park (Phases 1 and 2), Nantong Tian An Cyber
Park (Phase 1 Part 1), Jiangyin Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 1), Foshan
Tian An Nanhai Cyber Park (Phase 5), Dongguan Tian An Cyber Park
(Phase 2) and Tianjin Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 1).

Rental income increased by 6% as compared with 2011.

Cyberpark: Our southern cyberparks have been progressing well. The
projects in Shenzhen, Panyu, Longgang, Foshan and Dongguan, all
performed in line with our expectations.

As far as our eastern and northern cyberparks are concerned,
Changzhou Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 1 Parts 3 and 4) and
Chongging Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 1) have completed their
construction works for their respective phases and we have
commenced sales and letting for these projects. Nanjing Tian An
Cyber Park (Phases 1 and 2), Wuxi Tian An Intelligent Park (Phase
1 Part 1), Jiangyin Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 1), Nantong Tian An
Cyber Park (Phase 1 Part 1) and Tianjin Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 1)
have commenced construction and we expect them to be completed
in 2013 or 2014.

KLZHBEHREARAR Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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(5) As foreshadowed in our 2011 annual report, Tian An has commenced
its first urban renewal project in Huawei New City Area in Longgang
District of Shenzhen. Site clearance for phase 1 of the project with
GFA of 550,000 m2 has been completed and we have commenced
foundation works.

(6) The spin-off of the cement division, which includes the production
and trading of cement and related products in Shandong province
and Shanghai, and its separate listing on the main board of the Stock
Exchange under Allied Cement Holdings Limited (stock code: 1312)
was accomplished on 18th January, 2012, raising gross proceeds of
HK$165 million. Allied Cement reported a profit attributable to its
shareholders of HK$26.8 million for 2012, a reduction from HK$76.2
million in 2011, due to a decline in cement selling prices and an
increase in the provision for bad and doubtful debts.

PLANS FOR 2013

Objectives for 2013 are as follows:

(1) We will continue to adjust the quality of our landbank through
acquisitions and disposals and sale of our end products to balance the
demands of short term returns and long term capital appreciation.

(2) We will accelerate construction works for all our development
projects. We are however cognitive of the slow property market in
China at the moment. We will adjust our products and pricing where
necessary to assist the sale of our products in this weak environment.

(3) We will work closely with onshore mainland banks which are
interested in extending credit to customers such as ourselves. We
hope to responsibly gear up our projects rather than over-utilising
equity in order to increase our return on equity.

(4) We will review our management and cost structure so as to improve
efficiency and reduce expenses where possible.

LONG TERM CORPORATE STRATEGIES

(1) The Group will retain certain development properties for investment
where we believe these properties will provide increasing rental
streams and corresponding increases in capital value.

(2) We will concentrate our effort on developing our cyberpark projects

where we believe our products are competitive. We can increase our
cyberpark landbank as the initial capital outlay is reasonable.

4% Annual Report 2012 7
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The central government is still concerned with the perceived high
property prices. Accordingly, it has restricted the number of homes that
can be purchased as well as foreign investment in the property sector and
imposed individual income tax on properties sold by individuals. It has also
increased the speed of its low cost housing programme in all major cities.
However, with the poor global economic outlook, monetary policy has
been slightly loosened with the lowering of the reserve requirement ratio
and loan interest rates in 2012. With government controls still in place,
the sentiment in the short term cannot be good. However, we remain
confident of the longer term prospects of the property market in China.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to thank my fellow Directors and
the staff for their diligence and contributions to the Group in the past
year, to the Shareholders for their understanding and support, and to the
customers for their trust.

Patrick Lee Seng Wei
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 22nd March, 2013
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(3) BELERE

OPERATIONAL REVIEW
1. INCOME SOURCES

Income derived from operations in property development, property
investment and joint venture investments in the PRC constituted the most
significant source of revenue to the Group. An analysis is as follows:

(1) Property development

Revenue derived from property development of the Group (including
subsidiaries but excluding associates and jointly controlled entities)
decreased from HK$763.7 million to HK$177.8 million compared with
2011. Projects offered for sale during the year mainly consisted of
Changzhou Tian An Villa (Phase 2), Nantong Tian An Garden (Phase 5)
and Wuxi The Manhattan (Phase 1).

(2) Property investments

During the year, Shanghai Tian An Centre, Shanghai Racquet Club &
Apartments, Nanjing Tian An International Building, Dalian Tian An
International Tower and Beijing Park Apartments had satisfactory leasing
result and led to rental income of the Group increase from HK$384.7
million to HK$407.6 million, soaring by approximately 6%.

(3) Joint venture investments

2012 2011
FHERx FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
57
(Restated)
wAER Contribution to profit:
FE{LES = N Bl &R Share of loss of associates (61) (76)
FEAE SRS A R Share of profit of jointly controlled
il entities 245,009 418,350
244,948 418,274

10 XZHEREERAT
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2. MAJOR SALES

For the year ended 31st December, 2012, the Group’s sales activities
were concentrated principally on the following projects:

L

HEREEE

Attributable

GFA sold

HE Project A% Use E 75 3Km?
IR 22 BE e B FT Shenzhen Tian An Longgang Cyber Park [EES Commercial

(—HE=H) (Phases 1 to 3) 11,700
REXZTEEH (—H) Dongguan Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 1) [SES Commercial 22,400
BN R LEHBE LR E Guangzhou Tian An Panyu Hi-Tech %~ Commerdcial/

(P98 - AHRZ7<ER) Ecological Park (Phases 4, 5 and 6) *= Residential 34,200
BB 1L K% S e (P ER) Foshan Tian An Nanhai Cyber Park (Phase 4) &% Commercial 24,100
BEEXTEIEH (—H) Chongging Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 1) EE3 Commercial 22,100
N R LB (—HA) Changzhou Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 1) pE¥ /  Commercial/

F= Residential 13,000
FMRRLIER Nantong Tian An Garden F= Residential 3,700
RIBRLZHIE (—HR) Tianjin Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 1) [SES Commercial 6,800
HEmIig g Other projects %~  Commercial/

(E2=2 Residential 39,300
et Total 177,300
3. TS 3. LAND PORTFOLIO

AN E B %A #) 9,826,800 F F oK BIEE M
BT HFEE(AEREGLEEEELY
77,323,100 7K - BIEEERITHREMHE
#9353, 700 F FoRAMEBER P R FERER Y E
#16,969,400F 5 K) « EZE R LF - FII -
B - 2N - R Rl - B Rl &8
BN IR BR8N BE - KB RE
k&S -

The Group currently has a landbank of total GFA of approximately
9,826,800 m2 (total GFA attributable to the Group is approximately
7,323,100 m?, consisting of approximately 353,700 m2 of completed
investment properties and approximately 6,969,400 m2 of properties
under development and for development), located mainly in Shanghai,
Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Huizhou, Dongguan, Foshan, Chongging,
Nantong, Wuxi, Changzhou, Jiangyin, Nanjing, Fuzhou, Changchun,
Dalian, Tianjin and Qingdao.

%  Annual Report 2012 11
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N-E——&F+=-A=+—H AE£BEEXTE Asat31st December, 2012, the Group’s land portfolio principally

THAASINT consisted of the following:
(1) BEPRIFERYF (1) Properties under development and for development
AEEENL
EHEE
GFA
[HES 1x= attributable
Commercial Residential to the Group
#h & Region F7K m2 FI3K m2 F 5K m2
B35l Northern China 1,491,900 957,200 2,449,100
ER Eastern China 1,461,000 1,183,900 2,644,900
=43 Southern China 600,400 1,275,000 1,875,400
et Total 3,553,300 3,416,100 6,969,400
(2) EMTKREYRE (2) Completed investment properties
REBEEN
BHEE
GFA
[EES ZF= attributable
Commercial Residential to the Group
i &= Region E K m2 7K m? F 75K m2
#=ip Northern China 61,400 23,400 84,800
FEH Eastern China 148,100 68,400 216,500
=R Southern China 52,400 - 52,400
HEt Total 261,900 91,800 353,700

12 XZHEREARAT  Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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4. EMPLOYEE AND TRAINING

performance related basis including salary and bonus.

P N\

As at 31st December, 2012, the Group, including its subsidiaries but
excluding associates and jointly controlled entities, employed 2,294 (31st
December, 2011: 2,192) persons. The Group maintains a policy of paying
competitive remuneration packages and employees are also rewarded on

The profile of the Group’s management staff as at 31st December, 2012 is

AT listed below:

RAERAL RBERE
HhE Qualified University S50 E AT 505554 £
Region Professionals Graduates Age 50 or Below Age Over 50
) 34 (87%) 30 (77%) 23 (59%) 16 (41%)
Hong Kong
#ik 30 (68%) 34 (77%) 36 (82%) 8 (18%)
Northern China
ER 88 (72%) 87 (71%) 92 (75%) 30 (25%)
Eastern China
e 24 (67%) 33(92%) 29 (81%) 7 (19%)

Southern China

ERBEETAKE AR BLEE
REREBABITIIRE -
MmSEENEHETHRAEH T2ERE

AEBHMEFF RESMIERARME12 - 137

47 -

BAORFRARET

Quality staff has always been the Group’s indispensable intangible asset.
Training programmes were organised during the year to ensure that both
the market sensitivity of the front line people and the cost consciousness
of the back office staff were well maintained. The emoluments of key

management personnel can be seen by reference to notes 12, 13 and 47

to the consolidated financial statements.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

1. LIQUIDITY AND FINANCING

The Group always maintained its liquidity at a healthy level with a
balanced portfolio of financial resources. As at 31st December, 2012, the
total bank balances and cash reserves of the Group were approximately
HK$1,287.1 million, providing sufficient working capital for the daily
operations of the Group.

As at 31st December, 2012, the total borrowings of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$4,003.4 million (31st December, 2011:
HK$3,377.0 million), including current liabilities of HK$2,061.4 million
(31st December, 2011: HK$1,780.0 million) and non-current liabilities
of HK$1,942.0 million (31st December, 2011: HK$1,597.0 million).
The gearing ratio (net debt over total equity) of the Group was 19%
(31st December, 2011: 8% (restated)). The borrowings were mainly
used to finance the properties for development and properties under
construction. Increase in finance costs is mainly due to the increase in
borrowings and market interest rates.

Approximately 58% of the Group’s outstanding borrowings will mature
within 2 years. Since most of the investments and operation of the Group
are carried out in the PRC, most of the bank borrowings are denominated
in Renminbi which will be repaid in the same currency. Around 78% of
the Group'’s borrowings bear interest at fixed rates while the remainders
are at floating rates.

Due to maintaining flexible and sufficient cashflow for acquiring the
potential quality landbank and accelerating construction works for
our development projects, the Group intends to obtain proper bank
borrowings with reasonable pricing terms. The management continuously
monitors its gearing ratio and raises new external borrowings when
necessary.

2. RISK OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE FLUCTUATION

The Group is required to maintain foreign currency exposure to cater for
its recurring operating activities and present and potential investment
activities, meaning it will be subject to reasonable exchange rate
exposure. However, the Group will closely monitor this risk exposure as
required.

14 RZHBEIREFRAT Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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3. PLEDGE ON ASSETS

As at 31st December, 2012, bank deposits of HK$80.3 million, bills
receivable of HK$4.0 million, other structured deposits of HK$38.5
million, interest in a subsidiary of HK$130.8 million, aggregate carrying
values of property, plant and equipment, development properties and
investment properties of approximately HK$243.4 million, HK$2,262.3
million and HK$6,347.6 million respectively, were pledged for banking
facilities and other loans granted to the Group and mortgage loans
granted to property purchasers and bills payables.

4. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A portion of a property for development that is held by a jointly
controlled entity with carrying value of HK$3.0 million is under idle land
investigation by the local authority. The piece of land owned by the jointly
controlled entity was entitled for several land use right certificates. The
development of more than half of the piece of land was either completed
or under development, except for a portion of the land for the remaining
development of the whole project. Moreover, further development of
another property for development of the Group with carrying value
of HK$766.8 million has been overdue. In order to comply with the
requirements of local authorities, the Group has made application to
restructure the ownership of that property for development and new
subsidiaries were established so as to hold and develop that property. The
Group is currently working diligently to prevent the possible classification
as idle land for the above land development, including negotiating the
feasibility of development plans with local authorities. Based on legal
advices, the Group has assessed the issue and considers that the idle land
confiscation may not materialise.

As at 31st December, 2012, guarantees given to banks in respect of
mortgage loans granted to property purchasers and bank facilities utilised
by an investee classified as available-for-sale investments amounted to
approximately HK$70.0 million. All the guarantees provided by the Group
were requested by banks and under normal commercial terms. Legal
actions were taken against the Group resulting in possible contingent
liabilities of approximately HK$223.2 million. The Group has assessed
the claims and obtained legal advice, and considers that either it is too
early to assess the range of possible liability at this stage or no additional
provision is required to be made.
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PROJECT REVIEW
1. MAJOR PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

Southern China
Shenzhen Tian An Cyber Park (50%)

Located at the heart of Shenzhen and adjacent to Shenzhen Golf Club,
this large-scale project occupies a site area of approximately 273,500 m?
with a total GFA of approximately 787,700 m2. The Cyber Park consists of
industrial/office buildings, cyber technology buildings, deluxe residential
apartments and multi-function clubhouse.

The lettable commercial GFA is 48,810 m2, including remaining areas of
Shenzhen Cyber Times Building, Shenzhen Tian An Innovation Science
and Technology Plaza (Phases 1 and 2) and Shenzhen Futian Tian An
Hi-Tech Venture Park.

Shenzhen Tian An Cyber Park has expanded its successful pattern to other
cities, including Guangzhou Panyu, Foshan Nanhai, Dongguan, Shenzhen
Longgang, Changzhou, Jiangyin, Tianjin, Chongging and Qingdao, so as
to develop into a group company.

For accomplishing the upgrade industries transformation and urban
renewal of Shenzhen, Shenzhen Tian An Cyber Park plans to have area
upgrade and redevelopment. The total GFA of the Park will increase
accordingly.

Shenzhen Tian An Longgang Cyber Park (50%)

Located in the core area of Longgang in Shenzhen, this project has a
site area of approximately 118,850 m2? and total GFA of approximately
356,500 m2. The model of Shenzhen Tian An Cyber Park is used to
develop this project. The construction of Phase 4 will be commenced in
2013.

Shenzhen Tian An Cloud Park (50%)

This project is a “Model project of urban renewal” and located in Huawei
New City Area, Longgang District, Shenzhen. Shenzhen Tian An Cloud
Park will have a site area of approximately 760,000 m2 and plan to have
a total GFA of approximately 2,800,000 m2. The project is planned to
be developed into a combination of new technology and a modern city
complex, including industrial R&D, commercial, residential and apartments
properties. Construction work for Phase 1 with a GFA of approximately
400,000 m? had been commenced and expected to be completed in
2014.

16 KLZHBEHREARAR Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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Dongguan Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 1)
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Dongguan Tian An Cyber Park (39%)

Situated right at the new city central area — Nancheng District of
Dongguan. Upon acquiring the land nearby the project in 2012, it covers
land area of approximately 278,987 m2 with total GFA of approximately
823,100 mz. The project is planned to be developed into an integrated
business park with comprehensive science and technology buildings,
commercial and residential composite. Phase 2 of residential with a GFA
of approximately 84,100 mzis under construction.

Guangzhou Tian An Panyu Hi-Tech Ecological Park (50%)

Located in the central district of Panyu in Guangzhou, this large scale
project has a site area of 513,088 m? and a total GFA of approximately
712,500 m2. Construction of Phase 7 with GFA of approximately
47,500 m2 is expected to be commenced in 2013. The park development
consists of industrial/office buildings, science and technology buildings,
high-class residential buildings and multi-function club house.

Foshan Tian An Nanhai Cyber Park (45%)

Located in Guicheng of Nanhai. Upon acquiring the land nearby the
project in 2012, it covers site area of approximately 165,252 m2 and total
GFA of approximately 472,900 m2. This project is developing with the
similar pattern as Shenzhen Tian An Cyber Park and planned to develop
into a business district with hotel/office buildings. Phase 5 with GFA
of approximately 36,400 m2 is under construction and expected to be
completed in 2013.

Huizhou Danshui Tian An Sun Life City (100%)

Located in Danshui of Huizhou and lying by both sides of Danshui River,
this project has a site area of approximately 393,570 m2 and total GFA
of approximately 783,000 m2. The project is planned to be developed
into a comprehensive commercial/residential composite. Since the
local government had modified the surrounding planning of the land,
the master planning for property development had been modified
accordingly. Phase 1 Part 1 with GFA of approximately 38,800 m2 is under
construction and expected to be completed in 2013.
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Eastern China

Shanghai Tian An Place (99.99%)

This project is situated at the Golden Honggiao District where the oriental
and international residents like to reside and adjacent to the entrance of
the transit station of Subway No. 9. The project will be developed to a
deluxe residential district with a site area of approximately 362,320 m2
and a total GFA of approximately 470,000 m2. Construction of Phase 1
Part 2 of the project will be completed in 2014.

Shanghai Tian An Villa (100%)

This project, located near the Shanghai Sheshan National Travel and
Resort Area, combines the art of western architecture and eastern
architectural style, integrating island living, water facing, garden and
greenery. Construction work for the Phase 1 low density high-class villas
with GFA of approximately 32,200 m2 was completed. Phase 2 Part
1 villas with GFA of approximately 16,300 m? are under construction.
Since the local government is modifying the surrounding planning of the
land, the master planning for property development is being modified
accordingly. The revised land planning is expected to be finished in 2013.

Shanghai Tian An Sunshine Peninsula (100%)

Located in the Putuo District of Shanghai, this project is to be built along
the 1,100 m bank of Suzhou River with a site area of approximately
58,930 m2. This project has been re-planned as a commercial and
entertainment complex. The relocation of the last few families is in final
stage. Design planning has been approved. Construction work of Phase 1
will be commenced in 2013.

Wuxi The Manhattan (100%)
This residential project is situated to the southwest of Wuxi city centre
on a site of 59,480 m2 to be developed into a total GFA of approximately

146,200 m2. Construction of Phase 2 is expected to be commenced in
2013.
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Wuxi Tian An Intelligent Park (100%)

This project is located in Wuxi New District, with a site area of
approximately 106,960 m2 and a total GFA of approximately 213,900 m2,
The project is planned to be developed into integrated business park
with comprehensive science and technology buildings, commercial and
residential composite. The construction of Phase 1 Part 1 with a GFA of
approximately 107,200 m2 is expected to be completed in first half of
2013.

Changzhou Tian An Cyber Park (50%)

This project is located in Changzhou Wujin Hi-Tech Industrial Zone, with a
site area of approximately 203,061 m2 and a total GFA of approximately
578,700 m2. The project is planned to be developed into comprehensive
science and technology buildings, commercial and residential composite.
Phase 1 was completed and new phase will be commenced in 2013.

Changzhou Tian An Villa (100%)

This project is located in the Wu Jin District, the planning and
development focus of the Changzhou government. With a favourable
location, it is one of the largest deluxe villa district in Changzhou. The
project occupies a site of 473,335 m2. Phase 2 Part 2 is expected to be
completed in 2013.

Nanjing Tian An Cyber Park (100%)

This project is located in Nanjing Baixia Hi-Technology Industrial
Development Area with a site area of approximately 92,766 m2 and
a total GFA of approximately 210,100 m2. The project is planned to
be developed into comprehensive science and technology buildings,
commercial and residential composite. Construction work for Phase 1
with approximately 34,800 m2 is expected to be completed in 2013.
Construction work of Phase 2 with approximately 51,800 m? is expected
to be completed in 2014.

Nantong Tian An Garden (100%)

Situated on a site of 203,800 m2 with a total GFA of 239,300 m? at the
heart of the New City Zone of Nantong, this is the first massive ecological
residential project in Nantong. Construction work for Phase 5 Part 2 with
GFA of approximately 27,100 m2 is expected to be completed in 2013.

20 XRZHE®EAFEAF Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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Nantong Tian An Cyber Park (100%)

This project is located in Nantong Gangzha Economic Development
Zone, with a site area of approximately 160,367 m? and a total GFA of
approximately 398,200 m2. The project is planned to be developed into
integrated business park with comprehensive science and technology
buildings and commercial composite. Construction work of Phase 1 Part
1 with GFA of approximately 89,700 m? is expected to be completed in
2013.

Jiangyin Tian An Cyber Park (50%)

This project is located in Jiangyin Economic Development Zone, Jiangsu,
with a site area of approximately 173,200 m2 and a total GFA of
approximately 363,700 m2. The project is planned to be developed into
integrated business park with comprehensive science and technology
buildings, commercial and residential composite. Phase 1 of residential
with a GFA of approximately 64,600 m2 is under construction and
expected to be completed in 2013.

Chongqing Tian An Cyber Park (50%)

Chongging Tian An Cyber Park - Green Village is located in commercial
centre area of Dadukou District, Chongqing, with a site area of
approximately 357,800 m2 and a total GFA of approximately 894,900 m2,
The project is planned to be developed into integrated business park
with comprehensive science and technology buildings, commercial and
residential composite. Phase 1 with a GFA of approximately 145,400 m?
was completed. Phase 2 will be commenced in 2013.

Northern China
Dalian Tian An Seaview Garden (60%)

This project for high-class residential development is located in the Dalian
Economic & Technology Development Zone. Phases 1 and 2 with a total
GFA of approximately 84,100 m2 have been completed. Master plan for
Phase 3 is waiting for approval.

Dalian Tian An Jinma Centre (100%)

This project is located at the main road, Jin Ma Road, of the Dalian
Economic & Technology Development Zone and will be developed
into commercial/residential buildings with a total GFA of 134,400 m2.
Master plan is waiting for approval. Construction work is expected to be
commenced in 2013.
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Changchun Tian An City One (100%)

This high class residential project is situated within the Changchun High-
Tech Industrial Development Zone. Erected on a site of approximately
414,954 m2, the project with a total GFA of approximately 413,100 m? is
being developed by stages. Construction work for Phase 4 Part 1 with a
total GFA of 82,400 m2 will be completed in 2013.

Tianjin Tian An Cyber Park (50%)

This project is located in Zhangjiawo Industrial Zone, Xiging District,
Tianjin, with a site area of approximately 588,075 m2 and a total GFA
of approximately 1,190,100 m2. The project is planned to be developed
into integrated business park with comprehensive science and technology
buildings, commercial and residential composite. Phase 1 with a GFA
of approximately 160,400 m2 is under construction and expected to be
completed in 2013.

Tianjin Tian An Intelligent Port (100%)

This project is located in Dongli District, Tianjin, with a site area of
approximately 582,000 m2 and a total GFA of approximately 1,319,400 m2.
The project is planned to be developed into urban integrated business
complex with Grade A office buildings, comprehensive science and
technology park, commercial and residential composite. Construction
work for Phase 1 with a GFA of approximately 200,000 m2 will be
commenced in 2013.

Qingdao Tian An Cyber Park (50%)

This project is located in Chengyang District, Qingdao, with a site area of
approximately 158,486 m2 and a total GFA of approximately 244,000 mz2.
The project is planned to be developed into urban integrated business
complex with Grade A office buildings, comprehensive science and
technology park, commercial and residential composite. Construction
work for Phase 1 will be commenced in 2013.

2. MAJOR PROPERTY INVESTMENTS
Shanghai Tian An Centre (98%)

The office building is situated at the hub of Shanghai central business
district of Nanjing Road West and People’s Square, adjacent to the
entrances to the transit platforms of Subway Nos. 1 and 2. It is a
30-storey Grade A commercial building with a total GFA of 48,910 m2.
24,940 m2 were sold, 1,620 m2 were self occupied and the remaining
GFA of 22,350 m? have been transferred to property investment. Most
of the tenants are multinational companies. The occupancy rate is more
than 95%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LSTRERRELIBNAE (100%)

ZIBE N LERTE - AR #%
TS R BIR A A 7S T B BR 224 M3 B4 (1)
68,380 F 75 K 2261 1E{FE & {7 : (2) 10,600
FRRZERMERE  (3) 2,510 F K2
1M6MEEERL + R (4) 979F 7K 2 218{EBT ¥
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ENEYE B @HUEE  HEEEEE
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EMNRZHTES(100%)
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9910F K - ZAEEERBLEM - AHAE
BEANESEBE

Shanghai Racquet Club & Apartments (100%)

This project is located in the Minhang District, Shanghai, and adjacent
to the Honggiao International Airport, Honggiao Transport Hub and 6
International Schools. The properties include (1) 261 apartments with
68,380 m2; (2) a club house with 10,600 m2 and ancillary facilities; (3)
116 car parking spaces with 2,510 m2; and (4) 218 storage rooms with
979 m2. This project is leased property. Most of the tenants are overseas
top management from multinational companies. The occupancy rate is
more than 90%.

Nanjing Tian An International Building (100%)

The project is located at Xinjiekou, the most flourishing shopping district
in Nanjing City. The building links up to the subway station. The shopping
arcades with a GFA of 66,350 m2 have been leased to a department
store. The office building with a GFA of approximately 10,510 m? have
been transferred to property investment.

Changzhou Tian An City Plaza (100%)

This 14-storey building with a total GFA of 48,400 m2 comprises a large
shopping arcade, first-class offices and a hotel. A GFA of the properties
for rent is 24,400 m2 of which 24,080 m? of shopping arcade has been
leased.

Dalian Tian An International Tower (100%)

This Grade A office building is situated in the Zhongshan Road central
business district and faces the Victory Square in Dalian City. The total GFA
is 67,210 m2. This 52-storey building is the tallest landmark building of
Dalian. 14,550 m2 were sold, the remaining GFA have been transferred to
property investment.

Beijing Tian An Building (40%)
With a total GFA of 9,910 m?, this office building is located at a prime
site near the Beijing Hotel and Tian’anmen Square. The whole building

has been rented out to a lessee. The lessee had renovated the building as
a business hotel.
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Beijing Park Apartments (100%)

This premium residential project is located at the Beijing Chaoyang District
to the west of Chaoyang Park and adjacent to the Embassy area. The
project has a total GFA of approximately 42,100 m2. Approximately half
of the total number of units have been sold and the remaining units kept
for leasing purpose.

3. OTHER INVESTMENTS
Fuzhou Summit Golf Country Club & Dengyun Resort (68.40%)

Built on a site of approximately 1,632,000 m2, of which will be developed
into an 18-hole golf course, driving range and clubhouse, and the
remaining site area of approximately 775,898 m2 will be developed into
villas and other deluxe living amenities. Rebuilding of golf course was
commenced in 2010. The revised master planning of the Resort, which
will optimise the application of land resources, includes total GFA of
approximately 592,300 m2 for residential and 140,000 m2 for ancillary
and commercial area. Development of a new phase of villas will be
commenced in 2013.

Zhaoqing Resort & Golf Club (87.97%)

An agreement was entered on 3rd December, 2007 to dispose in stages
of this project, of which the transaction is estimated to be completed
before the end of 2013.

Allied Cement Holdings Limited (75%)

The spin-off and separate listing of Allied Cement Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1312) has been accomplished on 18th January, 2012. The
Group's shareholding interest in Allied Cement Holdings Limited was then
decreased from 100% to 75%.

The group has 3 cement operations in Shanghai and Shandong. Its
principal activities are the manufacture and sales of cement, clinker
and slag, trading of cement and provision of technical services. After
the land resumption exercise of its Shanghai operation in 2009, the
group is preparing to develop the new cement production facilities at
Bailonggang, Pudong, Shanghai, the PRC and this factory relocation is
subject to the approvals by the relevant government authorities.

Allied Cement reported a profit attributable to its shareholders of
HK$26.8 million for 2012, a reduction from HK$76.2 million in 2011, due
to a decline in cement selling prices and an increase in the provision for
bad and doubtful debts.
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

BxK  HEEIE &0

TREEER BEER  BEER  FOER
Buildable JEEEE Completed  Gross Floor Interest
BRERE HEEE B Gross Floor  Project Gross  Area under Held by
Project Name Site Area Use Area  Progress Floor Area Construction  the Group
Frk T Tk Epkn
pelvss el Ut A% AL AR
Ayl sE RRL 118850 Commercial 356,500 Phased 245,200 - 50%
Shenzhen Tian An Longgang = (onstruction —
Cyber Park Stage
Huangge Road North,
Longgang District, Shenzhen
RERZHEA [ AHRIER
REMEHE 278987 Commercial 739,000 Phased 78,000 - 39%
Dongguan Tian An iz Construction
Cyber Park Residential 84,100  Stage - 84,100 39%
Nancheng District, Dongguan EZER) 78,000 84,100
BNRZERHENRE [EE PEEIRE
BN BBR - BHR730% 513088 Commercal 568300  Phased 382,400 - 50%
Guangzhou Tian An Panyu = Construction
Hi-Tech Ecological Park Residential 144200  Stage 45,300 - 50%
No. 730, Ying Bin Road, - -
Panyu District, Guangzhou 712,500 47,700
LR RES B [E L AR
fhil - AR - AT 165252 Commercial 472,900 Phased 221,400 36,400 45%
Foshan Tian An Nanhai Cyber Park = (onstruction
No.1, Jianping Road, Stage
Nanhai District, Foshan
EMNAARZEES" AERET PHEIER
B BBE ki 393570 Commercl 783,000  Phased - 38,800 100%
Huizhou Danshui Tian An Sun Life City” & Residential e (Construction =
Danshui Town, Huiyang District, Stage
Huizhou
EEREARRN ARREE W) AHEIRER KtiQ)
£F mED - OEE 1441848 Commercil Note(2)  Phased Note (2) - 87.97%
Zhaoging Resort & Golf Club & Residential e (Construction —
Huilong Town, Gaoyao City, Stage
Zhaoging
BNEELE fr= AH TSR
M - BEHK388% 775898 Residential 592,300  Phased 15,100 - 68.40%
Fuzhou Dengyun Resort REREZ Construction
No. 388, Dengyun Road, Fuzhou Ancillary & Stage
Commercial 140,000 - - 68.40%
732,300 15,100
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8%l EEIE £8
TRREER BEER  BEER  FOER
Buildable JEEEE Completed  Gross Floor Interest
HE AR HWEER i3 Gross Floor  Project Gross  Area under Held by
Project Name Site Area Use Area  Progress Floor Area Construction  the Group
Erk Tk Tk ik
LERZZA [tz L AR
L& KR EER 362320 Residential 405,800 Phased 35,200 26,300 99.99%
BHESIR MERES Construction
Shanghai Tian An Place Ancillary & Stage
Lot No. 52, Qibao Town, Commercial 64,200 - 2,200 99.99%
Cao Bao Road, -
Minhang District, Shanghai 470,000 35,200 28500
LERZRE(ZHR=H) frx L AR
Ligm - ATe54ER 363,200 Residential 308,700  Phased - 16,300 100%
Shanghai Tian An Villa = (onstruction —_—
(Phases 2 & 3) Stage
Lot No. 654, Song Jiang, Shangha
LERZER*E [EE Rk
LiE - ERE - Bk 58930 Commercial 178000 RiHER - - 100%
Shanghai Tian An Sunshine e Planning &
Peninsula Design Stage
Chang Hua Road, Putuo District,
Shangha
EERZER(ZHGS) fr= E
L - $HERR1028% 3600 Residential 3600 R - - 100%
Shanghai Central Garden e Planning &
(Phase 3 GS) Design Stage
No. 1028, Jin Xiu Road, Shangha
BH8NE frx L AR
BHM 0 WEHRB09H 50480  Residentia 135,600  Phased 39,200 23,500 100%
Wuxi The Manhattan MEREZ Construction
No. 809, Hubin Road, Wuxi Ancillary & Commercial 10,600  Stage 3,700 - 100%
146,200 42,900 23,500
I I
EHRZEEY 5 HHRIRR
EHm 0 FORRAE 10690  Commercial 213900 Phased - 107,200 100%
BIlIsANAL mm— (Construction E—
Wuxi Tian An Intelligent Park Stage
South of Kelang Road and
North of Guanshan Road, Wuxi
ENRZEEY A% AL AR
B - HERHE 203061 Commercial 338,800  Phased 145,100 - 50%
HEH588%: frE Construction
Changzhou Tian An Cyber Park Residential 239,900  Stage 75,100 - 50%
No. 588, Wunan Road, - -
Wujin Hi-Tech Industrial Zone, 578,700 220,200
Changzhou
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8%l ERIE 58
TREEER BEER  BEER  FOER
Buildable JEEEE Completed  Gross Floor Interest
B4 HWEHR il Gross Floor  Project Gross  Area under Held by
Project Name Site Area Use Area  Progress Floor Area Construction  the Group
Fhkm? Thkm? Thkm  Thkn’
ENRZHIE Iz FBEIER
W BER 473335 Residential 137,900  Phased 66,000 27,000 100%
B5E52% mmm— (onstruction
Changzhou Tian An Villa Stage
No. 2, Fengyuan Road,
Wu Jin District, Changzhou
BRARHBH AERAE L AR
)= DN 1 92766 Commercil 210,100 Phased - 86,600 100%
EXE Eh & Residential S— Construction —
Nanjing Tian An Cyber Park Stage
Guanghua Road,
Baixia Hi-Technology,
Industrial Development Area,
Nanjing
HERZTE [r= ABEIER
GRS 203,800 Residential 239300 Phased 212,200 27,100 100%
Nantong Tian An Garden = (onstruction
No. 88, Hongjiang Road, Nantong Stage
HRRRUEA [EE PEEIRE
mEm - kT 160,367 Commercal 398200  Phased - 89,700 100%
XAERH E— (Onsiruction —
Nantong Tian An Cyber Park Stage
South of Changping Road and East of
Yongtong Road, Nantong
IERZHEY A% L AR
B RIIAESSH 173200 Commercial 228700 Phased 81,000 - 50%
Jiangyin Tian An Cyber Park = Construction
No. 55, Changshan Road, Jiangyin Residential 135000  Stage - 64,600 50%
363,700 81,000 64,600
= L |
ERRZHEY A% HHEIER
EET ARAE 357800 Commeral 586,100  Phased 145,400 - 50%
Chongging Tian An Cyber Park =z Construction
Dadukou District, Chongging Residential 308,800  Stage - - 50%
894,900 145,400
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Particulars of Property Development

8%l EEIE £@
TRREER BEER  BEER  FERER
Buildable JEEEE Completed  Gross Floor Interest
HE AR HWEER i3 Gross Floor  Project Gross  Area under Held by
Project Name Site Area Use Area  Progress Floor Area Construction  the Group
Fhkm? FhKm? Thkm  Fhkn’
REXZBRLE [tz AEBTER
K& ERRHREE 58650  Residential 122,100 Phased 84,100 - 60%
eyl mmm— (onstruction —
Dalian Tian An Seaview Garden Stage
Liaohe Road West, Economic & Technical
Development Zong, Dalian
REXRZEEHD [ RER
RER - ERRHREE 19421 Commercil 32300 HEAER - - 100%
Eals frz Planning &
Dalian Tian An Jinma Centre Residential 102,100  Design Stage - - 100%
Jin Ma Road, Economic &
Technical Development Zone, Dalian 134.400
—
RERZE-H [FEREx AEBTER
REM  EAKE61H 414,954 Residential & Phased Construction
Changchun Tian An City One Commercial 413100 Stage 157,500 82,400 100%
No. 661, Guigu Street, Changchun — —
RERRYBH [ PHEIER
e BER 588,075 Commercil 889,600  Phased - 160,400 50%
Tianjin Tian An Cyber Park Iz Construction
Xiqing District, Tianjin Residential 300,500  Stage - - 50%
1,190,100 160,400
RRRZEER" 5 RER
REM RER 582,000 Commercial 934400  RiHER - - 100%
Tianjin Tian An Intelligent Port” iz Planning &
Dongli District, Tianjin Residential 385,000  Design Stage = = 100%
1,319,400
—
BRREYEN BE RER
B5M HFE 158486 Commercal 161,000 SethE: - - 50%
Qingdao Tian An Cyber Park E’? ‘ Planning &
Chengyang District, Qingdao Residential 83,000  Design Stage - - 50%
244,000
Kl - Notes:

(1) BEFHES0% kR TZE °

() BEEFIHERH -

@) ERBRE_ZFT—F+_A=t—HZEHERH -

(1) Agreement for disposal of 50% interest was signed.

(2) Disposal agreement was signed.

(3) The above table is based on information as of 31st December, 2012.
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES UNDER CONSTRUCTION

EEffL
EEEE
Gross BT IER
BHAE SEFTEER Floor Area Estimated
HEAR Gross Interest Held Attributable Completion
Project Name Floor Area by the Group to the Group Year
I AKm2 FHARm?
1. RERZHHH(=H) 84,100 39% 32,800 2013
Dongguan Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 2)
2. BURZEESEEIN(ES) 36,400 45% 16,400 2013
Foshan Tian An Nanhai Cyber Park (Phase 5)
3. BMHKRZENES(—H—4t) 38,800 100% 38,800 2013
Huizhou Danshui Tian An Sun Life City (Phase 1 Part 1)
4. LBXRZZE(—H=H#) 28,500 99.99% 28,500 2014
Shanghai Tian An Place (Phase 1 Part 2)
5. LERZRIZE(ZH—H) 16,300 100% 16,300 2013
Shanghai Tian An Villa (Phase 2 Part 1)
6. EHSKRE(—HH) 23,500 100% 23,500 2014
Wuxi The Manhattan (Phase 1 Part 2)
7. BHALREER(—E-H) 107,200 100% 107,200 2013
Wauxi Tian An Intelligent Park (Phase 1 Part 1)
8. BMARZRIZE (ZHZH) 27,000 100% 27,000 2013
Changzhou Tian An Villa (Phase 2 Part 2)
9. BRALTEIEM(—H) 34,800 100% 34,800 2013
Nanjing Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 1)
10. MRAREHH(ZH) 51,800 100% 51,800 2014
Nanjing Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 2)
1. ERAREE(RHH) 27,100 100% 27,100 2013
Nantong Tian An Garden (Phase 5 Part 2)
12. ARARIBH(—H—1t) 89,700 100% 89,700 2013
Nantong Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 1 Part 1)
13, JIRRLEHH(—HEE) 64,600 50% 32,300 2013
Jiangyin Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 1 Residential)
14, RERZE—H (L8 —4t) 82,400 100% 82,400 2013
Changchun Tian An City One (Phase 4 Part 1)
15. RERZHBH(—H) 160,400 50% 80,200 2013
Tianjin Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 1)
B
Total: 872,600 688,800

Biat : ERBE-ZT——F+-_A=+—HAzE&rHREE - Note:  The above table is based on information as of 31st December, 2012.

% Annual Report 2012 31



MERBEREESR

PARTICULARS OF PROPERTY AND HOTEL INVESTMENTS

1. W
PROPERTY
SEEL
nE BE &8 BEER
BEER BEER Frib R GFA
MELE Property  CarParking InterestHeld  Attributable k=3
Property Name GFA Space GFA by the Group  to the Group Use
FRm? Fikm2 FaKm2
RIRZ B
Shenzhen Tian An Cyber Park
—RIRZ R RS — 10,540 - 50% 5210  BERpNE
Shenzhen Tian An Innovation Science and Commercial and office
Technology Plaza, Phase 1
— R RZEIFRIES — 4 4,400 - 50% 200  HERBAE
Shenzhen Tian An Innovation Science and Commercial and office
Technology Plaza, Phase 2
- RBBERAE 20,530 - 50% 10260  EERBAE
Shenzhen Cyber Times Building Commercial and office
—RYBARLHREIXEAE 13,340 = 50% 6670  EEMEAR
Shenzhen Futian Tian An Hi-Tech Venture Park Commercial and office
RYBERRAE2612 900 - 100% 900 - HDE
26/F, Shenzhen Cyber Times Building Office
AKX ZERAE2018 850 - 100% 850  MnE
20/F, Shenzhen Tian An International Building Office
FIHE — Kt 1,460 - 100% 1,460 [EE
Shenzhen Tian Bei Yi Road, shops Commercial
RYIRZ R ETB A 24,470 - 50% 1230  EERBAE
Shenzhen Tian An Longgang Cyber Park Commercial and office
RERZHHN 1,600 - 39% 620 %
Dongguan Tian An Cyber Park Commercial
BMAZEBHRRE 14,390 = 50% 7200 @EE
Guangzhou Tian An Panyu Hi-Tech Ecological Park Commercial
IR Z BB BB 10,470 - 45% 4710 E%
Foshan Tian An Nanhai Cyber Park Commercial
LEXRZAL 22,350 - 98% 21900  HERHLE
Shanghai Tian An Centre Commercial and office
LERZHO5E - 81612 4,740 - 100% 4740 BDE
5/F, 8/F & 16/F, Shanghai Tian An Centre Office
LEEEARELTINAE 68,380 - 100% 68,380 i
Shanghai Racquet Club & Apartments Residential
FETERR 1,520 - 99% 1510 7%
Shanghai The Riverside Commercial
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Particulars of Property and Hotel Investments
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SEEL
VE BE £E BREER
BREE® BREER Frit s GFA
MELRE Property  CarParking Interest Held  Attributable B#
Property Name GFA Space GFA by the Group to the Group Use
FRm2 FrRm2 F5Rm?2
BERZAE 1,420 - 95% 1350  HAE
Wuxi Tian An Building Office
BHLILFE 2,830 - 95% 2690  EE
Wuxi Redhill Peninsula Commercial
BRAZERAR 76,860 - 100% 76860  HERHLE
Nanjing Tian An International Building Commercial and office
BMRZH RS 24,400 - 100% 24400  BERPLE
Changzhou Tian An City Plaza Commercial and office
EMFRTEE 9,090 - 100% 9000  E%
Changzhou New City Garden Commercial
EMRZEEH 2,170 - 50% 1000  EE
Changzhou Tian An Cyber Park Commercial
ERERAEME 720 = 100% 720 N
4/F, Nantong Sun Hai Tung Building Office
HBRARITEE 1,300 - 100% 1300  E¥
2/F, Block 17, Nantong Jin Xiu Court Commercial
HERLLE 2,500 - 100% 2500  EE
Nantong Tian An Garden Commercial
IFRZAE 9,910 - 40% 390 B
Beijing Tian An Building Office
L RERR 880 - 100% 880  f=E
Beijing Lakeside Garden Residential
ERRRFE 22,170 - 100% 2170 f=
Beijing Park Apartments Residential
NERZBRIEE 650 - 60% 30 fE
Dalian Tian An Seaview Garden Residential
RERZERAR 52,660 - 100% 5,660 WA
Dalian Tian An International Tower Office
REXRZE 4,740 - 100% 4740  EE¥
Changchun Tian An City One Commercial
412,240 353,700
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Particulars of Property and Hotel Investments

SEEL
nE BE £E BEER
BREE® REER gy GFA
MELE Property  CarParking Interest Held  Attributable B#
Property Name GFA Space GFA by the Group  to the Group Use
FIKme FliAm? FlAm?
LBRZPL-EE - 7,770 98% 7610  EE
Shanghai Tian An Centre, Car Parking Space Car Parking Space
ERLTEE-¥B - 3,500 100% 3500 EE
Shanghai Central Garden, Car Parking Space Car Parking Space
MisTic) s Ehoat SN Sl - 2,510 100% 2510 EE
Shanghai Racquet Club & Apartments, Car Parking Space
Car Parking Space
HEREMRELFNAT g 10,600 - 100% 10,600 2
Shanghai Racquet Club & Apartments, Club House Club House
10,600 13,780 24,220
2. B
HOTEL
KWmEH KEAGER B EE R FEE#E
HE EHE Expiry  Interest Held Hotel No. of
Project Name Date by the Group Gross Area Rooms
& Year SE5 AKm2
FINRZTIBES-1218
9/F to 12/F, Changzhou Tian An City Hotel 2043 100% 1,190 23

Bt ERIBEBECE-—F+-A=t+—BZERER -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ARBBIRABERZBERERF=KFEZ
TEER URASERE BHEMELBME
BRA - RRREFE((EFE DAEEERZ
CEERHARRZED EEFRREEER
B2

TEEATFARCEEARE

BRIBEBEBBAERZMBRARFESR LTHEA
(I LR AN Mg+ Tk 2 2 AFRI R
EERME([REESRTAD (AEALE
ERTEMSTRI[ATREERTR]))  EFg
EEHAARZEEERER  WEHEMZ
BEBGE 2R - FEBERAREN - BT
RIEZETEMBERAZREITAN  REZ
ZZE——HF+ZA=1+—HLEE  KTRAE
FERMEEATRIZ RA RE<FEA 2 FAE
X o BEERELEFRTBITIZER X
WHERERAEERELEEER

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance within a sensible framework with an emphasis on the
principles of transparency, accountability and independence. The board
of directors of the Company (“Board”) believes that good corporate
governance is essential to the success of the Company and to the
enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE AND
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

In the light of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (“CG Code”) (previously known as Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (“Former CG Code”)) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”), the Board has reviewed
the corporate governance practices of the Company with the adoption
of the various enhanced procedures which are detailed in this report. The
Company has applied the principles of, and complied with, the applicable
code provisions of the CG Code during the year ended 31st December,
2012, except for certain deviations as specified with considered reasons
for such deviations as explained below. The Board will review the current
practices at least annually, and make appropriate changes if considered
necessary.
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THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises twelve directors (“Directors”) in total,
with five Executive Directors, three Non-Executive Directors and four
Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs"). The composition of
the Board during the year and up to the date of this report is set out as
follows:

Executive Directors:
Song Zengbin (Deputy Chairman)
Patrick Lee Seng Wei (Managing Director)
Ma Sun (Deputy Managing Director)
Edwin Lo King Yau
Tao Tsan Sang
Hu Aimin (Deputy Chairman)
(resigned on 24th September, 2012)

Non-Executive Directors:

Lee Seng Hui (Chairman)

Moses Cheng Mo Chi

Lee Shu Yin

Ng Qing Hai
(re-designated as Non-Executive Director
on 18th January, 2012 and
resigned on 18th January, 2013)

INEDs:

Francis J. Chang Chu Fai
Jin Hui zhi

Ngai Wah Sang

Lisa Yang Lai Sum

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
section in the Directors’ Report on pages 61 to 66. Other than that Mr.
Lee Seng Hui, the Chairman of the Company, is a cousin of Mr.
Patrick Lee Seng Wei, the Managing Director of the Company, there are
no family or other material relationships among members of the Board.
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THE BOARD (conTINUED)
Board Process

During the year, the Non-Executive Directors (a majority of whom are
independent) provided the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
“Group”) with a wide range of expertise and experience. Their active
participation in the Board and committee meetings brought independent
judgement on issues relating to the Group’s strategy, performance and
management process, taking into account the interests of all shareholders
of the Company (“Shareholders”).

As at 31st December, 2012, the Board comprised a total of five Executive
Directors, four Non-Executive Directors and four INEDs, with less than
one-third of its members as INEDs. Following the resignation of a Director
of the Company on 18th January, 2013 and up to the date of this
report, the Board comprises a total of five Executive Directors, three Non-
Executive Directors and four INEDs, representing one-third of its members
as INEDs in compliance with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

Throughout the year and up to the date of this report, the Company has
had four INEDs. At least one of the INEDs has the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise
under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The Board has received from each
INED an annual confirmation of his/her independence and considers that
all the INEDs are independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.
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THE BOARD (conTINUED)
Board Process (continued)

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Group, and to review and
approve the Group's annual and interim results and other ad hoc matters
which need to be dealt with. During the year, five Board meetings
were held and the individual attendance records of each Director at the
meetings of the Board, Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and
general meetings during the year ended 31st December, 2012 are set out
below:

HE BIEEZRE
Number of meetings attended/held
FHZEEE BRZEEE REAS
EEE Remuneration Audit General
EE=ng Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Meetings
BITES: Executive Directors:
RIEW(FIZ/E) Song Zengbin (Deputy Chairman) 2/5 0R
TR (EFARAHE) Patrick Lee Seng Wei (Managing Director) 5/5 02
B R (Gat) Ma Sun (Deputy Managing Director) 4/5 0/2
B=1 Edwin Lo King Yau 5/5 212
HRE Tao Tsan Sang 5/5 212
MER(FIEE) Hu Aimin (Deputy Chairman) 3/4 0R
(R=—F——F /L H—+H (resigned on 24th September, 2012)
BEE)
FHTES: Non-Executive Directors:
TRIE(EE) Lee Seng Hui (Chairman) 4/5 0/2
(g Moses Cheng Mo Chi 5/5 173 172
FRIE Lee Shu Yin 5/5 12
EV )i Ng Qing Hai 4/5 072
(R=ZF—=—#—H+/1H (re-designated as Non-Executive
HERIRTEER Director on 18th January, 2012 and
R-ZF—=F—H1+/1H resigned on 18th January, 2013)
BEHE)
BYFHITES: INEDs:
Hssre Francis J. Chang Chu Fai 5/5 11 33 112
SEE Jin Hui Zhi 5/5 171 3/3 0/2
RELE Ngai Wah Sang 5/5 11 33 0/2
]S Lisa Yang Lai Sum 5/5 11 3/3 0/2
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THE BOARD (conTINUED)
Board Process (continued)

The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration matters covering
mainly the Group’s overall strategy, annual operating budget, annual and
interim results, approval of Directors’ appointment or re-appointment
(based on the recommendations made by the Nomination Committee),
material contracts and transactions, corporate governance as well as
other significant policy and financial matters. The Board has delegated
the day-to-day responsibility to the executive management under the
instruction/supervision of the Executive Committee which has its specific
written terms of reference. The respective functions of the Board and
management of the Company have been formalised and set out in
writing and will be reviewed by the Board from time to time to ensure
that they are consistent with the existing rules and regulations.

Regular Board meetings each year are scheduled in advance to facilitate
maximum attendance of Directors. At least 14 days’ notice of a Board
meeting is normally given to all Directors who are given an opportunity to
include matters for discussion in the agenda. The company secretary of
the Company (“Company Secretary”) assists the Chairman in preparing
the agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations are complied with. The agenda and the accompanying
Board papers are normally sent to all Directors at least 3 days before
the intended date of a regular Board meeting (and so far as practicable
for such other Board meetings). Draft minutes of each Board meeting
are circulated to all Directors for their comment before being tabled at
the following Board meeting for approval. All minutes are kept by the
Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable time
on reasonable notice by any Director.
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THE BOARD (conTINUED)
Board Process (continued)

According to the current Board practice, if a substantial shareholder or
a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the
Board which the Board has determined to be material, the matter will be
dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting. The articles
of association of the Company (“Articles of Association”) also stipulate
that save for the exceptions as provided therein, a Director shall abstain
from voting on any Board resolution and not be counted in the quorum
at meetings for approving any contract or arrangement in which such
Director or any of his/her associates has a material interest.

Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and related
materials and has access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. The Board and each Director also have separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management. Directors
will be continuously updated on the major development of the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance
and upkeep of good corporate governance practices. In addition, a
written procedure was established in June 2005 to enable the Directors,
in discharge of their duties, to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances at a reasonable cost to be borne by the
Company.
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EE2W THE BOARD (CONTINUED)
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Directors’ Continuous Professional Development
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For continuous professional development, in addition to Directors’
attendance at meetings and review of papers and circulars sent by the

B2 EEEFENT management of the Company, Directors participated in the activities
including the following:
SREESERRTE
Participation in Continuous
Professional Development Activities
HERESEER
2iEH g/
BEER BE/8%
B Attending trainings/
Reading briefings/seminars/
Regulatory BihER conference relevant
- Name of Directors Updates Site Visit to Directors’ duties
HiTES: Executive Directors:
RIGW(EIEE) Song Zengbin (Deputy Chairman) v/ /
PRR(EEELE) Patrick Lee Seng Wei (Managing Director) v/ /
S (F/4Ez) Ma Sun (Deputy Managing Director) v v v
Ehx Edwin Lo King Yau v v v
HIRE Tao Tsan Sang v v v
HERGEE) Hu Aimin (Deputy Chairman) v v v
(R=F——4F H—+IAFHE) (resigned on 24th September, 2012)
FHTES ! Non-Executive Directors:
B (EE) Lee Seng Hui (Chairman) v v/
HHE Moses Cheng Mo Chi v v v
FHIE Lee Shu Yin v/ v/ /
"EH Ng Qing Hai g v
(R=F——F—F+/14 (re-designated as Non-Executive Director
HAERFHTEER on 18th January, 2012 and resigned on
RoE—=F—F+/|AFF) 18th January, 2013)
BIUFBTES: INEDs:
gz Francis J. Chang Chu Fai v v v
&85 Jin Hui Zhi / v/
mEE Ngai Wah Sang v/ v
HER Lisa Yang Lai Sum v v v
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ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of the
chairman and chief executive (“CE") should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Lee Seng Hui, being the
Chairman of the Company, is primarily responsible for the leadership
of the Board, ensuring that (i) all significant policy issues are discussed
by the Board in a timely and constructive manner; (ii) all Directors are
properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings; and (iii) the Directors
receive accurate, timely and clear information. The functions of the CE
are performed by Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei, the Managing Director of
the Company, who is responsible for the day-to-day management of the
Group's business. Their responsibilities are clearly segregated and have
been set out in writing and approved by the Board in June 2005, and
subsequently updated in April 2012.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In June 2005, the Board established and adopted a written nomination
procedure (“Nomination Procedure”) specifying the process and criteria
for the selection and recommendation of candidates for directorship
of the Company. The Nomination Procedure has been included in the
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee with effect from the
establishment of the Nomination Committee on 26th March, 2012. The
Nomination Committee shall, based on those criteria as set out in the
Nomination Procedure (such as appropriate experience, personal skills and
time commitment, etc.), identify and recommend the proposed candidate
to the Board for approval of an appointment.

Every newly appointed Director will receive an induction package from
the Company Secretary on the first occasion of his/her appointment. This
induction package is a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on
the responsibilities and on-going obligations to be observed by a director
pursuant to the Companies Ordinance, Listing Rules and Securities and
Futures Ordinance. In addition, this induction package includes materials
briefly describing the operations and business of the Company, the latest
published financial reports of the Company and the documentation for
the corporate governance practices adopted by the Board. Directors will
be continuously updated on any major developments of the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and
upkeep of good corporate governance practices.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

All Non-Executive Directors (including INEDs) of the Company were
appointed for a specific term, but subject to the relevant provisions of the
Articles of Association or any other applicable laws whereby the Directors
shall vacate or retire from their office but eligible for re-election. The term
of appointment of the Non-Executive Directors (including INEDs) has been
renewed for further two years commencing from 1st January, 2013.

According to the Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting
of the Company (“AGM"), one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but
not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. Further, any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
only until the next following general meeting of the Company whilst
for those appointed as an addition to the Board shall hold office until
the next following AGM and in both cases, those Directors shall then be
eligible for re-election at the relevant meeting. Every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties and
has adopted the written terms of reference on its corporate governance
functions in April 2012.

The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate governance functions
include:

(i) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(iii) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;

and

(v) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

In 2012 and up to the date of this report, the Board has performed the
corporate governance duties in accordance with its terms of reference.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including a Nomination
Committee (established on 26th March, 2012), a Remuneration
Committee, an Audit Committee and an Executive Committee, each
of which has its specific written terms of reference. Copies of minutes
of all meetings and resolutions of the committees, which are kept by
the Company Secretary, are circulated to all Board members and the
committees are required to report back to the Board on their decision and
recommendations where appropriate. The procedures and arrangements
for a Board meeting, as mentioned in the section headed “The Board”
of this report, have been adopted for the committee meetings so far as
practicable.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee has been established on 26th March, 2012
and is chaired by an INED and comprises a majority of INEDs. Currently,
the Nomination Committee consists of five members, including Ms.
Lisa Yang Lai Sum (Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr.
Francis J. Chang Chu Fai, Mr. Jin Hui Zhi and Mr. Ngai Wah Sang, all
being the INEDs and Mr. Edwin Lo King Yau being an Executive Director.
The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and has access to independent professional advice
according to the Company’s policy if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of the
Board and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(iii) to assess the independence of INEDs; and
(iv) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or

re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (continued)

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on
the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (”Stock
Exchange”) and the Company.

The Nomination Committee will meet as and when necessary in
accordance with its terms of reference and may also deal with matters by
way of circulation. In 2012, no Nomination Committee meeting was held
while the Committee dealt with matters by way of circulation. In 2012
and up to the date of this report, the Nomination Committee performed
the works as summarised below:

(i) reviewed and recommended for the Board'’s approval the proposed
resolutions for re-election of the retiring Directors at 2012 AGM and
2013 AGM;

(i) reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the renewal of
the term of appointment of the Non-Executive Directors (including
the INEDs) for two years commencing from 1st January, 2013; and

(iii) reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and
assessed the independence of each INED.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established since June 2005
and currently consists of four members, including Mr. Francis J. Chang
Chu Fai (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Jin Hui Zhi,
Mr. Ngai Wah Sang and Ms. Lisa Yang Lai Sum, all being the INEDs.
The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and has access to independent professional advice
according to the Company’s policy if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are:

(i) to make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy
and packages of the Directors and, where appropriate, to consult
the Chairman of the Board and/or the Managing Director about the
Remuneration Committee’s proposals relating to the remuneration of
other Executive Directors;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

(i) to review and recommend Executive Directors’ remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

(iii) to review and recommend the compensation payable to Executive
Directors relating to any loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

(iv) to review and recommend compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct; and

(v) to ensure that no Director is involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are in compliance
with the code provision B.1.3 of the Former CG Code, but with a
deviation from the code provision that the Remuneration Committee
shall review (as opposed to determine under the code provision) and
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
the Executive Directors only and not senior management (as opposed to
executive directors and senior management under the code provision).
Certain amendments have been made to the Former CG Code with effect
from 1st April, 2012 ("CG Amendments”), including code provision
B.1.2 of the CG Code (then B.1.3 of the Former CG Code), which now
accommodates a model where the remuneration committee performs
an advisory role as to the remuneration packages of the executive
directors and senior management. Accordingly, the revised terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee adopted to align with the CG
Code are in compliance with the code provision B.1.2 except that the
Remuneration Committee shall make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors only and not senior
management (as opposed to executive directors and senior management
under the new code provision B.1.2). The reasons for the above
derivations are summarised as below:

(i) the Board believes that the Remuneration Committee is not properly
in a position to evaluate the performance of senior management
and that this evaluation process is more effectively carried out by the
Executive Directors;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

(i) all Remuneration Committee members are INEDs who may not be
industry skilled and come from differing professions and backgrounds
and they are not involved in the daily operation of the Company.
They may have little direct knowledge of industry practice and
standard compensation packages. The Remuneration Committee is
thus not in a position to properly determine the remuneration of the
Executive Directors;

(iii) the Executive Directors must be in a position to supervise and
control senior management and thus must be able to control their
compensation; and

(iv) there is no reason for Executive Directors to pay senior management
more than industry standards and thus Shareholders will benefit by
reducing costs in the fixing of such compensation packages.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year in
accordance with its terms of reference. One Remuneration Committee
meeting was held in 2012 and the attendance of each member is set out
in the section headed “The Board” of this report.

In addition to the Remuneration Committee meeting, the Remuneration
Committee also dealt with matters by way of circulation during 2012.
In 2012 and up to the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee
performed the works as summarised below:

(i) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the revised
policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors;

(i) reviewed the remuneration packages of all the Executive and
Non-Executive Directors (including the INEDs) for the year ended
31st December, 2011;

(iii) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the bonus for
the year ended 31st December, 2011, the increment in salary for the
year 2012 of the Executive Directors, and the increment in service
fees of the INEDs from the year 2013 onwards;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

(iv) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the revised
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee to align with the
amendments to the revised CG Code effective on 1st April, 2012;
and

(v) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the extension
of the retirement age under the employment contract of the
Managing Director.

Each Director will be entitled to a Director’s fee which is to be proposed
for the Shareholders’ approval at the AGM each year. Further
remuneration payable to Directors (including any service fees of the
INEDs) for their additional responsibilities and services will depend on
their respective contractual terms under their employment contracts or
service contracts as approved by the Board on the recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee. Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set
out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements whereas detailed
changes in the emoluments of certain Directors during the interim period
and up to the date of the Interim Report were also disclosed in the
Interim Report of the Company dated 22nd August, 2012. Details of the
remuneration policy of the Group are also set out in the “Employee and
Training” section contained in the Management Discussion and Analysis
on page 13.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established since November 1999 and
currently consists of five Non-Executive Directors, four of whom are
INEDs. To retain independence and objectivity, the Audit Committee
is chaired by an INED with appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise. The
current members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Ngai Wah Sang
(Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Francis J. Chang Chu Fai, Dr.
Moses Cheng Mo Chi, Mr. Jin Hui Zhi and Ms. Lisa Yang Lai Sum. The
Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
duties and has access to independent professional advice according to the
Company'’s policy if considered necessary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

Audit Committee (continued)

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

=

(vii

to consider and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external auditor,
and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or dismissal;

to consider and discuss with the external auditor the nature and
scope of each year's audit;

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s
relations with the external auditor;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity;

to review the interim and annual consolidated financial statements
before submission to the Board;

to discuss any problems and reservations arising from the interim
review and final audit, and any matters the external auditor may wish
to discuss;

to review the external auditor’s management letters and
management'’s response;

(viii) to review the Group’s financial controls, internal control and risk

(ix)

management systems;

to review the internal audit plan, promote co-ordination between the
internal and external auditors, and check whether the internal audit
function is adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within
the Group; and

to consider major investigation findings on internal control matters
and management'’s response.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Audit Committee (continued)

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are revised from time to
time to comply with the code provision C.3.3 of the CG Code and Former
CG Code, but with deviations from the code provision of the audit
committee’s responsibility to:

(i) implement policy on the engagement of the external auditors to
supply non-audit services;

(i) ensure the management has performed its duty to have an effective
internal control system; and

(i) ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors, and
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and
has appropriate standing within the listed company.

The Board considers that the Audit Committee shall recommend (as
opposed to implement) the policy on the engagement of the external
auditors to supply non-audit services for the following reasons:

(i) itis proper and appropriate for the Board and its committees to
develop policy and make appropriate recommendations;

(i) the proper and appropriate mechanism for implementation of such
policy and recommendations is through the Executive Directors and
management; and

(iii) INEDs are not in an effective position to implement policy and follow
up the same on a day-to-day basis.

Further, the Board considers that the Audit Committee only possesses the
effective ability to scrutinise (as opposed to ensure) whether management
has performed its duty to have an effective internal control system. The
Audit Committee is not equipped to ensure that the same is in place
as this would involve day-to-day supervision and the employment of
permanent experts. The Audit Committee is not in a position either to
ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors but it
can promote the same. Similarly, the Audit Committee is not in a position
to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced but it
can check whether it is adequately resourced.

50 KLZHBEHREARAR Tian An China Investments Company Limited



TEERBE

N\

Corporate Governance Report

EEFES W
EREES W)

EHERE I BENECRBRMRARZ
IR -
BEARERE BEREEREFAZLT
BMRARS « KB —EB BT RER
EEERH  MEKEZHBERRNARS
[EEE | -

N

RETEZZERERN  BRZEETR
—E-_EFRNEREHAXH T ARESE -
R-F-——FARBEAHEAMIL - BFX

SEBITZ ITERMANT

m |

=
2=

A

ERMENEZEMEZECAEH
HE-_Z—=—F~A=t+HLEXM@AZ
PHAREEN( T ——FPHEHDRE
HE_ZT——F+_A=+—HItFEZ
FREZ([ZE——FFREZ]) 2%H
HENER

—~
=

(ih BEINEZBRREBEEEZE_S——F
+-A=+-—"BLHFEZ2FLREZ
—TE-—_FHHERE-_ZFT—Z=F
FREFEZZBIBRREFZTHHRS
LERRE 2 BIJE

(i BN RERESSHEHE-_FT—F
TZA=+—BIEFE BEZT—_F
ANAZTHEEARBAREBEE=ZE—Z=F
TZA=t+—HIEFEZHMBRERBHE
ZEBERRA R R A

(iv) BBIREAIE B APEFEL]) AR
ZAEBEWME,/ HMERE ([ARPEAR
T AESCEEEFTRERS AiRd
=

(v) BEMEZRESSHERASES LY
HEFRBETENER  BTEERER
NEBEE TAEXNEIRELREE 2
B

BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Audit Committee (continued)

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year in accordance
with its terms of reference. Three Audit Committee meetings were held
in 2012 and the attendance of each member is set out in the section
headed “The Board" of this report.

In addition to the Audit Committee meetings, the Audit Committee also
dealt with matters by way of circulation during 2012. In 2012 and up
to the date of this report, the Audit Committee performed the works as
summarised below:

(i) reviewed and approved the audit scope and fees proposed by the
external auditor in respect of the interim results review for the six
months ended 30th June, 2012 (“2012 Interim Review"”) and the
final audit for the year ended 31st December, 2012 (2012 Final
Audit”) of the Group;

(i) reviewed the independent review report/audit completion report
from the external auditor and the management’s response in relation
to the final audit for the year ended 31st December, 2011, 2012
Interim Review and 2012 Final Audit;

(i) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the financial
reports for the year ended 31st December, 2011, for the six months
ended 30th June, 2012 and for the year ended 31st December, 2012
together with the relevant management representation letters and
announcements;

(iv) reviewed the internal audit review reports/summaries (“IA Reports”)
prepared by the Group Internal Audit Department (“IAD"), and
instructed that the issues raised would be addressed and managed
by the management;

(v) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the updated
reports on substantiation of the resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
function, and their training programmes and budget;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Audit Committee (continued)

(vi) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the revised
terms of reference of the Audit Committee to align with the
amendments to the revised CG Code effective on 1st April, 2012;

(vii) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s annual review the
Connected Transaction Policies, the Related Party Transaction Policies
and Procedures and the updated Whistle Blower Policy; and

(viii) reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the Policy
on the Disclosure of Inside Information to align with the relevant
amendments pursuant to the Securities and Futures (Amendment)
Ordinance 2012 effective on 1st January, 2013.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee has been established since February 2004.
Subsequent to the re-designation of Mr. Ng Qing Hai, a former Director
of the Company, as Non-Executive Director on 18th January, 2012, the
Executive Committee currently consists of four Executive Directors, being
Messrs. Patrick Lee Seng Wei (Chairman of the Executive Committee),
Ma Sun, Edwin Lo King Yau and Tao Tsan Sang. The Executive Committee
is vested with all the general powers of management and control of the
activities of the Group as are vested in the Board, save for those matters
which are reserved for the Board’s decision and approval pursuant to
the written terms of reference of the Executive Committee. The terms
of reference of the Executive Committee were revised in March 2008
following the adoption of the Whistle Blower Policy by the Company.

The Executive Committee will meet as and when necessary to discuss the
operating affairs of the Group and may also deal with matters by way of
circulation. The Executive Committee is mainly responsible for undertaking
and supervising the day-to-day management and is empowered:

(i) to formulate and implement policies for the business activities,
internal control and administration of the Group; and

(i) to plan and decide on strategies to be adopted for the business
activities of the Group within the overall strategy of the Group as
determined by the Board.
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CODES FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors. All Directors have confirmed, following a specific enquiry
by the Company, that they have complied with the required standard as
set out in the Model Code.

The Company has also adopted the Model Code as the Code for
Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees to regulate dealings in the
securities of the Company by certain employees of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries who are considered to be likely in possession of inside
information in relation to the Company or its securities.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing, with
the support from the Finance Department, the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31st December, 2012, the accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (which
also include Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
were complied with. The Directors believe that they have selected
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, and made
judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable and ensure
the consolidated financial statements are prepared on the going concern
basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor, Deloitte

Touche Tohmatsu, are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 78 and 79.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (CONTINUED)
Internal Control

The Board has the responsibility to review annually the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control systems and ensure that the controls
are sound and effective to safeguard the Shareholders’ investments
and the Group’s assets at all times. In 2012, the Board, through the
Audit Committee and IAD, had reviewed the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.

The Group's internal control system is designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss; to
manage rather than completely eliminate the risk of system failure; and
to assist in the achievement of the Group’s agreed objectives and goals.
It has a key role in the management of risks that are significant to the
fulfilment of business objectives. In addition to safeguarding the Group’s
assets, it should provide a basis for the maintenance of proper accounting
records and assist in the compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

The Board, through the Audit Committee and with the assistance of the
IAD, conducted internal control reviews of the property development and
management group for the year ended 31st December, 2012.

Internal Audit

The Internal Audit Manager reports to the Chairman and the Audit
Committee. The IAD plays an important role in providing assurance to the
Board that a sound internal control system is maintained and operated
by the management. This is part of the Board’s plan to enhance the
standards of the Group’s overall corporate governance and comply with
the code provision C.2 of the CG Code.

The Group Overall Risk Profile Analysis Report, and the Group Internal
Audit Plan and Strategy Report were prepared by the IAD and issued
to the Audit Committee and the Board for review. A discussion of the
policies and procedures on the management of each of the major types of
risk which the Group is facing is included in note 5b to the consolidated
financial statements.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (CONTINUED)
Internal Audit (continued)

The IAD performed internal control assessments of the property
development and management group for the year ended 31st December,
2012. The IA Reports were distributed to the Audit Committee and the
Board for their review. The IAD monitored that the issues raised in the 1A
Reports would be addressed and managed promptly by the management.

External Auditor's Remuneration

During the year, the remuneration paid to the Group’s external auditor is
set out as follows:

m 25 IR 12 BRI Services rendered for the Group T
HK$'000
ZE RIS Audit services 4,638
IEZERS (RIEE B TR ERRGT S Non-audit services (including review of compliance of
&P R EHTEEE HEFAEIS R Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance and
EEERTEA) review of interim results, continuing connected
transactions and working capital forecast) 1,851
et Total 6,489

BRRz2BE

EXERRARRRAFRIBECEEN - F
RSB 2 ERNREEBZBIENRER
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BEK o RETBE XM ERSOIAZARERK
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
Shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is disseminated to
Shareholders in a timely manner through a number of formal channels,
which include interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars.
Such published documents together with the latest corporate information
and news are also made available on the website of the Company.

The Company’s general meetings are valuable forums for the Board to
communicate directly with the Shareholders. Code provision E.1.2 of
the CG Code stipulates that the chairman of the board should attend
the annual general meeting and also invite the chairmen of the audit,
remuneration, nomination and any other committees (as appropriate)
to attend. In their absence, he should invite another member of the
committee or failing this his/her duly appointed delegate, to attend. These
persons should be available to answer questions at the annual general
meeting.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(CONTINUED)

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code stipulates that independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. The chairman of any independent board committee formed
as necessary or pursuant to the Listing Rules (or if no such chairman is
appointed, at least a member of the independent board committee)
should also be available to answer questions at any general meeting
of the Shareholders to approve a connected transaction or any other
transaction that is subject to independent Shareholders” approval.

In 2012, an extraordinary general meeting of the Company (“EGM")
and the 2012 AGM were held on 2nd April, 2012 and 24th May, 2012
respectively. Due to another business engagement, Mr. Lee Seng Hui, the
Chairman of the Board, was unable to attend the 2012 AGM. However,
Mr. Edwin Lo King Yau, an Executive Director of the Company, took the
chair of that meeting, one Non-Executive Director and another Executive
Director, being the delegate of the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination
Committees were present thereat to be available to answer any question
to ensure effective communication with the Shareholders. Due to other
business engagements, some Non-Executive Directors (including INEDs)
could not attend the EGM and the 2012 AGM. However, at the respective
general meeting of the Company, there were Executive Directors and a
Non-Executive Director and/or an INED present to enable the Board to
develop a balanced understanding of the views of the Shareholders. The
attendance record of the Directors at the general meetings is set out in
the section headed “The Board” of this report.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings for each
substantial issue, including the re-election of retiring Directors.

The notice to Shareholders is to be sent in the case of AGM at least 20
clear business days before the meeting and to be sent at least 10 clear
business days in case of all other general meetings. An explanation of the
detailed procedures of conducting a poll is provided to the Shareholders
at the commencement of the meeting. The Chairman answers questions
from Shareholders regarding voting by way of a poll. The poll results are
published in the manner prescribed under the requirements of the Listing
Rules.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(CONTINUED)

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the paid up
capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings can request the convening of an extraordinary general meeting
according to Article 67 of the Articles of Association and Section 113 of
the Companies Ordinance by written requisition, with stated business
proposed to be transacted, which must be validly served at the registered
office of the Company (”Registered Office”). Besides, Shareholders may
make a proposal at a Shareholders’ meeting by submitting it in written
form to the Board at the Registered Office in the form of a proposed
resolution, which shall clearly and concisely set out the proposal for
discussion and be relevant to the Company’s business scope.

The Board established a shareholders’ communication policy. A Shareholder
may serve an enquiry to the Board at the Registered Office for the
attention of the Board in written form, which shall state the nature of the
enquiry and the reason for making the enquiry. In addition, Shareholders
can contact Tricor Secretaries Limited, the share registrar of the Company,
for any questions about their shareholdings.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying and
complying with the CG Code of the Stock Exchange but also about
promoting and developing an ethical and healthy corporate culture. We
will continue to review and, where appropriate, improve our current
practices on the basis of our experience, regulatory changes and
developments. Any views and suggestions from our Shareholders to
promote and improve our transparency are also welcome.

On behalf of the Board

oo

-

Lee Seng Hui
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22nd March, 2013
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The board of directors of the Company (“Board”) presents their
annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively “Group”) for the year ended
31st December, 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities as at
31st December, 2012 are set out in notes 51 and 52 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

The Group's revenue for the year was derived mainly from activities
carried out in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") other than Hong
Kong. The breakdown by principal activities of the Group’s turnover
and the contribution to profit before taxation for the year ended 31st
December, 2012 is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and jointly controlled
entities as at 31st December, 2012 are set out in notes 51 and 52 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company are set out
in the consolidated income statement on pages 80 and 81 and in the
accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK4 cents per share
for the year ended 31st December, 2012 payable to the shareholders of
the Company (“Shareholders”) whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Friday, 7th June, 2013. Details are set out
in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the year, the Group acquired investment properties totalling
approximately HK$123,171,100 in value and certain inventories of
completed properties to a value of HK$16,401,000 were transferred to
investment properties. The Group revalued all of its investment properties
as at the year end date. The surplus arising on the revaluation amounted
to HK$553,451,000 and has been recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Details of these and other movements in the investment properties of the
Group during the year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment
totalling approximately HK$157,465,000.

Details of these and other movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTIES

Particulars of major properties of the Group as at 31st December, 2012
are set out on pages 27 to 34.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in the share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS AND INTEREST CAPITALISED

Bank loans and other borrowings which are repayable within one year
or on demand are classified as current liabilities. Repayment analysis of
interest-bearing and interest-free borrowings are set out in notes 39
and 40 to the consolidated financial statements respectively. Interest
capitalised by the Group during the year in respect of properties under
development amounted to HK$38,851,000, details of which are set out
in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Song Zengbin
Patrick Lee Seng Wei
Ma Sun
Edwin Lo King Yau
Tao Tsan Sang
Hu Aimin
(resigned on 24th September, 2012)

Non-Executive Directors:

Lee Seng Hui

Moses Cheng Mo Chi

Lee Shu Yin

Ng Qing Hai
(re-designated as Non-Executive Director on 18th January, 2012 and
resigned on 18th January, 2013)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Francis J. Chang Chu Fai

Jin Hui Zhi

Ngai Wah Sang

Lisa Yang Lai Sum

In accordance with Article 105(A) of the articles of association of
the Company (”Articles of Association”), Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei,
Mr. Tao Tsan Sang, Dr. Moses Cheng Mo Chi and Mr. Jin Hui Zhi shall
retire from office by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Song Zengbin, aged 58, was appointed the Deputy Chairman and
a Non-Executive Director of the Company in June 2008 and was
re-designated as an Executive Director of the Company in April 2010.
He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Song
graduated from the Civil Engineering Department of Dalian University
of Technology with a Master’s Degree in Engineering and is a state
registered construction engineer. He has more than thirty years of
experience in the fields of engineering and management by serving in
various senior roles in a design institute, several large state companies
and municipal government. Mr. Song has also been invited as a guest
professor for Dalian University of Technology since 2003.

Patrick Lee Seng Wei, aged 61, was appointed an Executive Director
of the Company in June 1996 and became the Chairman and the Acting
Managing Director of the Company in February 2004 and December
2005 respectively. He relinquished his role as the Chairman and was
re-designated from the Acting Managing Director to the Managing
Director of the Company in April 2007. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. An architect, he worked for IBM Australia
before becoming involved in property development in Malaysia and
Hong Kong more than twenty-seven years ago. He has extensive
experience in the property field. Mr. Lee was previously the chief
executive and an executive director of Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited
("APL"), a substantial shareholder of the Company, and a non-executive
director of Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited (“SHK"). He is a cousin of Mr.
Lee Seng Hui (the Chairman of the Company).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (conTINUED)

Executive Directors (continued)

Ma Sun, aged 72, was appointed an Executive Director of the Company
in April 2003 and became an additional Deputy Managing Director of the
Company responsible for organising the investment and development
of the cyberpark projects of the Company in April 2009. Mr. Ma joined
Sun Hung Kai Securities Limited in 1984 and was then transferred to
the Group in 1985. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Besides holding a Bachelor’s Degree in Electrical Engineering,
he has extensive experience in electrical engineering and over twenty-
seven years of experience in China commercial business, financial
investment and property development.

Edwin Lo King Yau, aged 52, was appointed an Executive Director of
the Company in August 1999. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Lo holds a Master’s Degree in Applied Finance from
Macquarie University, Australia and is a chartered company secretary. He
had served various executive roles in several companies in Hong Kong
including as company secretary for public listed companies. Mr. Lo is
also an executive director of Allied Group Limited (“AGL"), a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

Tao Tsan Sang, aged 48, was appointed an Executive Director of the
Company in October 2009. He is also the Financial Controller and a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He joined the Company
in May 1994. Mr. Tao holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is an associate of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants. He has extensive experience in
accounting, financial management and China business field.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (conTINUED)

Non-Executive Directors

Lee Seng Hui, aged 44, was appointed the Chairman and a Non-
Executive Director of the Company in April 2007. He is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lee graduated from the Law
School of the University of Sydney with Honours. Previously, he worked
with Baker & McKenzie and N M Rothschild & Sons (Hong Kong) Limited.
Mr. Lee is also the chief executive and an executive director of each of
AGL and APL, both are substantial shareholders of the Company. He
is a non-executive director of each of APAC Resources Limited (“APAC
Resources”), Mount Gibson Iron Limited (“Mount Gibson”) and Tanami
Gold NL (“Tanami Gold"), the shares of Mount Gibson and Tanami Gold
are listed on the Australian Securities Exchange. He is a cousin of Mr.
Patrick Lee Seng Wei (the Managing Director of the Company).

Moses Cheng Mo Chi, aged 63, was appointed an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company in May 1997 and was re-designated
as a Non-Executive Director of the Company in September 2004. He is
the senior partner of P. C. Woo & Co., a firm of solicitors and notaries in
Hong Kong, and also one of the Company’s solicitors. He is the Chairman
of the Advisory Committee on Post-office Employment for Former Chief
Executives and Politically Appointed Officials, Chairman of the Advisory
Committee on Post-service Employment of Civil Servants, Chairman of
the Education Commission and also Chairman of the Process Review
Panel for the Securities and Futures Commission. He is a member of the
Aviation Development Advisory Committee and a member of the Steering
Committee on Strategic Review on Healthcare Manpower Planning and
Professional Development. Dr. Cheng is the Founder Chairman of the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors Limited of which he is currently the
Honorary President and Chairman Emeritus. He served as a member of
the Legislative Council of Hong Kong from 1991 to 1995 and Chairman
of the Council and Court of the Hong Kong Baptist University between
1997 and 2006. He also serves on the boards of various listed companies
in Hong Kong and overseas, both as independent non-executive director
and non-executive director, including ARA Asset Management Limited,
China Mobile Limited, China Resources Enterprise, Limited, Hong Kong
Television Network Limited (formerly known as City Telecom (H.K.)
Limited), Guangdong Investment Limited, K. Wah International Holdings
Limited, Kader Holdings Company Limited, Liu Chong Hing Investment
Limited and Towngas China Company Limited. He was previously an
independent non-executive director of ARA Asset Management (Fortune)
Limited (the manager of Fortune Real Estate Investment Trust which
is dually listed in Hong Kong and Singapore), Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited and China COSCO Holdings Company Limited
respectively.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (conTINUED)

Non-Executive Directors (continued)

Lee Shu Yin, aged 46, was appointed a Non-Executive Director of
the Company in March 2011. He holds a Master’s Degree in Finance
from the London Business School, and Bachelor of Arts and Bachelor
of Science Degrees from Stanford University. Mr. Lee is a Chartered
Financial Analyst charterholder. He has over twenty years of experience
in corporate finance, investment and management. Mr. Lee is currently
the chief investment officer of Grand River Properties (China) Ltd., a
Shanghai-based real estate investment consulting company that he
co-founded in 2003, and also an executive of PGR Asian RE Fund GP,
Ltd. which manages a property-related investment account of a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. He previously held various positions as
a vice president and director in the Asian Equities division of JP Morgan
Securities Limited / Robert Fleming Securities while based in London,
New York and Boston and as an executive director of Goldman Sachs
International in Hong Kong.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Francis J. Chang Chu Fai, aged 58, was appointed an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company in September 2004. He holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Commerce from Concordia University in Montreal,
Canada since 1976 and a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
from York University in Toronto, Canada since 1977. He has over thirty-
five years of experience in banking, corporate finance, investment
and management and has held various executive positions at financial
institutions and directorships of listed companies. Mr. Chang is currently
the managing director of Ceres Consultancy Limited and a registered
person under the Securities and Futures Ordinance. He is also the deputy
chairman and an independent non-executive director of Allied Overseas
Limited; an independent non-executive director of APAC Resources; and
the vice chairman and an executive director of Royale Furniture Holdings
Limited.

64 KLZHBEHREARAR Tian An China Investments Company Limited



EEgRSE
Directors’ Report

BEENRGREBAEBZEAER @)

BYHITESH)

E2& BERAt - R-_ZT-TFENAKE
RERKRRZEUIFNTES - WAL
ERETEN - WABEEERHER - &L
AR LEBEHRRREBRAR( LEBRKK])
CEERMNEBEEFEEZBEZREIER -
EEERRA—HIEREEEY TR  BX
FHEMBEHE=KITENRF » WIA/R
NRAEFIGEREMBARXILPEEEEES
RAB(SUEPBEERE ) 2 BILIFATES -
SERENEGERABTERLETZE IR EH
B REIEME  BIEE EZRFIM
IR

HeEL RFItEE R-_TTOFNLAE
RERKRRZEUIFATES - WA RE
MARBZBEBLEMN - DRI REMER
SR RBBEHMAGEREE - KA
% B MBEEUREBEBERK
BRETHEREELR Y ETRBFBLEIN
ZEBREFMERA R EMAF - BEE
BRRLZMNBREZRARIAZEITE
FITHAREL ©

BB BFEOTA K R—AAhF+—A
BEERRRRZBUIFANTES  IN_-_F
TMFANARERERRRZIFMITES » BN
“ERHFLARAARRRIZIEMITESTHER
BIYFRTESR - REENVEMNERAE - I
BERRREBESZLEN - TRESRMNREEZ
FRENERS - WIRABBHNEREE - WAFMHR
RENERE P2 B o

N\

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (conTINUED)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (continued)

Jin Hui Zhi, aged 52, was appointed an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in April 2010. He holds a Master’s Degree in
Business Administration. He has extensive experience in the business
market. Mr. Jin is currently the chairman of Shanghai Horizon Investment
Co. Ltd. (“Shanghai Horizon") and the deputy president of the Youth
Entrepreneur Association of Shanghai. Shanghai Horizon is a company
principally engaged in the investment of three major industries, namely
bio-engineering, commercial real estate and medical. He is also an
independent non-executive director of ChinaVision Media Group Limited
("ChinaVision Media”), a former non wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. Mr. Jin was formerly chief member of Youth Work Ministry,
chief member and deputy director of Research Department, member
of Standing Committee and minister of Youth Work Ministry of China
Communist Youth League Shanghai Committee.

Ngai Wah Sang, aged 54, was appointed an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in September 2004. He holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Science from the University of London in United Kingdom and
is a fellow of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong
respectively. He has broad experience in auditing, accounting, financial
management and dealing with business development and investments
and previously worked for international accounting firms and listed
companies in Hong Kong and overseas. Mr. Ngai is currently the deputy
chairman and the chief executive officer of Earnest Investments Holdings
Limited.

Lisa Yang Lai Sum, aged 46, was appointed an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company in November 1999 and was re-
designated as a Non-Executive Director of the Company in September
2004. She was re-designated from a Non-Executive Director to an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company in July 2007. She
graduated from the University of Sydney with a Bachelor’s Degree in Law
and Economics and is also qualified as a solicitor in Australia and England.
She is a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong and a consultant of ONC
Lawyers.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (conTINUED)

Senior Management

Foley Cheung Chun Pan, aged 42, is the Director of Fund and
Investment Division, and the General Manager of Sales and Marketing
Department of the Group. He joined the Group in August 2008. He
is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Cheung
holds a Master’s Degree in Global Management and E-Commerce
from The University of Hong Kong and a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from University of Strathclyde, United Kingdom. He has
over eighteen years of experience in China real estate business.

Dai Hong Liang, aged 44, is the General Manager of the Southern
China Region. He re-joined the Group in April 2009 and was previously
the Acting General Manager of the Fuzhou Region from December 2003
to November 2005. He is also a director of a subsidiary of the Company.
Mr. Dai holds a Bachelor Degree of Architecture and a Master’s Degree
in Finance. He has over eighteen years of experience in the field of
investment in China.

Song Zhu Feng, aged 52, is the General Manager of the Contracts
Department of the Group. He joined the Group in December
2003. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Song graduated from The Civil Engineering Department of Tsing
Hua University in Beijing with a Bachelor’s Degree in Engineering. He has
over twenty years of experience in the fields of engineering and property
development.

Cindy Yung Yee Mei, aged 47, was appointed the Company
Secretary of the Company in March 2004. She is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. She is an associate of The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (“AGM") has an unexpired service contract with the
Group which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

All the Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive
Directors ("INEDs"”)) were appointed for a specific term of two years
which shall continue until 31st December, 2014 but subject to the
relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or any other applicable
laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from their office.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

At 31st December, 2012, Messrs. Lee Seng Hui and Ma Sun, Directors,
had the following interests in the shares of the Company and its associated
corporation, within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO"), as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO:

L5
ERITRAZ
BROBEDL
BERGZEE  Approximate % of
EEHE NCIECE Number of  the relevant issued EEME
Name of Directors Name of companies shares held share capital Nature of interests
TR IE /] 705,969,096 46.85% Hhs
Lee Seng Hui the Company (K1) Other interests
(Note 1)
A KRR B AT 495,000,000 75.00% HAth iz
Q=¥ V=) (Hiat2) Other interests
Allied Cement (Note 2)
Holdings Limited
("ACHL")
SR ZA/NG| 47,945 0.003% BN
Ma Sun the Company Personal interests
(NERBEEASHREER)
(held as beneficial owner)
Brat - Notes:

1. FEREALMIRBELLRIREBLEER ABEERE
#tLee and Lee TrustZfE7EA ° BEEHIFHHE
SEARAR([BAEER]) B 3EITIRA4965.00%
R (BIESRE R E 2 MARER) AR IEES
A EEBBEERTAI7%ER B ATMS
HE (BB BRARATREA AR R Z RN 2w o

2. ENFTRERENARB Z#EED  RREEES
BEKE(RARRZIFZENERRME LR
AR ZHEEE (BERES B GAEXV
#8)) 2z Beintas o

3. LiPRERmBEIA -

1.

Mr. Lee Seng Hui together with Ms. Lee Su Hwei and Mr. Lee Seng Huang are
the trustees of Lee and Lee Trust, being a discretionary trust. They together
owned approximately 65.00% interests in the issued share capital of Allied
Group Limited (“AGL") (inclusive of Mr. Lee Seng Hui’s personal interests)
and were therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares of the Company
in which AGL was interested through Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited, its
74.97%-owned subsidiary.

Mr. Lee Seng Hui, by virtue of his interests in the Company, is deemed to
be interested in the shares of ACHL, a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and therefore an associated corporation of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

All interests stated above represent long positions.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (conTiNUED)

Save as disclosed above, at 31st December, 2012, none of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO,
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) .

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the year and up to the date of this report, the following Directors
(not being the INEDs) are considered to have interests in the businesses
listed below which compete or are likely to compete with the businesses
of the Group pursuant to the Listing Rules as set out below:

1. Mr. Lee Seng Hui is a director of APL which, through certain of its
subsidiaries, is partly engaged in the businesses of money lending,
property development and investment;

2. Messrs. Lee Seng Hui and Edwin Lo King Yau are directors of AGL
which, through certain of its subsidiaries, is partly engaged in the
businesses of money lending, property development and investment.
Mr. Edwin Lo King Yau is a director of AG Capital Limited (a
subsidiary of AGL) which is partly engaged in the business of money
lending; and

3. Mr. Lee Seng Hui is one of the trustees of Lee and Lee Trust which
is a deemed substantial shareholder of each of AGL, APL and
SHK which, through their subsidiaries, are partly engaged in the
businesses of money lending, property development and investment.

Although the above mentioned Directors have competing interests in
other companies by virtue of their respective common directorship,
they will fulfil their fiduciary duties in order to ensure that they will act
in the best interest of the Shareholders and the Company as a whole
at all times. Hence, the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of such
companies.

As stated in the 2011 annual report, Mr. Ng Qing Hai, a former Director
of the Company, is a director of ChinaVision Media which, together with
its subsidiaries, were partly engaged in the business of distribution of
cement. As at 31st December, 2012, ChinaVision Media together with
its subsidiaries had ceased to engage in the business of distribution of
cement.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance, to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which the Directors had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS

At 31st December, 2012, the following Shareholders had interests in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

BERGREERG2HE
Number of shares and underlying shares held
BARER TR
(LBHEBA (Z1E 1t5E
FHEAR) ZHER) ERTRAZ
Personal Corporate BABEDH
Interests Interests Approximate
(held as (interest of HitER ERasE % of the
REZRE beneficial controlled Other Total relevant issued
Name of Shareholders owner) corporation) Interests Interests share capital
A (BB ERAT([BamE]) = 705,969,096 = 705,969,096 46.85%
Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited (“APL") (Hizt1) (he2)
(Note 1) (Note 2)
HeEBARAR([HMERE]) - 705,969,096 = 705,969,096 46.85%
Allied Group Limited (“AGL") (H1:23) (H1522)
(Note 3) (Note 2)
Lee and Lee Trust - 705,969,096 - 705,969,096 46.85%
(Ki:24) (Ki:22)
(Note 4) (Note 2)
Penta Investment Advisers Limited (“Penta”) - - 448,702,476 448,702,476 29.78%
(AREEBEA (Ki:25)
h¥E) (Note 5)
(held as
investment
manager)
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FERRRHMALTZHER 2 SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS (conTINUED)
BERBRAEBRS 28 H
Number of shares and underlying shares held
8 AR EE R
(UEREEA (ZEE HER
505EER) ZHER) ERITRAZ
Personal Corporate BABAL
Interests Interests Approximate
(held as (interest of Hitggs gyt % of the
EEA beneficial controlled Other Total relevant issued
Name of Shareholders owner) corporation) Interests Interests share capital
Penta Master Fund, Limited 125,237,440 - - 125,237,440 8.31%
(Hizt6)
(Note 6)
Penta Asia Long/Short Fund, Ltd. 135,417,650 - - 135,417,650 8.99%
(Ki:27)
(Note 7)
AREEERAR ( [2E]) = 175,477,800 = 175,477,800 11.65%
The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (H7:28)
("Goldman Sachs") (Note 8)
IGM Financial Inc. (“IGM") - 75,364,000 - 75,364,000 5.00%
Power Financial Corporation - 75,387,000 - 75,387,000 5.00%
("Power Financial”) (B1i#9)
(Note 9)
Power Corporation of Canada - 75,387,000 - 75,387,000 5.00%
("Power Corporation”) (Biaz10)
(Note 10)
Gelco Enterprises Ltd (“Gelco”) - 75,387,000 - 75,387,000 5.00%
(Hiaz11)
(Note 11)
Nordex Inc. (“Nordex") - 75,387,000 - 75,387,000 5.00%
(fiat12)
(Note 12)
Paul G. Desmarais - 75,387,000 - 75,387,000 5.00%
(f1at13)
(Note 13)
Hiat - Notes:
1. Bz AFine Class Holdings Limited Z 2 & 1. The interests was held by China Elite Holdings Limited (“China Elite”), a wholly-
/A F]China Elite Holdings Limited ([ China Elite])#f owned subsidiary of Fine Class Holdings Limited which in turn was a wholly-owned
B MAERABEHEZZEWNBAR » e subsidiary of APL. APL was therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares in
I EE W AR VEE A China Elite T B 2 BX 1D 2 #E2s © which China Elite was interested.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

2.

The figure refers to the same interests of APL in 705,969,096 shares.

AGL owned approximately 74.97% interests in the issued share capital of APL
and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares in which APL was
interested.

Mr. Lee Seng Hui, a Director, together with Ms. Lee Su Hwei and Mr.
Lee Seng Huang are the trustees of Lee and Lee Trust, being a discretionary trust.
They together owned approximately 65.00% interests in the issued share capital of
AGL (inclusive of Mr. Lee Seng Hui's personal interests) and were therefore deemed
to have an interest in the shares in which AGL was interested.

These include (i) an interest in 423,837,476 shares; and (ii) an interest in unlisted
cash settled derivatives of the Company equivalent to 24,865,000 underlying
shares of the Company.

These duplicated parts of the interests of Penta and include (i) an interest in
117,460,440 shares; and (ii) an interest in unlisted cash settled derivatives of the
Company equivalent to 7,777,000 underlying shares of the Company.

These duplicated parts of the interests of Penta held through its controlled
management account, Penta Asia Long/Short Fund, Ltd. and include (i) an interest
in 124,584,650 shares; and (i) an interest in unlisted cash settled derivatives of the
Company equivalent to 10,833,000 underlying shares of the Company.

Goldman Sachs (through various of its affiliates including Sky (Delaware) LLC,
Sky (Cayman) Ltd. and Elevatech Limited) was deemed to be economically
interested in (i) 113,077,800 shares; (i) security interests equivalent to 31,200,000
shares; and (iii) unlisted cash settled derivatives of the Company equivalent to
31,200,000 underlying shares of the Company as at 31st December, 2012.

Power Financial owned approximately 56.37% interests in the issued share capital
of IGM and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares in which IGM
was interested. Additionally, Power Financial was deemed to have an interest in
23,000 shares held by Great-West Lifeco Inc., a non wholly-owned subsidiary of
Power Financial.

Power Corporation, through 171263 Canada Inc. (@ wholly-owned subsidiary of
Power Corporation), owned approximately 66.26% interests in the issued share
capital of Power Financial and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the
shares in which Power Financial was interested.

Gelco owned approximately 53.74% interests in the issued share capital of Power
Corporation and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares in which
Power Corporation was interested.

Nordex owned approximately 94.95% interests in the issued share capital of Gelco
and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares in which Gelco was
interested.

Mr. Paul G. Desmarais owned approximately 68.00% interests in the issued share
capital of Nordex and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares in

which Nordex was interested.

All interests stated above as at 31st December, 2012 represent long positions as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 31st
January, 2011 and the 2011 Annual Report of the Company, the
Company entered into a renewed sharing of administrative services
and management services agreement (“Services Agreement”) with
AGL on 31st January, 2011, pursuant to which the Company agreed
to renew and extend the terms of the sharing of administrative
services and management services agreement dated 31st January,
2008 for a period of three years commencing from 1st January,
2011 to 31st December, 2013 and to reimburse AGL the actual costs
incurred in respect of the administrative services, which included the
corporate secretarial services, provision of registered office address,
office space, utilities, courier and delivery, telephone (including
international telephone), internet, photocopying and other ancillary
office services provided by AGL to the Group (“Administrative
Services”) and management services, which included the
management, consultancy, strategic and business advice services
provided by the senior management and the selected staff of AGL to
the Group (“Management Services”).

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 8th
October, 2012, ACHL, a 75%-owned subsidiary of the Company
and the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, has entered into an agreement (“ACHL Services
Agreement”) with AGL in respect of the sharing of the administrative
services and management services on 8th October, 2012. A
supplemental letter was entered into between the Company and
AGL on 8th October, 2012, pursuant to which the estimated time
devoted by certain individual members of the senior management
and the selected staff of AGL on ACHL and its subsidiaries (collectively,
“ACHL Group”) is excluded from the estimated percentage of time
devoted by them to the affairs of the Group as set out in the Services
Agreement dated 31st January, 2011.

Since AGL is a substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company through its interests in its subsidiary, APL, AGL
is a connected person of the Company. Accordingly, the entering
into of the Services Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company under Rule 14A.14 of the Listing Rules. The transaction
regarding the sharing of the Management Services contemplated
under the Services Agreement is subject to the reporting, annual
review and announcement requirements but is exempt from
the independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the
Listing Rules, while the transaction regarding the sharing of the
Administrative Services is exempt from the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Rules 14A.31(8) and 14A.33(2) of the Listing Rules.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, the INEDs have
reviewed the transactions regarding the sharing of the Management
Services and have confirmed that the transactions were:

(i) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company;

(i) conducted on normal commercial terms; and

(i) entered into in accordance with the terms of the Services
Agreement governing the transactions regarding the sharing
of the Management Services and on terms that were fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the above
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™). The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing
his findings in respect of and confirmed the above continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in the Annual Report
in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules, details of the Services
Agreement and the aggregate amount of the costs payable by
the Group (excluding ACHL Group) in respect of the Management
Services provided by AGL under the Services Agreement and the
costs payable by ACHL Group in respect of the management services
provided by AGL under the ACHL Services Agreement for the year
ended 31st December, 2012 of HK$18,150,000.00 are required to
be included in this report in accordance with Rule 14A.45 of the
Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 31st
January, 2011 and the 2011 Annual Report of the Company, the
Company as customer entered into an insurance brokerage services
agreement (“Insurance Brokerage Services Agreement”) with
Sun Hung Kai Insurance Consultants Limited (“SHK Insurance”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of SHK which is in turn a non wholly-
owned subsidiary of APL (a substantial shareholder (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company), as service provider on 31st January,
2011, pursuant to which SHK Insurance agreed to provide packaged
insurance brokerage services to the Group for a term of two years
commencing from 1st January, 2011 to 31st December, 2012 by
assisting the Group in procuring insurance policies (including but
not limited to directors’ and officers’ liability, property, business
interruption, motor vehicle, contractor all risks, public liability and
employees benefits and compensation) to be taken out with third
party insurers (“Insurance Brokerage Services”).

Since SHK and SHK Insurance are associates of APL, SHK and SHK
Insurance are regarded as connected persons of the Company.
Accordingly, the entering into of the Insurance Brokerage Services
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
constituted continuing connected transactions for the Company
under Rule 14A.14 of the Listing Rules, which are subject to the
reporting, annual review and announcement requirements but are
exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, the INEDs have reviewed
the transactions contemplated under the Insurance Brokerage
Services Agreement and have confirmed that the transactions were:

(i) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company;

(i) conducted on normal commercial terms; and

(iii) entered into in accordance with the terms of the Insurance
Brokerage Services Agreement governing the transactions
regarding the Insurance Brokerage Services and on terms that
were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders
as a whole.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the above
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by HKICPA. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing
his findings in respect of and confirmed the above continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in the Annual Report
in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules, details of the Insurance
Brokerage Services Agreement and the aggregate amount of the
Insurance Brokerage Services for the year ended 31st December,
2012 of HK$1,493,905.57 are required to be included in this report
in accordance with Rule 14A.45 of the Listing Rules.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 29th
January, 2013, subsequent to the year end date, following the
expiry of the Insurance Brokerage Services Agreement, the Company
entered into an insurance brokerage services agreement (“New
Insurance Brokerage Services Agreement”) with SHK Insurance on
29th January, 2013, pursuant to which SHK Insurance agreed to
provide Insurance Brokerage Services to the Group for a term of two
years commencing from 1st January, 2013 to 31st December, 2014.

Since SHK and SHK Insurance are connected persons of the
Company, the entering into of the New Insurance Brokerage
Services Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
constituted continuing connected transactions for the Company
under Rule 14A.14 of the Listing Rules, which are subject to the
reporting, annual review and announcement requirements but are
exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Listing Rules. In accordance with the requirements of Rules
14A.45 and 14A.46 of the Listing Rules, details of the continuing
connected transactions will be included in the next published annual
report and accounts of the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

As disclosed in the joint announcement of the Company and ACHL
(@ 75%-owned subsidiary of the Company) dated 15th February, 2012
and the 2011 Annual Report of the Company, F/8¥A& /K EHR AR
(Shanghai Allied Cement Co., Ltd.) (“Shanghai SAC"), a 60%-owned
subsidiary of All-Shanghai Inc. which in turn is a 83.33%-owned
subsidiary of ACHL and its another 40% is owned by & ser 1 (£H)
#8/2@) (Shanghai Building Material (Group) General Company) (“Shanghai
Building Material”), (then owned by F/&/KJE/ (Shanghai Cement
Factory), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shanghai Building Material)
entered into (BANER [HREBIER | & 1E1H:%) (Bailonggang Project
Construction Cooperation Agreement) (“Cooperation Agreement”)
and (BERNFRZAE QT (RE]) i) (Principle Agreement for the
Establishment of the JV Company) (“JV Principle Agreement”) with
Shanghai Building Material on 13th February, 2012, pursuant to which a
joint venture company (“JV Company”) was proposed to be established
as a limited liability company in the PRC by Shanghai Building Material
and Shanghai SAC for the development of new cement production
facilities at Bailonggang, Pudong, Shanghai, PRC (“Transaction”). Upon
establishment, the JV Company will be held as to 50% by Shanghai
Building Material and 50% by Shanghai SAC.

Since Shanghai Building Material holds (then deemed to have) 40% equity
interest in Shanghai SAC which is a subsidiary of ACHL and the Company,
Shanghai Building Material is a connected person of the Company.
Accordingly, the Transaction constituted a connected transaction for
the Company and was subject to the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing
Rules. Since the applicable percentage ratios (as defined in the Listing
Rules) for the Transaction were more than 5% but less than 25%, it also
constituted a discloseable transaction for the Company under the Listing
Rules. The ordinary resolution approving the Cooperation Agreement, the
JV Principle Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
was passed by the independent shareholders of the Company by poll at
the extraordinary general meeting held on 2nd April, 2012.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers and the aggregate purchases attributable to the
Group's five largest suppliers were approximately 20% and 26% of the
Group's sales and purchases respectively.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (coNTINUED)

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders, which to the
knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital, had a beneficial interest in any of the Group'’s five
largest suppliers and customers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

During the year ended 31st December, 2012, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s shares.

DONATIONS

The Group made charitable donations of HK$306,000 during the year.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 35 to 57.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float as required under the
Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the AGM to re-appoint Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

oo

-

Lee Seng Hui
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22nd March, 2013
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TO THE MEMBERS OF
TIAN AN CHINA INVESTMENTS COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tian An China
Investments Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred as the “Group”) set out on pages 80 to 219, which
comprise the consolidated and Company’s statements of financial position
as at 31st December, 2012, and the consolidated income statement,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (conTiNUED)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st
December, 2012 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

D@,éo‘rt{e_ Twe ke Ttuwatin

DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22nd March, 2013
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
(BE-Z——F+-_A=t+—HItFE)
(For the year ended 31st December, 2012)

2012 2011
bz FET FAT
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
(&%)
(Restated)
A Revenue 6 1,410,086 1,986,707
HEMRA Cost of sales (921,644) (1,248,602)
EF Gross profit 488,442 738,105
H U A B W am Other income and gains 7 142,885 116,742
mMEEDHER Marketing and distribution expenses (41,399) (50,006)
THEHR Administrative expenses (307,678) (298,622)
Hih2iFE R Other operating expenses (35,091) (49,644)
HEBEBEREAREBEZ Net decrease in fair value of held-for-trading
SRR investments (209) (3,808)
BRIVHEFEERES Fair value gain on transfer of inventories
HEYEZ AREE of completed properties to investment
Wz properties 17 37,734 12,275
BN S BB N Increase in fair value of investment properties 17 515,717 296,094
BRTIYHERFE Write-down of inventories of completed
BB properties (14,139) (7,245)
RIZER (EHE) (Allowance for) recoveries of bad and
&[] doubtful debts (35,627) 51,266
R EEH Amortisation of properties for development (102,968) (57,083)
& —RH B AR 2 Wk Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 8 - 118,785
B A BN Finance costs 9 (181,311) (151,242)
FE(HEE S D B E1E Share of loss of associates 61) (76)
JE 15 H R A B A Share of profit of jointly controlled entities 245,009 418,350
R B4 A Profit before tax 711,304 1,133,891
iia Taxation 10 (309,654) (386,451)
A JE s A Profit for the year 11 401,650 747,440
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Consolidated Income Statement
(HEZZ——-F+ZA=+—HILFE)
(For the year ended 31st December, 2012)

2012 2011
BiEE FHET FAT
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
(E31))
(Restated)
RNEZ MG Profit for the year attributable to:

ZiN/NG] S Owners of the Company 401,403 747,019
FEIE AR M 2 Non-controlling interests 247 421
401,650 747,440
Bl P
HK cents HK cents

TR F Earnings per share 14
EZN Basic 26.64 49.58
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REETHKSER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(BE—Z——F+-A=+—HI5E)
(For the year ended 31st December, 2012)

2012 2011
FET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
(E51)
(Restated)
REE R A Profit for the year 401,650 747,440
Emrm(ER)Was Other comprehensive (expense) income
MEBINEISFIEA 2 Exchange differences arising on translation of
MEHER foreign operations 1,034 545,225
FEIEERZERIAT 2 Share of other comprehensive (expense)
Hitnem(ER) ke income of jointly controlled entities (@) 65,106
AHEEREANEBEC Decrease in fair value of available-for-sale
> investments (10,190) (14,002)
A ERE 2 BEEE Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments
ENOEEER reclassified to profit or loss 8,987 =
R EYERFFTEIR Z HiE Reserves released upon disposal of properties - 53
RS — R B A Ak Other reserves realised on disposal of
R 2 B a subsidiary - 30,843
AR EYER Surplus on revaluation of properties upon
M E AR transfer to investment properties - 5,632
NEEzHME2E(ER)Wzm  Other comprehensive (expense) income for the year (173) 632,857
REE2EW R Total comprehensive income for the year 401,477 1,380,297
AN BREREG S Total comprehensive income attributable to:
AR AR Owners of the Company 401,938 1,356,804
JEERR S Non-controlling interests (461) 23,493
401,477 1,380,297
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e M BRR K
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(R=ZE—=—F+=-A=+—H)
At 31st December, 2012

—E——F —T——%F —F——%F
+=A=+—H8 +=A=+—H —A—H
31st December, 31st December, 1st January,

2012 2011 2011
BitaE FET FATT AT
NOTES HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
==270)) (E51)
(Restated) (Restated)
FRBEE Non-current assets
ME - WENEE Property, plant and equipment 16 947,755 799,915 639,205
W EEYI 2 « RS N 5% Deposits for acquisition of
ZIRE property, plant and equipment 84,306 2,241 41
B Investment properties 17 8,020,410 6,615,050 6,651,340
RPERYZE Properties for development 18 7,014,323 4,668,777 3,586,628
WES TR Deposits for acquisition of
2RE properties for development 195,345 1,767,902 1,426,113
THE R Prepaid lease payments on
TEHEER land use rights 19 107,626 110,523 90,753
RSN T 2 Interests in associates 21 7,271 7,332 7,408
RERIZEH A2 Interests in jointly controlled
P entities 22 1,239,338 829,101 637,261
RUE KX Loans receivable 30 33,068 - 47,059
A ERE Available-for-sale investments 23 130,828 130,439 112,340
[ Goodwill 24 640 640 640
EEFIEE & Deferred tax assets 43 123,455 74,927 37,559
17,904,365 15,006,847 13,236,347
RENEE Current assets
MEFE Inventories of properties 25
—ZEH — under development 1,802,616 1,146,044 1,169,064
—B%T — completed 2,111,133 1,675,850 601,011
HibFE Other inventories 26 75,591 63,097 43,994
i NETSE Amounts due from associates 27 2,563 2,601 3,244
HFEEHA A Amounts due from jointly
R controlled entities 28 495,822 395,031 101,503
FEFERRPIRIR Amounts due from non-controlling
£ shareholders 29 12,767 12,767 12,166
FEWE Loans receivable 30 148,883 209,850 160,505
B 5 N EAMEWERZ « Trade and other receivables,
e MIEM R deposits and prepayments 31 473,894 665,665 1,080,966
THIE R Prepaid lease payments on
TANHEER land use rights 19 2,745 2,638 1,824
EEBEBERIR Financial assets designated
AnEERE as at fair value through
ZBREE profit or loss 32 308,956 351,167 35,608
HAb K Other structured deposits 33 216,613 189,225 =
BIEEERE Held-for-trading investments 34 17,782 15,019 24,131
FESFLIA Prepaid tax 4,002 9,249 15,810
PRI 2 88171738 Pledged bank deposits 49 80,340 52,922 288,183
RITEFRES Bank balances and cash 1,206,762 2,234,901 2,923,509
6,960,469 7,026,026 6,461,518
DIEAEEEE Assets classified as held for sale 35 - 853,008 736,113
6,960,469 7,879,034 7,197,631
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GEMBERRE
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

(R=F——F+ZA=+—H)
At 31st December, 2012

—E-—F —T—% —E—%F
+=A=+—8 +=-A=+—H —A—H
31st December, 31st December, 1st January,
\ 2012 2011 2011
BisE FET FATT AT
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(&%) (&%)
(Restated) (Restated)
IR Current liabilities
825 ZER Trade, bills and
HAbFETERFK other payables 36 2,816,611 2,376,776 1,262,893
BERS Pre-sale deposits 291,209 84,910 482,199
HIBEE Tax liabilities 638,314 637,644 578,552
ST FEFE IR AR R Dividends payable to
B non-controlling shareholders 1,150 5,972 -
SHEES Membership debentures 42 26,527 4,312 -
P=R=Eo Interest-bearing borrowings 39 1,398,006 1,745,355 1,139,844
B BER Interest-free borrowings 40 663,447 34,637 26,652
5,835,264 4,889,606 3,490,140
DIEABFEEEEY Liabilities associated with assets
iEE NN classified as held for sale 35 - 217,347 392,602
5,835,264 5,106,953 3,882,742
REBEEZE Net current assets 1,125,205 2,772,081 3,314,889
BEEBRREBAERE Total assets less current liabilities 19,029,570 17,778,928 16,551,236
BARREHE Capital and reserves
H§$ Share capital 37 301,354 301,354 301,354
e Reserves 38 13,157,031 12,847,162 11,641,035
PIN/N THQ?FEEZ Equity attributable to owners of
R the Company 13,458,385 13,148,516 11,942,389
Itz H%zasm Non-controlling interests 953,929 785,323 767,658
A Total equity 14,412,314 13,933,839 12,710,047
#/ALEJJEF Non-current liabilities
Mt B e Interest-bearing borrowings 39 1,941,966 1,596,980 1,761,137
*%TH)E',Z Deferred rental income from
He g A a tenant 41 79,913 88,792 93,074
Tﬂﬁz?ﬂ‘i\iﬁz‘i\ Rental deposits from tenants 27,573 24,499 18,065
@G Membership debentures 42 23,646 43,066 -
Lﬁlﬁ%{ Deferred tax liabilities 43 2,544,158 2,091,752 1,968,913
4,617,256 3,845,089 3,841,189
19,029,570 17,778,928 16,551,236

HEREB0AE 2198 2 ir & MFRERER
:T—:E_ﬂf—%fﬁi‘“§$A i8R
TR YHTMIESFARE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 80 to 219 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22nd March, 2013
and are signed on its behalf by:

Patrick Lee Seng Wei Edwin Lo King Yau

R BE
Director Director
EZE EF
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~ A BB R R &
COMPANY’'S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(R=ZF—=—F+=-A=+—H)
At 31st December, 2012

2012 2011
bz FET T
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
FEREEE Non-current assets
M - BB KRG Property, plant and equipment 16 20,416 19,138
R B A E) 2 s Interests in subsidiaries 20 4,603,784 3,039,891
NI Amounts due from subsidiaries 20 6,848,895 -
PRI REIEE A7) 2 s Interests in jointly controlled entities 22 10,906 10,906
11,484,001 3,069,935
REEE Current assets
HbEUWEBRF ~ 248 MTFE{TF Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 1,549 2,948
NGV Amounts due from subsidiaries 20 - 7,512,387
HEEHIA TR K Amounts due from jointly controlled entities 1,553 1,553
RITEFERES Bank balances and cash 74,182 129,968
77,284 7,646,856
REBEE Current liabilities
HibEBREK Other payables 11,978 9,387
HIEAE Tax liabilities 31,191 30,021
{OPSRIEEEN Interest-bearing borrowings 39 160,000 200,000
% BB Interest-free borrowings 40 81,401 299,583
284,570 538,991
HRE(EB)EESE Net current (liabilities) assets (207,286) 7,107,865
BEERRBAS Total assets less current liabilities 11,276,715 10,177,800
BRA R Capital and reserves
P& Share capital 37 301,354 301,354
B Reserves 38 10,975,361 9,876,446
11,276,715 10,177,800

Patrick Lee Seng Wei
FHE
Director

EZ

Edwin Lo King Yau

gSHh
Director

EZE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(BE-Z——F+-A=+—HIFE)
For the year ended 31st December, 2012

RARRREL
Attributable to owners of the Company
e B -0 EX
HERE EREE BEEE  TBRE FERER
e Share  Specal  Capital Exchange  Efifie Btk EiHER Non-  BHEE
Share  premium capital redemption translation Revaluation Other  Retained @it controlling Total
capital  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserves  reserves  earnings Total interests  Equity
Thr TEr  TEr  TEr TEr  TEr TR TEr  TEr  TAr  TAn
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
RZE——F-F-8  Atlst/anuary, 2011
(bABIZ3]) (As previously stated) 301,354 3352781 1,417,669 134679 1,238,142 23,201 (61,215) 6,185,978 12,592,589 713,574 13,366,163
SHHREE T2 Effect on changes in accounting
it2) polices (note 2) - - - - (14947) - - (6325 (6502000 (5916)  (656,116)
R-E—%-A-H  Atlst/anuary, 2011
(E31) (As restated) 301,35 3352781 1,417,669 134679 122319 23201 (61,215) 5,550,725 11,942,389 767,658 12,710,047
BEMEE Y Exchange differences arising on
EHEE(E])) translation (Restated) - - - - 52153 - - - 153 8072 545225
ElLRBHAA Share of other comprehensive
ZEMRE income of jointly controlled
W (E30) entities (Restated) - - - - 65,106 - - - 65,106 - 65,106
AHERANLERE  Decrease n fairvalue of
ZRD avallable-for-sale investments - - - - - (14002 - - (14002) - (14002
RLEMERAER Reserves released upon disposal of
BB properties = = = = = = 5 = 5 = 53
RHE-TIMBRRHER Realised on disposal of a subsidiary
(Hi28) (note 8) = = = = = - 30,843 - 30,843 - 30,843
WEEETRANEE  Surplus on revaluation of properties
LEFRHE upon transfer to investment
2% properties - - - - - 5,632 - - 5,632 - 5,632
AEFEH(EF) Profitfor the year (Restated) - - - - - - - IO 4019 a1 747,440
TEERE Total comprehensive income
W (BR) &% (expense) for the year - - - - 587,259 (8,370) 30,89 747,019 1,356,804 23493 1,380,297
WEERBARER?  Realised on disposal of subsidiaries
(Hiz8) (note 8) - - - S AT - - 9,145 - - -
RENE Divicend recognised as distribution - - - - - - - (150677)  (150,677) - (150677)
EARTHE Dividend distributed to non-
Ea RS controlling interests - - - - - - - - - (5,828) (5,828)
R=E——&+-f At 315t December, 2011
=+—H(&5) (Restated) 301,354 3352781 1,417,669 134679 1,801,309 14,831 (30,319) 6,156,212 13,148,516 785323 13,933,839
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mERER® B K
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

(BE_Z——F+-A=+—HLFE)
For the year ended 31st December, 2012

RARRRELS
Attributable to owners of the Company
s 78 -0 EX
HERE ERBE BEEE TBER FERER
R& Share  Special  Capital Exchange  Bfifits  HftfE  ZiEN Non-  FxfE
Share  premium capital redemption translation Revaluation Other  Retained @3t controlling Total
capitll  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserves  reserves  earnings Total  interests  Equity
TER TER TER TER Tir TEr TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
R-B-—E-F-H  AtlstJanuary, 2012
(E30) (Restated) 301,35 3352781 1,417,669 134679 1,801,309 14,831 (30319) 6156212 13148516 785323 13933839
hEREE Y, Bxchange differences arising on
EZE translation - - - - 1,742 - - - 1,78 (708) 1,034
EELREHAT Share of other comprehensive
ZEMRE expense of jointly controlled
B entities - - - - @ = = = ) = 0
AEHERENAER  Decease n fair value of
LR available-for-sale investments - - - - - (10,190) - - (10,190) - (10,190)
A ERE ZRE Impairment loss on
EBEENAE available-for-sale investments
2R reclassified o profit or loss - - - - - 8,987 - - 8,987 - 8,987
REERH Profit for the year - - - - - - - 401,403 401,403 247 401,650
AEE2ENGE(BE)  Total comprehensive income
&% (expense) for the year - - - - 1738 (1,203 - 401403 401938 (461) 401,477
Ey Capital contribution from non-
g controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - - 16,859 16,859
NN Dilution of a subsidiary
(Wita) (Note ) - - - - (13,730) - (16,034) - (29,764) 187,404 157,640
s N b Acquisition of additional interest in
Boves i) asubsiciary (Note b) - - - - 3,741 - G - Qo3 (829 (20209
RENE Dividend recognised as distribution - - - - - - - (60271 (60271) - (60271)
BB FHER Dividend distributed to non-
R RS controling interests - - - - - - - - - (16981 (16981)
it St
t-A=t-H At 31st December, 2012 301,35 3352781 1,417,669 134679 1,793,058 13,628 (52,128) 6,497,344 13,458,385 953929 14,412,314
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AMEB DX

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
(BEZZ——F+ZA=1T—HLFE)
For the year ended 31st December, 2012

it -

88

EENRIERARAR([BEKED)(R=22——
F+-A=t—HAAKEZ—HE2EWBAR)
ZBRHR_E——F— A+ \BRBEREBHAER
SHARAR(T#RA])ERLED - REIB - BA
JK3E 2 165,000,000 4% EIfE0.017 T BY X @A LA &
A%1.008 TTHIER A RS ML E ([IRDEE])
MARET  MBREBROBEENERR ZAEX
TEF %8 5157,640,000/8 7T - IRIDEEE - AEE
REEE KR IEER DL 100% #EE75% ° 1/
78 FE (5 H5 & 7K B & B2 187,404,00058 7T ~ [E 1. )%
&) 1#13,730,00078 7C R TS I F R BN ER
16,034,000/ T HERR I EL(h {748 o

ANER[E 2A20,249,0007 7T 2 35 & A E WE — T B
REIEEIN0% S - ZMBARNPEARLNER
([HRE )KL EYERE - FEERERBRE
HFEE18,215,000457T © MiE A B2 B X FEfH
1%3,741,0007% 7T & X {8 20,249,000 7T 2 6 7 =
£5,775,000/8 ST HER R H M o

Notes:

The shares of Allied Cement Holdings Limited (“ACHL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group as at 31st December 2011, had been listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) with effect from 18th
January, 2012. On the same date, 165,000,000 ordinary shares with a par value of
HK$0.01 each of ACHL were issued at a price of HK$1.00 by way of public offering
and placing (“Share Offer”), the net proceed, after deducting the expenses relating
to the Share Offer, is HK$157,640,000. The Group's percentage of equity interest
in ACHL was diluted from 100% to 75% after the Share Offer. The difference of
HK$16,034,000 between the relevant share of net assets of ACHL amounted to
HK$187,404,000, exchange translation reserve amounted to HK$13,730,000 and
the net proceeds was recognised in other reserves.

The Group acquired an additional 20% interest in a subsidiary with a cash
consideration of HK$20,249,000. The subsidiary is established in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC") and engaged in property investment. The difference
of HK$5,775,000 between the relevant share of net assets by the non-controlling
interests amounted to HK$18,215,000, exchange translation reserve amounted
to HK$3,741,000 of the subsidiary and the consideration of HK$20,249,000 was
recognised in other reserves.

KR BB EAR AT  Tian An China Investments Company Limited



FERERY K
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(BE-Z——F+-A=+—HIFE)
For the year ended 31st December, 2012

2012 2011
BaE FHET THT
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
(&%)
(Restated)
BEXK OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BRA A AR A Profit before taxation 711,304 1,133,891
JEE - Adjustments for:
HAA R IEs Other income and gains
—REWA — Dividend income (9,478) (12,861)
—IRITF R R ERER — Interest income on bank deposits and
A 2 U A loan receivables (45,402) (44,642)
— HE M IEFR — Interest income on other structured
MEMA deposits (10,404) (3,943)
— BB BERERAR — Fair value gain on financial assets
BEREZSHMEE designated as at fair value through
Z AR BEERE profit or loss (13,067) (12,429)
AR ERE ZREEE Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments 8,987 238
BIEEEREAREEZ Net decrease in fair value of held-for-
ey trading investments 209 3,808
—HEP ZEERS A Deferred rental income from a tenant (8,880) (4,282)
B8 T 317 S Fair value gain on transfer of inventories
EREYFEZ of completed properties to investment
N EERE properties (37.734) (12,275)
WEWMEARBEZ Increase in fair value of investment
5 properties (515,717) (296,094)
BRIMERFEZ Write-down of inventories of completed
BIER A properties 14,139 7,245
RIEERYEMR Allowance for (recoveries of) bad and
(Bm) doubtful debts 35,627 (51,266)

HE—FEfEBAR 2 Was Gain on disposal of a subsidiary - (118,785)

FE(RES & R A& 1R Share of loss of associates 61 76

(R L FHEH A R & A Share of profit of jointly controlled entities (245,009) (418,350)

BhE Ak AR Finance costs 181,311 151,242

PTE K Depreciation and amortisation 152,074 101,422

HE RFHYE - BER Gain on disposal and write-off of property,

B 2 W plant and equipment (3,602) (839)

—fEHE R R R ERE Impairment loss of an associate 38 643
ZIEE R EEAIZ Operating cash inflows before movements in

SERTMA working capital 214,457 422,799
YEFEEN Increase in inventories of properties (1,210,214) (899,340)
RREER Y RIEE Increase in properties for development and

FERMEZ deposits for acquisition of properties for

BN development (827,680) (1,303,139)
HihizsEEim Increase in other inventories (12,494) (16,850)
B 5 MEMEWIRTN - Decrease in trade and other receivables,

e MIEN R deposits and prepayments 176,471 391,109
FIEEBRE R Decrease in held-for-trading investments - 5,571
XIRE ZIRITET Decrease (increase) in restricted bank

A (22 0) deposits 24,985 (60,272)
B5  ZBEEHMERIRE  Increase in trade, bills and

Zn other payables 250,815 652,464
BEZRESEMORD) Increase (decrease) in pre-sale deposits 206,187 (186,788)
HP 2 BeESIEM Increase in rental deposits from tenants 3,074 6,434
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FERITRD K

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(BE-Z——F+=-A=+—HIFE)

For the year ended 31st December, 2012

2012 2011
FExT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000
(&%)
(Restated)
BREEERE e Cash used in operations (1,174,399) (988,012)
ST B FTER N g EFE  PRC income tax and Land Appreciation Tax
([ b3 ET ) ("LAT") paid (109,922) (169,797)
R FT SRR T PRC income tax refunded 10 334
AREEXK NET CASH USED IN OPERATING
HEEE ACTIVITIES (1,284,311) (1,157,475)
REXH INVESTING ACTIVITIES
B U F B Interest received 33,763 37,808
Bk B Rz A 7 Dividends received from jointly controlled
E0fiR s entities 206,714 54,067
PR B IS ERLE Dividends received from other investments 2,803 12,861
BEWE  MENEE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (239,530) (57,070)
HEME - BE K Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and
HAEFTS equipment 4,958 4,434
BEREYE Purchase of investment properties (123,171) (116,233)
&R E YRR Proceeds from disposal of investment
EEAE properties, net of business tax 17,382 7,718
AR A A5 A 2= 2[R 422 Capital contribution to jointly controlled
NG entities (238,272) (60,242)
U B R I A A Acquisition of jointly controlled entities (108,799) —
& — R B ARIFTE Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary - 141,182
BEAHEERE Purchase of available-for-sale investments (6,875) (56,599)
EEIRETEABERIEARE[E Purchase of financial assets designated as at
RIBEZSREE fair value through profit or loss (330,864) (816,867)
EMEBETERZTEA Placement of other structured deposits (209,877) (180,723)
HERHEERE Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale
Fri% investments - 25,172
EEBEBREREANER Proceeds from redemption of financial assets
Bz eREERR designated as at fair value through
FrE3KTE profit or loss 386,142 523,057
E At M1 3R 2 FRER Withdrawal of other structured deposits 185,185 =
B E M AT Interest received from other structured
T2 deposits 7,708 -
S E) B A E IR Proceeds from site relocation compensation,
RS net of related expenses - 61,728
ERHEWRBERARZ Deposits received in relation to disposal of
BUEZ £ subsidiaries 182,660 456,067
HENEHIA BIEK Repayment from jointly controlled entities 94 4,262
FEFEA AR R (R R Advances to non-controlling shareholders - (601)
SR ER Loans repaid 166,851 315,713
HTER Loans advanced (143,581) (308,587)
FR{EEM 2 R1T1F 242 Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 8,801 322,266
FVERIR 2 8R771F 5 27F A Placement of pledged bank deposits (36,219) (84,542)
(AR)REREEB NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING
BEFRE ACTIVITIES (234,127) 284,871
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REBRETRD X

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(BE-Z——F+-A=+—HIEE)
For the year ended 31st December, 2012

2012 2011
BaE T FET
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
(&%)
(Restated)
L& T FINANCING ACTIVITIES
AT FE Interest paid (218,221) (174,271)
PR E Dividend paid (60,271) (150,677)
EH%;‘H *RR P ER Dividends paid to non-controlling
shareholders (21,802) -
E%E\*FEJ M@ AT 2 5845MERS  Purchase of additional interest in a subsidiary (20,249) =
KE—TEBATIMRMIEE  Proceeds from Share Offer
FT1S 5008 \ of a subsidiary 157,640 _
%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ)}ﬁm%%ﬁ( New bank and other loans raised 1,456,235 1,390,389
SERIRITTREMER Repayment of bank and other loans (1,458,599) (1,058,873)
RE (B ) FEE Hxﬂxﬁ Advances from (repayment to) non-
&K controlling shareholders 444,936 (1,790)
3'5? Hxﬂxﬁz Capital contribution from non-controlling
shareholders 16,859 -
BS Q HEEBRATIER Advances from jointly controlled entities 183,154 2,888
REFERRIER Advances from associates 720 323
REBEER2EHEFE NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 480,402 7,989
ReRkBELEEER NET DECREASE IN CASH
WA RER AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,038,036) (864,615)
MR—A—BZRER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
Re%EER 1ST JANUARY 2,039,420 2,776,775
HNIE H IR P 7 Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 1,021 127,260
R+=A=+—H=ZHEK  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
HE&ZEEER 31ST DECEMBER 1,002,405 2,039,420
ReRBELEHEER ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH
HEER DT AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
RITEFELRE Bank balances and cash 1,206,762 2,234,901
o RIBE ZIRITEF(ATEE)  Less: restricted bank deposits (Note) (204,357) (229,342)
1,002,405 2,005,559
BFEESBAFELEL Bank balances and cash included in assets
BITHEFRIRE classified as held for sale 35 - 33,861
1,002,405 2,039,420

Hrat - RREZRIT/EFEIRN

RITAETF RBER RN

RTEFRRS - %A
TERYIFEZREIER ©

Note: The restricted bank deposits are included in bank balances and cash which can
only be applied in the designated property development projects.
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REMB®RRKE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BE-Z——F+-A=+—HIFE)
For the year ended 31st December, 2012

1. #¥E

AATA—MESEEMRIZ AR LHAR
AT ERAEB AT o AATEMHBE
R R E B AR SR AER ATE
¥4 | — e -

AEBEEBRRFEVERZERIRE - HENE
PR SR BRRSEE - RIUVEE
EMEEE RRERR - ARRZEER R
ARB(TARE]) - AARKEZ KA %7519
EREARAMBE(HEDEE - GEMHHR
RABRBEE (BT EY  BRARBNY
REBEMTR - ZEEIARF 2 LWt
ARRIEE([EZ)R/ETLIEREELZ
2HE% -

2. ERAMIREEZITERMBR
HEA(ERMBREER L)

RAFE - AEBEEERTHEEEEHEA
B EBREEMAR )G BB RS
B2 (3T

BEeERF125% EREHE - WA E

EEIEN

BRMBREENETR BE-cHEERS
EEIES

BBGIERE 15 ERR-T——FRHHES
CHEN MBRERI_STNEE

“T—EREER
SRR

1. GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong
and its securities are listed on the Stock Exchange. The address of the
registered office which is also principal place of business of the Company is
disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section of the annual report.

The principal activities of the Group are property development and
investment, sales of cement, clinker and construction materials, golf
course operation, provision of hotel and property management and
investment holding. The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
("RMB") as the Group conducts most of its operations in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC"). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in the currency of Hong Kong (“Hong Kong Dollars”) which is
different from the functional currency of the Company, as the directors of
the Company (“Directors”) consider that Hong Kong dollars is the most
appropriate presentation currency in view of its place of listing.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments to

HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

("HKICPA"):

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax — Recovery of Underlying
Assets

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets

Amendments to HKAS 1 As part of the Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle issued in 2012
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mAEMB®RRMNE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(BE_Z——F+-A=+—HLFE)
For the year ended 31st December, 2012

2. BRAMIREEITERMBR
SEA(EBMBREER )
(&)

B NXETE SN - RAFERAZBBH R
SR ZETHARERTEBEFEZHH
R RAN R AR B B S IR P M R B
EARE -

EREHENFE12RBITRELER
H-REIMEEE

RAFEE  AEECERERAEESTELSE
12%{'%5T$HEL@?IE—W@W%EFJ o IRIE
ZIBRTAN - MREB G ERFL0RKEY
%J?ﬁéﬁﬁﬂﬁ{%@*ﬁiﬁiz%xé%% © At
BREHREAER  REEZEEBLEmMKRD -
FRIEEREERL BN THHER -

REBHAAABEEXGELREYE - B
BB EAEI12MBIIAZIER  EFF
RASEREARESIARCRENFEAE R
BEAEBRERERZEH QG ZIREME
I#M%Mﬁf%ﬂﬁﬁ%&ﬁ%%%@%Z

ERAC AR 2 WTELLﬁEZﬁiﬁtﬁh
ﬁ EHit - EERTENEBSFERZE 125

BRI HE IRRAARB HH -

BEEAF12RETACER » AEE
HEZEH D RS E KA HLRES A

B2 R EMERAREBEEE CRIER
15 - WERINEZFIREY R 2 THIZER
RAFEFSH o WAl - AEERELREZEHIA
AIENRERIBR G ERBEYE < BREE R &
BAEAMKEIRNRE @ MERREMEZAR
fﬂfﬁ“@JZ%EL%RIE&IEE&R]&Q%%A\f‘*
BEZE . T HMIEEN - BB RTERIF125
BRI ABEBBER -

E &)
R H
AR

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“"HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

Except as described below, the application of the amendments to HKFRSs
in the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax - Recovery
of Underlying Assets

The Group has applied for the first time the amendments to HKAS 12
“Deferred Tax — Recovery of Underlying Assets” in the current year.
Under the amendments, investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model in accordance with HKAS 40 “Investment Property”
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale for the purposes of
measuring deferred taxes, unless the presumption is rebutted in certain

circumstances.

The Group measures its investment properties using the fair value model.
As a result of the application of the amendments to HKAS 12, the Directors
reviewed the investment property portfolios of the Group and its jointly
controlled entities and concluded that the investment properties held by
the Group and its jointly controlled entities are not held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodies in the investment properties over time rather than
through sales. Therefore, the Directors have determined that the “sale”
presumption set out in the amendments to HKAS 12 is not rebutted.

As a result of the application of the amendments to HKAS 12, the Group
and its jointly controlled entities recognises deferred taxes on changes in
fair value of the investment properties held by the Group and its jointly
controlled entities in the PRC taking into account the LAT and enterprise
income tax payable upon sales of those investment properties. Previously,
the Group and its jointly controlled entities recognised deferred taxes
on changes in fair value of investment properties on the basis that the
deferred tax was measured based on the assumption that the carrying
amounts of the properties would be recovered through use and did
not recognise LAT on changes in fair value of investment properties.
Amendments to HKAS 12 have been applied retrospectively.
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REMBE|RME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(BE=F——F+=A=+—AILFE)
For the year ended 31st December, 2012

2. ERAMIIREEITERMBR
SEA(EBMBREER )
(&)

EREFTEAFIRBITERATHEER
Z2FERR-ZT-_F A EMY
ERMBHREREA_SZNFE-R
——F Az FEIENTR)

ZHRBEBMBHRELN ZBIIR_FT—_FX
R EE 2 RHR RV HREEN =
ERNFE_T——FRYZFERE - ZF
BAIZEMBMR-_T—=F—fA—Rxkzi&
Fnz FREHR -

RAFE  AEEERERBHAERERE
BEFERIF1REFTA

ARG EAUFIRBIETEPE S ERK
& REPUEIXNENDENER - 27
R E— R 2 B RO (58 = B KR
®) BEGHERE1RETARE - ERNE
EBPEER - BEIREHOBHE =M
MENERBEATE  HERKARERED
F=MIERRE - ME=DHBARRREA
B AR BER T

RAEE - AEBECEREAT LS LS
125ERIATEEN A - WERBEE | %E
REHR _ZT——F—A—BZHEMBRR
RZEMBREATE - A AEBRESE
SR EREIRERTAZN T ——F— A —
B8 = (AR R ML 2 5 AR AT -

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“"HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements (as part of the Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle issued in June 2012)

Various amendments to HKFRSs were issued in June 2012, the title of
which is Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle. The effective
date of these amendments is annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2013.

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the amendments
to HKAS 1 in advance of the effective date.

HKAS 1 requires an entity that changes accounting policies retrospectively,
or makes a retrospective restatement or reclassification to present a
statement of financial position as at the beginning of the preceding
period (third statement of financial position). The amendments to
HKAS 1 clarify that an entity is required to present a third statement of
financial position only when the retrospective application, restatement
or reclassification has a material effect on the information in the third
statement of financial position and that related notes are not required to
accompany the third statement of financial position.

In the current year, the Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 12
“Deferred Tax — Recovery of Underlying Assets” for the first time, which
has resulted in a material effect on the information in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 1st January, 2011. In accordance
with the amendments to HKAS 1, the Group has therefore presented a
third statement of financial position as at 1st January, 2011 without the
related notes.
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mAEMB®RRMNE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(BE_Z——F+-A=+—HLFE)
For the year ended 31st December, 2012

2. BRAMIREEITERMBR
ERA(TEFEBMBREER )
(&)

LREHBRRSB cHEHE

LR RSB T RN 2 M
HERTRIINT

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“"HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

Summary of the effects of the above changes in
accounting policies

The effects of the changes in accounting policies described above on the
results for the current and prior years by line items are as follows:

2012 2011
FExT FBT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEWRER Consolidated income statement
FE(E KR A BLE A Decrease in share of profit of
2 jointly controlled entities (59,606) (56,314)
TiIE Z 3240 Increase in taxation (105,981) (65,662)
RE RN 2 B Decrease in profit for the year (165,587) (121,976)
IR R PR Increase (decrease) in profit
NGl for the year attributable to
2GR non-controlling interests 714 (57)
AR EIRRFEG Decrease in profit for the year
NE i A attributable to owners of
2 the Company (166,301) (121,919)
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REMBE|RME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(BE=F——F+=A=+—AILFE)
For the year ended 31st December, 2012

2. ERAMIIREEITERMBR
SEA(EBMBREER )
(&)

LRET RSB K ERE W)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“"HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

Summary of the effects of the above changes in

accounting policies (continued)

2012 2011
FET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEZElER Consolidated statement of
comprehensive income
BMEMEEZIEREZR Decrease in exchange difference
2Rk arising on translation - (27,129)
FE(E R RZEH AR Z Decrease in share of other
Hith 2 A comprehensive income of
2Rk jointly controlled entities - (8,283)
KERmF 2@ Decrease in profit for the year (165,587) (121,976)
PHEAE Decrease in total comprehensive
> income (165,587) (157,388)
Bl Increase (decrease) in total
FEfE 2 E e comprehensive income
Rz I attributable to non-controlling
R A) interests 714 (350)
ZN/NGI S Decrease in total comprehensive
AR income attributable to owners
2R of the Company (166,301) (157,038)

96 AZTEIREAEMBAF Tian An China Investments Company Limited



mAEMB®RRMNE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(BE_Z——F+-A=+—HLFE)
For the year ended 31st December, 2012

2. ERHITREETERBMEER 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
HEA([EEVHHREER ) KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(&)

LREHBREREE

(“"HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

BEE) Summary of the effects of the above changes in

accounting policies (continued)

Tl e ES S AR EFEMBRAN _F  The effects of the above changes in accounting policies on the financial
—F—A—HEZZT—F+=ZA=+—H positions of the Group as at 1st January, 2011 and 31st December, 2011

AN ¢ are as follows:
REZ5I
As
originally R 55l
stated Adjustments As restated
T4 THT THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-Z——%—H—HZ Consolidated statement of financial
FEMBMRREK position as at 1st January, 2011
REENESIA A 2 Interests in jointly controlled entities 776,838 (139,577) 637,261
EEFIBAE Deferred tax liabilities (1,452,374) (516,539) (1,968,913)
HREEZTE Effects on net assets (675,536) (656,116)  (1,331,652)
E il Retained earnings (6,185,978) 635,253 (5,550,725)
0E )2 B Exchange translation reserve (1,238,142) 14,947 (1,223,195)
FERA KRR Non-controlling interests (773,574) 5,916 (767,658)
HER & Effects on equity (8,197,694) 656,116 (7,541,578)
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2. EAHITIREZBITE B 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
EEA([EETBHREED ) KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(48) (“HKFRSSs") (CONTINUED)
iSRS s EEFE &) Summary of the effects of the above changes in
accounting policies (continued)
REZ25
As
originally ik E]]
stated Adjustments As restated
FET T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
N=ZF——%F+=-HA=+—H Consolidated statement of financial
2B MBMRRE position as at 31st December, 2011
JiAEa IR 2 /NI i Interests in jointly controlled entities 1,033,275 (204,174) 829,101
DEAFEEEZ Liabilities associated with
HEAaE assets classified as held for sale (125,425) (91,922) (217,347)
BREFRIERE Deferred tax liabilities (1,574,344) (517,408) (2,091,752)
WEREEZZE Effects on net assets (666,494) (813,504) (1,479,998)
e iyl Retained earnings (6,913,384) 757,172 (6,156,212)
P 3 F BN Exchange translation reserve (1,851,375) 50,066 (1,801,309)
FERE A Non-controlling interests (791,589) 6,266 (785,323)
HER & Effects on equity (9,556,348) 813,504  (8,742,844)
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“"HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

Summary of the effects of the above changes in
accounting policies (continued)

The effects of the above changes in accounting policies on the Group's
basic earnings per share for the current and prior years are as follows:

YEREF BTz ZE Impact on basic earnings per share
2012 2011
I Rl
HK cents HK cents
TR BRER Basic earnings per share
27 before adjustments 37.68 57.67
BEGERIE125 Adjustments arising on
BETARZIER the application of
FREE & 2 % the amendments to HKAS 12 (11.04) (8.09)
25 2 BRERBF Reported basic earnings per share 26.64 49,58
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
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("HKFRSs") (conTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 32

HK(IFRIC) - Int 20
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Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle, except for
the amendments HKAS 1"

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities'

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and
Transition Disclosures®

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities:

Transition Guidance'

Investment Entities?

Financial Instruments’

Consolidated Financial Statements'
Joint Arrangements'

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’
Fair Value Measurement'

Employee Benefits'

Separate Financial Statements'
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures'

Presentation of [tems of
Other Comprehensive Income*
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities”
Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of
a Surface Mine'
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (coNTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (continued)

1

2

B

4

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2013
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2014
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2015

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2012

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes
the requirements for the classification and measurement of financial
liabilities and for derecognition. Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are
described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKAS
39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” are
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All
other debt investments and equity investments are measured at their
fair values at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that
is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects
of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
Changes in fair value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in
the financial liabilities” credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in
the fair value of the financial liability designated as fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

3R Annual Report 2012 101



REMB®RRKRMWE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(BE=F——F+=A=+—AILFE)
For the year ended 31st December, 2012

2. ER#MEAIREETERUBTR
EEA(THFEMBREER])
(#)

BEMBHRELENFNEHMTAE)

EFEY AREEN-T-EF—A—AH

th 2 FEHMZRA B RRTMNE BB R

25 A B 5 O%R 2 8 PR A A B T B A e

SHAEZRECBELYE - BA%E S

MAEME - EEFHMOBMERA - RBEZ

FENAREEY AT -

FRGERE - ¥R BHERQT
Rz #e] RASRT R

R-ZF——F1 A —ERRE@ARE
ZHE - BERRREBENERERM  BEE
BB MEERF105 - BEMBRELFH
15 - EAPBHREENF125 - BEGE
A7/ (=T ——FLER]) R BB G LR
F28/(—T——FLKIEFT) °

A
=k

ZAAERIM TR EMT ¢

BB mMEERE 1R BEEGHERE
2755 4R 6 KB M B HRER |INE LS AR
WER2HD - BRE(EREBZES) —RES
12556 —HARBENER KaEEYHRE
RIS 105 £ A B RRGS - RIBEBR
WMELAFE105 - BF —@REREEE - B
ZHIHE o WO - BEMBHREERE10RES
ZHEZHER HPEE=ExE : (a)Fk
ZHIEHR () E2EREHREEMEE
B[ 2 ATESAER] - R(OBEIERELIE
HRZBINTEREERRSHE - BEME
WEEAF 10D EBER ZRBIETHENA
[Ez4E5l -

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“"HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

The Directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 will be adopted in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the annual period beginning 1st
January, 2015 and that the application of the new standard may have
impact on amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets.
Regarding the Group’s financial assets, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been
completed.

New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued, including HKFRS
10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) and HKAS 28 (as
revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements” that deal with consolidated financial statements.
HK (SIC)-Int 12 “Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities” will be
withdrawn upon the effective date of HKFRS 10. Under HKFRS 10, there
is only one basis for consolidation, that is, control. In addition, HKFRS
10 includes a new definition of control that contains three elements: (a)
power over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over
the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns. Extensive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (coNTINUED)

New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
(continued)

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 “Interests in Joint Ventures”. HKFRS 11 deals
with how a joint arrangement of which two or more parties have joint
control should be classified. HK (SIC) — Int 13 “Jointly Controlled Entities
— Non-monetary Contributions by Venturers” will be withdrawn upon
the effective date of HKFRS 11. Under HKFRS 11, joint arrangements are
classified as joint operations or joint ventures, depending on the rights
and obligations of the parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under
HKAS 31, there are three types of joint arrangements: jointly controlled
entities, jointly controlled assets and jointly controlled operations. In
addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to be accounted
for using the equity method of accounting, whereas jointly controlled
entities under HKAS 31 can be accounted for using the equity method of
accounting or proportionate consolidation.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that
have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/or
unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the disclosure requirements
in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the current standards.

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12
were issued to clarify certain transitional guidance on the application of
these five HKFRSs for the first time.

These five standards, together with the amendments relating to the
transitional guidance, are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1st January 2013 with earlier application permitted provided that all
of these standards are applied at the same time.

The Directors anticipate that these five standards will be adopted in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning 1st January, 2013. The Directors anticipate that the application
of the new standard will have no material impact on the amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statements but may result in more
extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“"HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements. The
standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair
value, and requires disclosures about fair value measurements. The scope
of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial instrument items and
non-financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs require or permit
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements,
except in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure requirements
in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those in the current standards. For
example, quantitative and qualitative disclosures based on the three-level
fair value hierarchy currently required for financial instruments only under
HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures” will be extended by HKFRS
13 to cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 will be adopted in the Group's consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning 1st January, 2013. The
Directors anticipate that the application of the new standard will
have no material impact on the amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements but may result in more extensive disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“"HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income” introduce new terminology for the statement of
comprehensive income and income statement. Under the amendments
to HKAS 1, a ‘statement of comprehensive income’ is renamed as a
‘statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income’ and an
‘income statement’ is renamed as a ‘statement of profit or loss’. The
amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in either a single statement or in two
separate but consecutive statements. However, the amendments to HKAS
1 require items of other comprehensive income to be grouped into two
categories: (a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same basis —
the amendments do not change the option to present items of other
comprehensive income either before tax or net of tax.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1st July, 2012. The presentation of items of other comprehensive
income will be modified accordingly when the amendments are applied
in future accounting periods.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain properties and financial instruments,
which are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved where the Company has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated income statement from the
effective date of acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from the
Group's equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling
interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. Prior
to 1st January, 2010, losses applicable to the non-controlling interests
in excess of the non-controlling interests in the subsidiary’s equity were
allocated against the interests of the Group except to the extent that the
non-controlling interests had a binding obligation and were able to make
an additional investment to cover the losses.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
on or after 1st January, 2010

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries that do
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, if (i) derecognises the
assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their
carrying amounts at the date when control is lost, (ii) derecognises the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interests in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost (including any components of other
comprehensive income attributable to them), and (iii) recognises the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest with any resulting difference being recognise as a
gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group. When assets of the
subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair values and the related
cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings as
specified by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39
“Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or a jointly controlled entity.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
prior to 1st January, 2010

When the Group increases its interest in an entity that is already
controlled by the Group, goodwill arising on such acquisition represents
the difference between the cost of additional interest acquired and the
increase in the Group’s share of the fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired. The difference between the
consideration paid and the aggregate of goodwill and the fair value of
the assets attributable to the additional interest acquired is recognised
as a reserve movement. This difference represents the portion of the
revaluation difference that arose since the original acquisition date that is
attributable to the Group's increased interest in the subsidiary.

Business combinations

Business combinations that took place on or after 1st
January, 2010

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12
Benefits” respectively;

“Income Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (continued)

Business combinations that took place on or after 1st
January, 2010 (continued)

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment arrangements
of the Group entered into replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with
HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment” at the acquisition date; and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations” are measured in accordance with that
Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of
the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value or, when applicable,
on the basis specified in another standard.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (continued)

Business combinations that took place on or after 1st
January, 2010 (continued)

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at
its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments made
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that
arise from additional information obtained during the “measurement
period” (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about
facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39,
or HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”,
as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value
at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control), and
the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that
have previously been recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if
that interest were disposed of.

Changes in the value of the previously held equity interest recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity before the
acquisition date are reclassified to profit or loss when the Group obtains
control over the acquiree.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (continued)

Business combinations that took place on or after 1st
January, 2010 (continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the
end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group
reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting
is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the
measurement period (see above), and additional assets or liabilities
are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known,
would have affected the amounts recognised as of that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets
of the unit on a pro rata basis on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit
or loss. An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s statement of
financial position at cost less any identified impairment loss.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence
and that is neither a subsidiary nor a jointly controlled entity. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in the
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate, less any identified impairment
loss. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An
additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Interests in associates (continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group's
investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of
the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

Upon disposal of an associate that results in the Group losing significant
influence over that associate, any retained investment is measured at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value
on initial recognition as a financial asset in accordance with HKAS 39.
The difference between the previous carrying amount of the associate
attributable to the retained interest and its fair value is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required if that associate had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate would be reclassified
to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) when it loses significant influence over that
associate.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognised in the
Group's consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests
in the associate that are not related to the Group.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Joint ventures
Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a separate
entity in which venturers have joint control over the economic activity of
the entity are referred to as jointly controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in jointly
controlled entities are carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the jointly
controlled entities, less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s
share of losses of a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest
in that jointly controlled entity (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the jointly
controlled entity), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of that jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of a jointly controlled entity recognised at the date of acquisition is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group'’s
investment in a jointly controlled entity. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use
and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Joint ventures (continued)
Jointly controlled entities (continued)

Upon disposal of a jointly controlled entity that results in the Group losing
joint control over that jointly controlled entity, any retained investment
is measured at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as
its fair value on initial recognition as a financial asset in accordance with
HKAS 39. The difference between the previous carrying amount of the
jointly controlled entity attributable to the retained interest and its fair
value is included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal
of the jointly controlled entity. In addition, the Group accounts for all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that jointly controlled entity on the same basis as would be required
if that jointly controlled entity had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that jointly controlled entity would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or
loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when it loses joint control over that
jointly controlled entity.

When a group entity transacts with its jointly controlled entity, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the jointly controlled entity are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the jointly controlled entity that are not related to
the Group.

Investment in a jointly controlled entity of the Company is stated at cost
less any identified impairment loss. Results of the jointly controlled entity
are dealt with in the financial statements to the extent of dividends
received and receivable.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the statement of
financial position when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s and the Company’s financial assets are classified into one
of the three categories, including financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees on points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has two subcategories,
including financial assets held for trading and those designated as at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near
future; or

e itis a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-
term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be
designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition
if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s documented
risk management or investment strategy, and information about the
grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded

derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined contract (asset
or liability) to be designated as at fair value through profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend earned on the
financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, loans receivable, amounts due from associates,
amounts due from jointly controlled entities, amounts due from non-
controlling shareholders, other structured deposits, pledged bank deposits
and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available for sales or are not classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments.

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as available-for-
sale and are traded in an active market are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Dividends on available-for-sale equity
investments are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the
carrying amount of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of
revaluation reserves. When the investment is disposed of or is determined
to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in profit
or loss when the right of the Group to receive the dividends is established.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured, and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows
of the financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered to

be objective evidence of impairment.

For the other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

¢ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables, assets
that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed
for indicators of impairment on a collective basis.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
recognised is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recovery of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period in which the
impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not be
reversed through profit or loss in subsequent periods. Any increase in
fair value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying value
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Effective interest method (continued)
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities that include interest-bearing and interest-free
borrowings, trade, bills and other payables, dividend payable to non-
controlling shareholders and membership debentures are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and the Company
and not designated as at fair value through profit or loss is recognised
initially at its fair value less transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issue of the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group and the Company measure the financial
guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the amount of obligation under
the contract, as determined in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”; and (i) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with revenue recognition policy.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the assets expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable
and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories of properties

Inventory of completed properties held for sale and inventories of
properties under development for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost comprises the cost of land, development
expenditure, other attributable costs and borrowing costs capitalised.
Net realisable value is determined by reference to management estimates
based on prevailing market conditions. Inventories of properties are
transferred to investment properties at fair value when there is a
change in use, evidenced by commencement of an operating lease. The
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value at the date of
transfer is recognised directly in profit or loss.

Other inventories

Other inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs
and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is computed on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price less all estimated cost of completion and costs to be incurred in
marketing, selling and distribution.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Properties for development

Properties for development is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any identified impairment loss. Cost comprises the consideration
for acquisition of land use rights and other costs directly attributable to
bringing the leasehold land to the condition necessary for it to be capable
of development of the properties. The consideration for acquisition of
land use rights represent leasehold land held for future development. The
costs that are directly attributable to bringing the leasehold land to the
condition necessary for it to be capable of development of the properties
are capitalised as costs of properties for development.

Amortisation of properties for development are recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated in the statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Land and buildings transferred from investment properties are stated
at deemed cost equal to its fair value at the date of change in use. The
transferred properties are depreciated over their unexpired lease term.

Depreciation is recognised to write off the cost of items of property, plant

and equipment other than construction in progress over their estimated

useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated residual value,

using the straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Land and buildings on Over the unexpired lease term

medium-term lease ranging from 40-70 or 40 years,

whichever is shorter

Golf course on medium-term lease Over the expected unexpired
lease term

4% — 8%

20%-30% or over the lease term,

Plant and machinery
Leasehold improvements

whichever is shorter
Furniture, fixture and equipment 20% - 30%
and motor vehicle
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Properties in the course of construction for production or for its own use
purposes are carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item) is included in the profit or loss in
the period in which the item is derecognised.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-
occupation, any difference between the carrying amount and its fair value
of that item at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in property revaluation reserve. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation
reserve will be transferred directly to retained profits.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties which are held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation or both. Investment properties include land
held for undetermined future use, which is regarded as held for capital
appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment properties are included in
profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

3R Annual Report 2012 125



REMB®|RME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(BE_Z——F+-A=1+—HLFE)
For the year ended 31st December, 2012

3. EESHE S

REWFEE)

ERENEYIARKERIERRER  REYE
KeBRENE  BELERE - EREREY
MEHEYXRBERERER  KEWMFES
SEBRERRTYE - BRRAAEBEIIRY
RENFEREARME  ZVWEAREERA
RZAERATIZEZEENNERGBBZAAE
EME

BREMENHERIEREM KA T BE
RAAEHEZEERRTEEL T AIAREE
M BURER - EEBUHMERMMES 2T
Wk BB (IRZEEZ W EMBHRIFER
FRHEZEZHEFE)RZABBURER 2 FE
FTARR G et BR o

BERTHRIN-THNEXHERBIAEREH
B MEFEEBREREYE - RERENRQ
A EERREERNZENIERER

HEEE (BERMD)

RERERR - AEESWTEB LN ARRE
AERFRZ B EENREE  UNEESE

RAABEEN KOS BEREREE - BI#
ZEENEEERSERERRESE - BIERE
BEVAHRARER -

WRBEBEEARER - ZEENKREES
EMEERWESENEHGAHE - EENER
B BR (B TN RE R B 5% B BE WA B 4 R R FERRUR (B
ERRFBREE  RUEE RN EE AN HER R
WA e

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment properties (continued)

Transfer from investment property to property, plant and equipment will
be made when there is a change in use, evidenced by commencement of
owner occupation. Transfer from investment property to property under
development will be made where there is a change in use, evidence by
the commencement of construction for property for sale. For a transfer
from investment property carried at fair value to owner-occupied property,
the property’s deemed cost for subsequent accounting are determined by
reference to its fair value at the date of change in use.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset, calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, is included
in the consolidated income statement in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Inventory of properties is transferred to investment property when it is
evidenced by the commencement of an operating lease to another party.
The difference between the fair value and the carrying amount at the
date of transfer is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses (other than goodwill)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as
an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable
as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised as a
reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and buildings

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an operating
lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease
is presented as “prepaid lease payments on land use rights” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over the
lease term on a straight-line basis except for those that are classified and
accounted for as investment properties under the fair value model. When
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases, in which case the entire lease is
classified as an operating lease.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the consolidated
income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes income
statement items that are never taxable or deductible. Liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests
in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets for investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption
is rebutted, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with the above general
principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the expected manner as to
how the properties will be recovered).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised to profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case the current and deferred tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts.

Income from properties developed for sale is recognised when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the properties are transferred to
buyers, which is when the construction of relevant properties has been
completed and the properties have been delivered to the purchasers and
collectibility of related receivables is reasonably assured. Profit or loss
arising from the outright sale of an entire development property prior
to completion is recognised when a binding sales contract becomes
unconditional and the risks and rewards of the ownership have been
transferred to the buyer.

Deposits received from sales of properties prior to meeting the above
criteria for revenue recognition are carried in the consolidated statement
of financial position under current liabilities.

Sales of other goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title
has passed.

Income from golf course operation and hotel and property management is
recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group's rights
to receive payment have been established.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise, except for exchange difference arising
on a monetary item that forms part of the Company’s net investment
in a foreign operation, in which case, such exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
and will be reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of foreign
operation. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the
period except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income, in which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities are translated into the Group
presentation currency (i.e. Hong Kong Dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transaction are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group's
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of joint control over a jointly controlled entity that includes
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss. In
addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates or jointly controlled
entities that do not result in the Group losing significant influence or
joint control), the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired arising
on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1st January, 2005 are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and translated
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in the exchange translation
reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisitions of foreign
operations prior to 1st January, 2005 are treated as non-monetary foreign
currency items of the acquirer and reported using the historical exchange
rate prevailing at the date of the acquisition.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans, state-
managed retirement benefit schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Non-current assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale
if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset
(disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition.
Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected
to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the
date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control of
a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are classified
as held for sale when the criteria described above are met, regardless
of whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in its former
subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of the assets’ (disposal groups’) previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the Directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

43R Annual Report 2012 133



REMB®|RME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(BE_Z——F+-A=1+—HLFE)
For the year ended 31st December, 2012

4. EESHHERTEE M
ZEEXRR )

FERAEEETT R 2 EEHE

AT REZEREAASE S REBIZETAE
HMERPBERRER L SBEBEATEL
EZHEOF RAEFERINETX)) -

ARER ) I A )RR AR A R DA A W [ 1 Y
it~ RO RE R B HE SEM - HE%F
FEW IR 2 SRR B IRBE N R BT A HIE -
BREBUEP MERAZBREEEMBEYGR
s ik - fAKEER REFAMBARA
B HISSEMREED - RIZAIRBEEINE
e

REYFHELZHE

EFEERARBEEANGENREYMERME
ERREHRBEREECHBAEER @ EFF
BASEREARZHARZREMEELE R
BEARERAEARZHARRE 2 REME
WINBERFEE M ERZRENEME S Z
EEEEN - MARBBHE 2BFRENMm
FA - Bt - R EXRKEREKRZEFQE]
ZREMEBLERIAR EFHERAAE
ERAAEBEZREVEZRAEZREBLE
MU E 2z [ $HE R ARBHEER - Fit - A&
B EREARENE AR BEZBELHRLT
BIE - DHRAEEHERENERTHRL
IR EH -

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the Directors have made in the process
of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in financial statements.

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The policy for allowance for bad and doubtful debts of the Group and the
Company is based on the evaluation of collectability and aging analysis
of accounts and on management’s judgement. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including the current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customer and borrower. If the financial positions of
customers and borrowers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in
an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances
may be required.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets arising from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the Directors have reviewed the investment property
portfolios of the Group and its jointly controlled entities and concluded
that investment properties held by the Group and its jointly controlled
entities are not held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in
measuring the deferred taxation on investment properties of the Group
and its jointly controlled entities, the Directors have determined that the
“sales” presumption that the carrying amounts of investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is
not rebutted. As a result, the Group has recognised the deferred taxes on
changes in fair value of investment properties as the Group is subject to
LAT on disposal of its investment properties.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying the Group's
accounting policies (continued)

Ownership of properties

At 31st December, 2012, the land use rights of a golf course (included
in prepaid lease payments on land use rights), the relevant golf course
and its construction in progress (both included in property, plant and
equipment), as well as certain properties for development with carrying
amount of HK$7,626,000, HK$66,323,000, HK$58,437,000 and
HK$1,359,708,000 respectively in the PRC have been granted for terms
of up to 2062. Due to the policy of local land bureau, the land use rights
certificates of them will expire within one year and the Group is required
to apply for the extension periodically. Renewal application has to be
submitted to local land bureau within one month before the expiry date.
The management has exercised judgement, taking into consideration the
legal opinion obtained, and is satisfied that the Group will successfully
obtain the extension and no impairment is associated with the properties.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Valuation of inventories of properties

Inventories of properties are stated at the lower of the cost and net
realisable value. The estimated net realisable value is estimated selling
price less estimated selling expenses and estimated cost of completion (if
any), which are estimated based on best available information.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimate of fair value of investment properties

At the end of the reporting period, investment properties are stated at
fair value based on the valuation performed by independent professional
valuers. In determining the fair value, the valuers have based on a method
of valuation which involves certain estimates. In relying on the valuation
report, the management has exercised their judgement and is satisfied
that the assumptions used in valuation have reflected the current market
conditions.

Estimate of fair value of financial assets designated as at
fair value through profit or loss

At the end of the reporting period, financial assets designated as at fair
value through profit or loss are stated at fair value based on the valuation
performed by independent professional valuers. In determining the fair
value, the valuers have based on a method of valuation which involves
certain estimates. In relying on the valuation report, the management has
exercised their judgement and is satisfied that the assumptions used in
valuation have reflected the current market conditions.

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In applying the accounting policy on property, plant and equipment with
respect to depreciation, management estimates the useful lives of various
categories of property, plant and equipment according to the industrial
experiences over the usage of property, plant and equipment and also
by reference to the relevant industrial norm. If the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment is less than the original estimate useful
lives due to changes in commercial and technological environment, such
difference will impact the depreciation charge for the remaining period.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Taxation

At 31st December, 2012, a deferred tax asset of HK$4,563,000 (2011:
HK$4,563,000) in relation to unused tax losses has been recognised
as set out in note 43. No deferred tax asset has been recognised on
the remaining tax losses of HK$584,344,000 (2011: HK$491,143,000)
and other deductible temporary differences of HK$569,811,000 (2011:
HK$579,569,000) as it is not probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the tax losses and deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In cases where the actual future profits generated
are less than or more than expected, a material reversal or recognition of
deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in the income
statement for the period in which such an event takes place.

Land appreciation tax

PRC LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including sales charges, borrowing costs and all
property development expenditures.

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The details of implementation
have been announced by local tax bureaux in certain major cities,
however, the Group has not finalised its LAT calculation and payments
with local tax bureaux in those cities in PRC. Accordingly, significant
judgements are required in determining the amount of land appreciation
and its related taxes. The Group recognises these liabilities based on
management’s best estimates according to the understanding of the tax
rules. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

5a.Categories of financial instruments

REE b /N
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2012 2011 2012 2011
TFHET T T TFET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEE Financial assets
A HERE Available-for-sale investments 130,828 130,439 - =
BIEEERE Held-for-trading investments 17,782 15,019 - -
B IBETIZAR  Financial assets designated as at
EBEERIEz2/EE  fair value through profit or loss 308,956 351,167 - =
ERNEWEEZR (B4 Loan and receivables (including
RITEFENRRE - & bank balances and cash, and pledged
FAEEIR 7 BT bank deposits) 2,670,712 3,762,962 6,926,179 7,646,856
THEEE Financial liabilities
BB AGTEZ Financial liabilities measured at
SRAE amortised cost 6,165,105 5,239,613 253,379 508,970

5b. 01 1% B EE B R RBER

AEBZIZCRTIABEAMHEERE &
EERIRE - QR - KREGI QA KIFE
BIRR R - BRKRER - B 5 R EME KK
R EEEBESERAAEEREZEME
B Rt - REERZRITER
RITEFERREES  EBH EBRRAEMGEMNEK
o EAIFERBREE - MERESERK
GHEES  ZEERIAFBENSMEHE -
TXEFEZESR T AA R AR LA
BZERBIEE BEREETERETZER
B o DARECR KB A A BUBEREUEE 2 5 it °

5b.Financial risk management objective and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-sale
investments, held-for-trading investments, amounts due from associates,
jointly controlled entities and non-controlling shareholders, loans
receivable, trade and other receivables, financial assets designed as
at fair value through profit or loss, other structured deposits, pledged
bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade, bills and other payables,
dividend payable to non-controlling shareholders, interest-bearing and
interest-free borrowings and membership debentures. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTiNUED)

5b.Financial risk management objective and
policies (continued)

Market risk

The Group's activities expose primarily to the financial risks of changes in
interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates and change in prices of
equity financial instruments (see below).

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to market risks or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risk.

(i) Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk through the impact
of interest rate changes on fixed-rate loan receivable and borrowings.
The Group's cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to variable-rate
loan receivable, other structured deposits and borrowings which carry
interest at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate plus a certain percentage.
The Group will continue to maintain a reasonable mix of floating rate and
fixed rate borrowings and take actions to hedge against any foreseeable
interest rate exposure, if necessary. The interest rates and terms of
repayment of bank and other borrowings of the Group are disclosed in
note 39.

Interest rate sensitivity

At the end of the respective reporting periods, if interest rates increased
by 200 basis points in relation to the Group’s variable rate loans
receivable and other structured deposits and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s profit would increase by HK$6,202,000 (2011:
increased by HK$3,895,000).

At the end of the respective reporting periods, if interest rates increased
by 200 basis points in relation to the Group’s variable rate borrowings
and all other variables were held constant, the Group's profit would
decrease by HK$14,861,000 (2011: decreased by HK$21,410,000).

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of
the inherent interest rate risk as the year end exposure does not reflect
the exposure during the year.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED)

5b.Financial risk management objective and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
(ii) Foreign currency risk management

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s
operations are mainly in the PRC other than Hong Kong and certain bank
and other loans of the Group are denominated in foreign currencies (see
notes 39 and 40). The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors the related foreign
exchange exposure closely and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amount of monetary assets and monetary liabilities that are
denominated in a currency other than RMB at the end of the respective
reporting periods are as follow:

rRH ZNANS
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2012 2011 2012 2011

TR TAT TR TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000

EE Assets

eV United States Dollars 68,374 19,086 961,246 1,133,328
BIT Hong Kong Dollars 384,839 891,837 5,868,237 6,190,237
afE Liabilities

EVv United States Dollars 9,991 9,995 - =
BIT Hong Kong Dollars 1,103,024 994,228 171,979 209,362
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTiNUED)

5b.Financial risk management objective and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
(ii) Foreign currency risk management (continued)
Foreign currency sensitivity

The Group mainly exposes to the currency of United States (“United
States Dollars”) and Hong Kong Dollars.

The following table details the Group'’s sensitivity to a 5% increase and
decrease in the RMB against the relevant foreign currencies. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5%
change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes interest-
bearing and interest-free borrowings as well as bank balances and cash.
A positive number indicates an increase in profit for the year where the
RMB strengthens against the relevant currency. If there is 5% increase in
RMB against the relevant foreign currencies, the increase (decrease) in the
profit for the year is shown as below:

AEHE AT
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2012 2011 2012 2011
FHET FAIT FHET THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EV United States Dollars
REZ B Decrease in profit for the year (2,919) (455) (48,062) (56,666)
BT Hong Kong Dollars
REREGHIE L)  Increase (decrease) in profit for the year 35,909 5,120 (284,813) (299,044)

ERERAR - BRED T TRERRAEINER
% > FRFERERETRREEARNRE

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of
the inherent foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does not
reflect the exposure during the year.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED)

5b.Financial risk management objective and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(iii) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity security price risk arising from equity
investments. The management will monitor the price movements and
take appropriate actions when it is required.

Equity price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risks at the end of the reporting period.

If equity prices were 10% higher/lower:

— revaluation reserve would increase/decrease by HK$13,083,000
(2011: increase/decrease by HK$13,044,000) for the Group as a
result of the changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments.

—  profit for the year would increase/decrease by HK$ 1,778,000 (2011:
increase/decrease by HK$1,502,000) for the Group as a result of the
changes in fair value of held-for-trading investments.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTiNUED)

5b.Financial risk management objective and
policies (continued)

Credit risk

As at 31st December, 2012, the Company’s and the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Company
and the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties or financial guarantees provided by the Company and
the Group is represented by the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the statement of financial position
and consolidated statement of financial position and the amount of
contingent liabilities disclosed in note 46(a). In order to minimise the
credit risk, the monitoring procedures are carried out to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade receivables and
other receivables at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. With
respect to financial guarantees provided to banks to secure the banking
facilities granted to subsidiaries by the Company, the Directors consider
the credit risk is limited because the subsidiaries have strong financial
positions. The management considers the credit risk exposure to financial
guarantee provided to banks to secure the banking facilities granted
to property purchasers is also limited because the facilities are secured
by the properties and the market price of the properties is higher than
the guaranteed amounts. In this regard, the Directors consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

Apart from the loan receivable of HK$24,720,000 due from a related
party as at 31st December, 2011 disclosed in note 48(b), the Group had
a concentration of credit risk as the loan receivables are advanced to a
few independent third parties. As at 31st December, 2012, the loans
receivables will be matured ranging from January 2013 to November
2014. Except for the loan receivable of HK$24,720,000 from a related
party as at 31st December, 2011, which is unsecured, each of the loan
receivables is secured by properties and unlisted shares. Subsequent
to the end of the reporting period, no loan receivable was settled. The
management considers the credit risk exposure is limited as none of them
have been past due.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED)

5b.Financial risk management objective and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group also has a concentration of credit risk on the amounts
due from jointly controlled entities which are due from a few jointly
controlled entities engaged in property development. The Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual debt at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment loss are made for
irrecoverable amounts, if any. The management considers the credit risk
exposure is limited.

The Company and the Group have no other significant concentration of
credit risk, with exposure spread over a number of counterparties and
customers.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with
loan covenants.

Liquidity tables

The following tables detail the Group’s and the Company’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities and financial
guarantee arrangements. The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group and the Company can be required to pay. The tables
include both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest
flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest
rate at the end of the reporting period.
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SRMI A 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
b.BiiEREEEERBEZ) 5b.Financial risk management objective and
policies (continued)
B B () Liquidity risk (continued)
REBELR(E) Liquidity tables (continued)
R Wt=A
EEXTHE =0
FHOMIEA REGR ZIRAE
MEFHRE  Repayable REHELE Carrying
Weighted  on demand BAZIE Total amount
average  or less than 12388 3 months 1258 55 L undiscounted at 31st
interest rate 1month  1-3 months to 1 year 1-5 years 5+ years cash flows December
Bt TAT TR TAL TR TAT TR FEL
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
ES ) THE GROUP
:3—:? 2012
HiTESHER Non-derivative financial liabilities
g % ﬁf&ﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁ Trade, bills and other
payables - 2,110,363 - - - - 2,110,363 2,110,363
1‘# 2RIRR Dividends payable to
non-controlling shareholders - 1,150 - - - - 1,150 1,150
Mﬁ, \\1 Interest-bearing borrowings
- fixed rate 6.26% 301,177 21,327 493,625 1,389,688 586,569 2,798,386 2,596,938
= - variable rate 5.96% 407,780 29,815 192,126 118,434 - 748,155 743,034
%8 Interest-free borrowings - 663,447 - - - - 663,447 663,447
SEE Membership debentures - - - 26,527 23,646 - 50,173 50,173
B Financial guarantee contracts - 70,016 - - - - 70,016 -
3,553,933 57,142 712,278 1,531,768 586,569 6,441,690 6,165,105
—g8--& 2011
FTERREE Non-derivative financial liabilities
%% T}F&ﬁ{mﬁéﬁ Trade, bills and other
payables - 1,809,291 - - - - 1,809,291 1,809,291
1‘ # ERBR Dividends payable to
RS non-controlling shareholders - 5972 - - - - 5972 5972
WS ERR Interest-bearing borrowings
-EE — fixed rate 6.87% 107,770 35,887 364,170 1,549,305 523,459 2,580,591 2,271,854
—28 - variable rate 3.55% 772,634 190 155,693 164,396 - 1,092,913 1,070,481
S fET Interest-free borrowings - 34,637 - - - - 34,637 34,637
BHEES Membership debentures - - - 4312 34,061 9,005 47378 47378
BRERAR Financial guarantee contracts = 178,057 = = = = 178,057 =
2,908,361 36,077 524,175 1,747,762 532,464 5,748,839 5,239,613
KRR THE COMPANY
—E-CE 2012
FITEHBER Non-derivative financial liabilities
EthERTERR Other payables - 11,978 - - - - 11978 11978
MEER m Interest-bearing borrowings
—28 - variable rate 3.68% 160,000 - - - - 160,000 160,000
SEfEH Interest-free borrowings - 81,401 - - - - 81,401 81,401
BEERAR Financial guarantee contracts - 540,666 3,791 512,582 507,713 410,463 1,975,215 -
794,045 3,791 512,582 507,713 410,463 2,228,594 253,379
—E—-F 2011
#'ﬁﬂﬁ Bak& Non-derivative financial liabilities
HibERER Other payables - 9,387 - - - - 9,387 9,387
e 15 i Interest-bearing borrowings
28 - variable rate 3.62% 200,000 - - - - 200,000 200,000
ﬁa@%ﬁ Interest-free borrowings - 299,583 - - - - 299,583 299,583
BIERAR Financial guarantee contracts - 371,842 3,683 510,911 914,932 458,153 2,259,521 -
880,812 3,683 510,911 914,932 458,153 2,768,491 508,970
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5. @M TH®»)

5b. M EMEE B ERBER (&)

TEEm ()

TRBEREERELTEEGRRZERERZ
BB - AREBERERIBZEMT 2 B E &R
Rl - RBRBRENEHNAOFRAE -
At - FRIBBER ERB DI EE
KT ISHEBEANMEE KA - st RAEE
ZHBIRR - EFW TRARITA A REITEE
N EZRARER - EFREZFERERS
REBEESKIHEAI 2 R EEREFERER -

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED)

5b.Financial risk management objective and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below summaries the maturity analysis of term loans with a
repayment on demand clause based on agreed scheduled repayments set
out in the agreements. The amounts include interest payments computed
using contractual rates. As a result, these amounts were greater than
the amounts disclosed in the “on demand” time band in the maturity
analysis contained in the table above. Taking into account the Group’s
financial position, the Directors do not consider that it is probable that
the bank will exercise its discretion to demand immediate repayment. The
Directors believe that such term loans will be repaid in accordance with
the following scheduled repayment dates set out in the agreement:

Rt+=A

AERRE =t-8

RELE ZIREE

SREA 3EAZIE Total Carrying

Less than 1Z3f8R 3 months 1Z5% undiscounted  amount at
1month  1-3 months to 1 year 1-5 years cash flow 31st December

TAT THL T TAL TET AL

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

2012 31,627 52,468 168,676 439,852 742,623 688,789
2011 5,481 32,929 64,644 509,016 612,070 570,153

Bl BREzMBERAR 2 ERHEROR
SHRE  AERERARRRELFFESE
MEHERNKASHE - RERBEHR2E
B AEESIARARBASREAEREZL
B ORBEEBAXN - AT - BAEFHRFR
BIER R TREMATGEEMSE - ZhE
RS HBRERNEREBRHEXZEER
SR RIRENEH BB o

FREETETELRABY FAIAY &
5 BT T82 BB BRRR REE 2 F
kst ERMAE -

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts are the
maximum amounts that the Group or the Company could be required
to settle under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if
that amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based
on expectation at the end of the reporting period, the Group or the
Company considers that it is more likely than not that no amount will
be payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject to
change depending on the probability of the counterparty claiming under
the guarantee which is a function of the likelihood that the financial
receivables held by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit
losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for
non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to change, if changes
in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.
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5b. AR EEEERBEK#)

BAXmEBREE

AEFBEBEEAR  UHERASEZEERKA
FELE - WEBEES MEREHSBIR
R B A EH o

AEE 2 ENERBRER - HBRNME39
KT 40 B 2 fE 3R ~ IR aE42 B < @ #&1E
7 MRR|ITEFERRE AR BRRELE
@ BEBA - e RkRFDER

EETHENELAERE - (FREENZ R
EEEREARAREZEREARER 2R
- AEERRBEZZEARVERBEBS
MRS ~ BT R B AR {0 DA R 3T B =k
BOREEKMN TOEBBENERS -

REFE  REBZBRERERSTE o
EMTRAZAALEE

EMEENEMBECAABEKRTIIME
E !

(@) BEREGHRRRGG RGBT HIER
HZEMEENABEINRMHBZTHE
ANBERE

() EtpERMEEMSRABZAABEIR
BEBEIMNEEBEN  URESREMR
APMEABRZERMER 5 2 EIRME
E R

0 EEBBBRSERAABERECSMEE
ZRRBEINIREBEEEEINEERN -
PATERRSNE P 2 FE R I B2 T A B H B T
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTiNUED)

5b.Financial risk management objective and
policies (continued)

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in notes 39 and 40, membership debentures
disclosed in note 42, net of bank balances and cash and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising share capital, reserves
and retained earnings.

The Directors review the capital structure periodically. As a part of this
review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the Directors,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of
new debt or the redemption of existing debt, if necessary.

The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.
Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as
follows:

(@) the fair value of financial assets with standard terms and conditions
and traded on active liquid markets are determined with reference to
quoted market bid prices;

(b) the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable
current market transactions ;and

(c) The fair value of financial assets designated as at fair value through
profit or loss is determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing model based on quoted exchange rate of the relevant foreign
currencies and interest rate matching maturity of the instrument as
input.
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5. €RTH%)

5b. AR EEBRERBEKE)

EHTRAZAAEEE)

EERR  MEHEKAIAGE W HBRRTH
TREENEREBEBENREEREEAABERKX
BRE -

RGEMBRREREZ ZQIAEENE

TREHRERAEREARABEFEZERT
Ao Z2EemIARBARBEITER
WEE  DRE-REE=R:

@) F—MorBEFERENARMSTIE
FEREERRBENRECREHE) ;

(b) FE-_RRAEBEMEIRE -RFTAZH
BN BEEEHBEANER(AVER)XE
E(EERTLBRGARESL &

(O F=FZIAEBEAEBRENRLIFREAH
EMSHBECFABRN2BUNEESLR
BEH2HBANR[ETTE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED)

5b.Financial risk management objective and
policies (continued)

Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are
measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into
Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable:

(@) Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

(b) Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other
than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices); and

(c) Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation
techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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5 €RiTHR =) 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Sh. i EREKREEEZERBE &) 5b.Financial risk management objective and
policies (continued)

EERTEZRAAEEE) Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

REGEMBERRRERZAAEETEE) Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated statement

of financial position (continued)

2012
EF—& EZR F=HK st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

FTET TET TET FTBT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000

SREE Financial assets
FIEEEKA Held-for-trading investments
—REBUINET 2 — Equity securities listed outside
ENCE Hong Kong 15,379 - - 15,379
AR ERE Available-for-sale investments
—REBAIN T2 — Equity securities listed outside
NS Hong Kong 16,650 - - 16,650
—JELMRAER — Unlisted equity funds - 29,818 - 29,818
16,650 29,818 - 46,468
EEiARE N B8 Financial assets designated as at fair
B T HEE value through profit or loss
—EEMEER — Structured deposits - 308,956 - 308,956
2011
FE—R B EFE=R #EtT
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FHIT T T FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SEEE Financial assets
FIEEERE Held-for-trading investments
—REBUINET 2 — Equity securities listed outside
RENEE S Hong Kong 12,616 = = 12,616
AR ERE Available-for-sale investments
—RBEBUINETZ — Equity securities listed outside
N Hong Kong 14,149 = = 14,149
—JE ERAES — Unlisted equity funds = 32,775 = 32,775
14,149 32,775 - 46,924
HEEFE BB A B8 Financial assets designated as at fair
B THEE value through profit or loss
—EREMEER — Structured deposits = 351,167 = 351,167
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RAFEER  WEREF—RERE_RZENH
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED)

5b.Financial risk management objective and
policies (continued)

Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position (continued)

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the current year.

For unlisted equity fund classified as level 2, the fair values are provided
by an independent and qualified professional valuer. The unlisted equity
funds are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period.
Based on the relevant agreements, the Group can require the relevant
investment managers to redeem the units at the net asset value per unit
by giving a written redemption notice of not less than 90 business days
and the fair value of the unlisted equity fund is therefore determined
based on the net asset value per unit provided by the relevant investment
manager.
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AEERAFEREZWATERBEFBEMEE
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VR EEMEE(TEZREEERYEEEM
SRS EE) - A - RERTARQF
HITESHERDEMTIERRZAKEN 2
WAL BB IR SR UL IR E R EF -

REBFE  AEEZA2HRMEED W
A FE - BERBERNDNNT

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's revenue for the year was derived mainly from activities
carried out and located in the PRC other than Hong Kong. The Group’s
basis of organisation is determined based on four main operations:
property development, property investment, manufacture, sales and
trading of cement, clinker and construction materials and other operations,
that comprises mainly hotel and property management and golf course
operation. Similarly, the Group’s reportable and operating segments,
reported to the Executive Directors of the Company for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, also focused on these
four main operations.

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue, results, assets and
liabilities by reportable and operating segments for the year under review:

2012 2011
FEx FAT
HK$°000 HK$'000
HEE R T Sales of completed properties 177,810 763,690
Hel A Rental income 407,559 384,706
HE - HERBE Manufacture, sales and trading of
IKIE - PR R cement, clinker and
YR construction materials 705,597 727,263
SRABKG B A Income from golf course operation 24,477 25,561
BIE R TR Income from hotel and property
A management 94,643 85,487
1,410,086 1,986,707

SRR D BRIEE D2 MEME &
B -

There are no intersegment sales and transfers among the reportable and
operating segments.
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6. DEEE ) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conTINUED)

AREBRAEZE ZWANREEFERBER The Group's revenue and assets for the year were derived mainly from
e 2 355 BRI B SEBME - A& activities carried out and located in the PRC other than Hong Kong. An
B UA - HEpELE BERABBERAT ML analysis of the Group’s revenue, segment results, assets and liabilities by

KEDEBAITAT - reportable and operating segment is as follows:
£E - HE
REEKE
ZBR
EEMER
Manufacture,
sales and
trading of
cement,
MERR MHRE  clinker and Hip&E
Property Property construction Other L6t
development investment materials  operations Consolidated
THET THET THET THET THERT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BEzE—2——F For the year ended
+=HA=+—H1it 31st December, 2012
FE
2 EBA SEGMENT REVENUE
HIMNEE External sales 177,810 407,559 705,597 119,120 1,410,086
ES RESULTS
SE(EHB)EF  Segment (loss) profit (165,518) 794,589 (8,932) (12,478) 607,661
E AU A Kz Other income and gains 142,885
REeDHE 2 F Unallocated corporate
& A expenses (102,879)
BhE B AN Finance costs (181,311)
FE(LEE A EIEIE  Share of loss of associates (61) - - - (61)
JFE {15 £ [E) 422 ) Share of profit (loss) of jointly
~aEpE N (EE) controlled entities 140,038 134,832 - (29,861) 245,009
B AT Al Profit before tax 711,304
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6. DEER ) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conNTINUED)

£EHE

REBEKE

L E)N

2ENR

Manufacture,

sales and

trading of

cement,

MERRE M%R#E  clinker and Hit&&E

Property Property construction Other a8t
development investment materials  operations Consolidated
TER TET THET TER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

R=-TB—=F As at 31st December, 2012

+=A=+—H
BE Assets
DEBEE Segment assets 11,411,774 8,233,794 830,005 157,204 20,632,777
PREfL AR Z#E2ZE  Interests in associates 9,834 - - - 9,834
RHEFEEHIAT 2 Interests in jointly controlled

s entities 1,026,462 622,169 - 86,529 1,735,160
REEDHEE 2 (¥ EE Unallocated corporate assets 2,487,063
aHBEE Consolidated total assets 24,864,834
af& Liabilities
DI afE Segment liabilities 1,739,594 196,093 13,643 196,180 2,145,510
Ree D 7 D% EE Unallocated corporate liabilities 8,307,010
EotaaE Consolidated total liabilities 10,452,520
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6. DEER )

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conTINUED)

£E - #HE
REBEKE
ABR
EER
Manufacture,
sales and
trading of
cement,
MERRE M%R#E  clinker and Hin&E
Property Property construction Other aot
development investment materials  operations Consolidated
T TER TiEx T THEx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE-_Z——f§ Other information for the
+=HA=+—H year ended
IEEEzHER  31st December, 2012
BENDEBHMEL  Amounts included in the measure
RO HEE of segment profit or loss or
FTEZ SR segment assets:
JERENEE 2L N Addition to non-current assets 1,143,110 132,664 57,373 31,179 1,364,326
PTE Y Depreciation and amortisation 114,377 4,810 20,880 12,007 152,074
HEFGESEZE « Loss (gain) on disposal and
R Rkt 2 write-off of property, plant
&8 (Y ) and equipment 167 45 44 (3,858) (3.602)
B8 TY)3E17 58 Fair value gain on transfer of
EIREMEZ inventories of completed
AREE properties to investment
Wz properties - 37,734 - - 37,734
WEWHE N EE  Increase in fair value of
;i investment properties - 515,717 - - 515,717
B TYEFE 2 Write-down inventories of
B completed properties 14,139 - - - 14,139
RIZER Allowance for bad and doubtful
EH debts 11,663 - 23,964 - 35,627
HEEEIRE AR Netdecrease in fair value of held-
BEZFHD for-trading investments - - - 209 209
Al HEE3RE 2 FE Impairment loss on available-for-
EBEEH DA sale investment reclassified to
Bl profit or loss - - - 8,987 8,987
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6. DEER )

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conTINUED)

HE - HE
REEKE
R
BEDE
Manufacture,
sales and
trading of
cement,
MEER MEi&  dinkerand Hith &
Property Property  construction Other At
development investment materials operations  Consolidated
FHT FHT TAT FAT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE_ZT——F For the year ended
+=A=+—H 31st December, 2011
LHEE(ER) (Restated)
2EBBA SEGMENT REVENUE
EINHE External sales 763,690 384,706 727,263 111,048 1,986,707
ES RESULTS
2 E#B A Segment profit 232,985 534,158 63,002 23,521 853,666
E il A R ias Other income and gains 116,742
REEDHEEZ bE Unallocated corporate
= g=s! expenses (103,549)
BUE RS Finance costs (151,242)
JE{LEtS N alE4E  Share of loss of associates (19) - - (57) (76)
FE( LRz Share of profit of jointly
NEDE N controlled entities 399,585 14,353 - 4,412 418,350
BRAF R A Profit before tax 1,133,891
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6. DEER (2

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conTINUED)

£E - HE
REEKE
FE R
B
Manufacture,
sales and
trading of
cement,
MRER Mx&ZAE  clinker and Hipe g
Property Property  construction Other =X
development investment materials operations  Consolidated
THT FHT FHT TAT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=ZT——£f As at 31st December, 2011
+=A=+—H (Restated)
(E5)
BE Assets
DEBEEE Segment assets 9,659,450 7,671,463 760,220 163,188 18,254,321
B A B 2% Interests in associates 9,933 - - - 9,933
RELRIEFIAGZ  Interests in jointly controlled
B entities 684,458 527,925 - 11,749 1,224,132
REEDEEZ (PG E Unallocated corporate assets 3,397,495
Aot EE Consolidated total assets 22,885,881
a8f& Liabilities
SEWEE Segment liabilities 1,417,036 325,220 8,285 175,187 1,925,728
FGIEVaE:  JPd=E 3 Unallocated corporate
AR liabilities 7,026,314
EHREaE Consolidated total liabilities 8,952,042

A2HH T BRER MMM A AR E

B2t BR—W o »Baf (BB IEFED S
BREMAE(EERNERE)  EPLES#HA
WA R « BB - E(REE AR KR
ZHIARLEF (BB RAREI B OEER -
B THEE R T AR RIMITE S AR D IR RS
REABBMZEE -

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the
Group's accounting policies described in note 3. Segment profit (loss)
represents the profit earned by (loss from) each segment without allocation
of other income and gains, finance costs, share of profit (loss) of associates
and jointly controlled entities and unallocated corporate expenses. This is
the measure reported to the Executive Directors of the Company for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.
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6. DEER )

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conTINUED)

HE - HE
REENKE
FE R
BEDE
Manufacture,
sales and
trading of
cement,
MERR WEKE  clinkerand Hih s
Property Property  construction Other &6
development investment materials operations  Consolidated
THT FHT TAT FAT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE-—Z——#F Other information for
+=A=+—H the year ended
IEEEZHMER 31st December, 2011
BERDESHEFEL  Amounts included in the
BiES DS EE measure of segment profit or
FTEZ S loss or segment assets:
JERBEE 2N Addition to non-current assets 1,308,105 120,196 34,279 11,702 1,474,282
HTEE N g Depreciation and amortisation 68,582 4,165 19,308 9,367 101,422
HEFTEEYEE - (Gain) loss on disposal and
B k&2 write-off of property, plant
(Yzs) B8 and equipment (28) 15 369 (1,195) (839)
B8 T Y517 58 Fair value gain on transfer of
EREMEL inventories of completed
NAEE properties to investment
e properties - 12,275 — - 12,275
WEMENREE  Increase in fair value of
230 investment properties = 296,094 - - 296,094
BRTYHERFE 2  Write-down inventories of
B completed properties 7,245 - - - 7.245
VART S EHEH 2 Recoveries of bad debts
EERRI ] written off in prior years 46,135 - 5,131 = 51,266
BEEERERSR  Netdecrease in fair value of
BEZFRD held-for-trading investments = = - 3,808 3,808
& —RIFE AR Z Gain on disposal of
Wz a subsidiary 118,785 = - - 118,785
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6. DEER )

hEE R

AEE Y EBANTE - FFAREBEINES
EEZIMARERERER SR ES
o AEEY FBIERBHEELMARE -
FEREFZER

AEEREHEE —INEPER G2 M ANEARE
BEEWRAI10%A F o

7. H AR s

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conTINUED)
Geographical information

The Group's operations are located in the PRC. All of the Group's revenue
from external customers is determined based on the location at which the
services were provided or the goods were delivered. The Group’s major
non-current assets are located in the PRC.

Information about major customers

No revenue from transaction with single external customer is amounted
to 10% or more of the Group'’s revenue for the year.

7. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

2012 2011
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
& B Dividend income
—FEEMRG — unlisted shares 2,406 12,636
— Tk — listed shares 7,072 225
SRITIFE T B WA Interest income on bank deposits 22,972 29,028
JEUE FRF B A Interest income from loans receivable 22,430 15,614
HAb &SR Interest income on other structured
FLEWA deposits 10,404 3,943
BEESBETEAREE Fair value gain on financial assets
BEZSREE designated as at fair value
Z AR BERS through profit or loss 13,067 12,429
FERGUA Subsidy income 14,696 9,699
HAbgg A Other income 49,838 33,168
142,885 116,742

8. HE—RHMB LRz W&

RNEBE-_ZT—F+-A=+—"BIFERN "
AEBHE —BHB2ARZ100%E 50 &% R
B B AN RBE RS MK -
WIEFBIREYHEERE - ZHLEMBARZ
—EHBARN—EEEEERANS50%HE
ZHBARZEEFER_T—TF+=
=t+t—HEIBERHFE -

o

Pas
fm
A

8. GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

During the year ended 31st December, 2011, the Group disposed of
100% of its interests in and shareholder’s loan to a subsidiary which
is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is engaged in property
development in the PRC. The subsidiary was disposed of to a company,
of which its 50% interest is held by a director of the disposed subsidiary.
The net assets of the subsidiary were classified as held for sales as at 31st
December, 2010.
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8. HE—RBMEAR W= #)

EHEER  KEEZHBAREEREN

8. GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY
(CONTINUED)

The net assets of the subsidiaries at the date of disposal were as follows:

™
2011
FAT
HK$'000
it EEEFE : Net assets disposed of:
L E Y Property, plant and equipment 370
BRANFEEFE Inventories of property under development 487,049
B 5 R E At EWERK - Trade and other receivables, deposits and
e KB prepayments 12,793
RITEF LIRS Bank balances and cash 74,044
B  RRKEMENIERRK Trade, bills and other payables (64)
EEZS Pre-sale deposits (231,629)
e eI IESREEN Non-current interest-bearing borrowings (192,771)
149,792
EfhfREEE Other reserves reclassified to
B (ffita) profit or loss (Note a) 30,843
180,635
& e Gain on disposal 118,785
HESFE - 81 Net proceeds on disposals, comprising 299,420
—RAFEEHELZ — Cash consideration received
BReRE in current year 215,226
—RUABIFEEEWERES — Cash consideration received
e 2 ReRE in prior year as deposit 84,194
299,420
b W F B e Exchange translation reserve
B = 25 A transferred to retained earnings
(Kfathb) (Note b) 9,145
AREEEZHSRAFRE Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
HeRE Cash consideration 215,226
EHEZRITEFRES Bank balances and cash disposed of (74,044)
141,182
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8. HE—RBMEAR W= #)

#isz -

(@) EuRFEEERANFENEEEH  PWEERD
YEREEN DA BERE

ZECHENBAREARR 2 HEEEE
A RHEER - ARZSEEHERBARZ 25
B F B E B ERCE L FEREI R
REHEH

9. BE KA

(b)

]

i 3

8. GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@) Other reserves represented the fair value adjustment arising from acquisition of
properties under development in business combination in prior years.

(b) Since the functional currencies of the disposed subsidiaries and the Company
are the same, exchange differences accumulated in exchange translation reserve
relating to the disposed subsidiaries are reclassified from exchange translation
reserve to retained earnings at the time of disposal.

9. FINANCE COSTS

2012 2011
FTEx FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEAT - Interest on:
RITER Bank loans 210,458 173,673
HpE R Other loans 2,299 1,130
BERZHE Loans arrangement fee 4,610 9,145
IEMEN R BB Imputed interest expenses on non-
HENEER current interest-free borrowings 2,795 2,239
220,162 186,187
- BAMER Less: amount capitalised
ERPYIFE on properties under
B8 development (38,851) (34,945)
181,311 151,242
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10. Bi1H 10. TAXATION
2012 2011
TExT FA&T
HK$'000 HK$'000
(E31))
(Restated)
XHBE The charge comprises:
ANEATIE Current tax
—HRACEMEHR — PRC Enterprise Income Tax 53,323 130,545
—FEIET — Withholding Tax 14,535 28,402
— IR ER - LAT 39,098 20,440
106,956 179,387
BEFERETR Under provision in prior years
— R EFRETR — PRC Enterprise Income Tax 5,604 26,630
— T HbIE(ER —LAT 3,114 -
8,718 26,630
115,674 206,017
BIERIA (H15243) Deferred tax (note 43) 193,980 180,434
309,654 386,451

REBLEE 2 EEBRATNZMFEALMEER  No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the group
FERTL A - i BB EFSHIEL B ©  companies operating in Hong Kong do not have any assessable profits
RIS ENB AFERIETTER  for both years. The PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at the rates
o applicable to respective subsidiaries.
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10. BB ()

REBFECEMEHERTBREEMBREE
D) - —TFENF—A—HE  hEHB
NRMTE25% °

TR 2 B T IR AARE T B BUE R ARG A
RIZHRERE - LHIBERREIRERIIETE
R FFRREIRIE REHE -

LRV B M E RIS B R 2 HE @A
[2008] 15% - BE=ZZTTNEFE—HA—HMK  ®
FRIR 2B ARFTEE DK TIERER
TEE IR B BB RT E S EMEH IR F
RO EREFREFIR27TEERINTIRE L%
RONE ¥ R EE AR EIERININE IR E
EERIINECFEHTEAEFEEN - ROREREF
ZIEFERLTE 2 1H9,339,00078 7T 1. 12,252,00078
TEDRRAREZE—"TE——Ft+_-_A=+—H
EFERBE-T——F+A=+—HLHF
EZEREWEIRA o

10. TAXATION (conTINUED)

Under the laws of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax Law and Implementation
Regulation of the Enterprise Income Tax Law, the tax rate applicable to
the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1st January, 2008 onwards.

The provision for LAT is calculated according to the requirements set
forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. LAT has been provided
at ranges of progressive rates of the appreciation value, with certain
allowable deductions.

According to a joint circular of the Ministry of Finance and State
Administration of Taxation — Cai Shui 2008 No. 1, dividend distributed
out of the profits generated by its subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC
to “non-residential” investors since 1st January, 2008 shall be subject to
PRC Enterprise Income Tax and which held by the PRC entity pursuant to
Articles 3 and 27 of the Income Tax Law Concerning Foreign Investment
Enterprises and Foreign Enterprises and Article 91 of the Detailed Rules
for the Implementation of the Income Tax Law for Enterprises with
Foreign Investment Enterprises and Foreign Enterprises. Deferred tax
charge of HK$9,339,000 and HK$12,252,000 on the undistributed
earnings has been recognised in the consolidated income statement for
the year ended 31st December, 2012 and 2011 respectively.
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10. BB ()

AR ERIE X BLR A WE BR PR R 2 R
W -

10. TAXATION (conTINUED)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the

consolidated income statement as follows:

2012 2011
FEx FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
(E31))
(Restated)
BR R AT & ) Profit before taxation 711,304 1,133,891
LB B E25% T 8 2 18 Tax at the domestic income tax rate
iﬁ——i 25%) of 25% (2011: 25%) 177,826 283,473
FE(RES & R | R L RE S A A Tax effect of share of profit of
Z%nﬂZ?RIE associates and jointly controlled
2 entities (61,237) (104,569)
DRI S 2 B8 Tax effect of expenses not
28 deductible for tax purpose 24,372 33,435
R A Z B IE Tax effect of income not taxable for
T tax purpose (23,610) (13,258)
KRR IAEE R E A Tax effect of tax losses and other
AHRERER 2 deductible temporary differences
TRIas & not recognised 84,033 76,010
B) R R MR IE B R & Tax effect of utilisation of taxes
Lt AT H0 0 R losses and other deductible
ERZMIA temporary differences previously
-7 not recognised (52,063) (21,228)
By —HEHEMBARZ Effect of tax exemption granted to a
FHIREA G B 2 PRC subsidiary - (9,543)
by NIRRT Effect of different tax rates of
& subsidiaries (8,253) (8,115)
R IEREBFZ Withholding tax on undistributed
TERERR earnings 9,339 12,252
AR TERE R PRC withholding tax 14,535 28,402
if@i‘{ﬁfﬂZ%ﬁ; Effect of LAT 135,146 80,992
BREFERETNR Underprovision in prior years 8,718 26,630
Hity Others 848 1,970
AREFREL H Tax charge for the year 309,654 386,451

AEEMERAZBEARRIASEERE LM
B2 R (BIPBEEEMBHRRE) o

The domestic tax rate (which is PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate) in the

jurisdiction where the operation of the Group is substantially based is used.
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1. AFEE &R

11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

2012 2011
FHET FATT
HK$'000 HK$'000
(&%)
(Restated)
REZ T Profit for the year has been arrived
B (GEA) ¢ at after charging (crediting):
Mz - B RRE Depreciation of property, plant and
e \ equipment 48,695 42,957
B BARERE RS Less: amount capitalised in properties
Y St under development (2,378) (1,466)
46,317 41,491
B Amortisation of:
FERERYE Properties for development 102,968 57,083
Tt AR 2 TR Prepaid lease payments on
HER land use rights 2,789 2,848
EMEERATE Total depreciation and amortisation 152,074 101,422
BETER(BRESZHS) Staff costs (including Directors’
(B1:t) emoluments) (Note)
-FeREMWER — Salaries and other costs 156,571 142,688
- RARENER — Retirement benefits costs 13,875 12,884
- - BRME — Less: amount capitalised in
NEEER properties under
V¥ SRR development (17,029) (10,954)
BTERER Total staff costs 153,417 144,618
IR EYHEWE 2 Gross rental income from
ek AL investment properties (407,559) (384,706)
i RERNEE Less: direct operating expenses
HERAZ from investment properties
TEMZER that generated rental
BEREEER income during the year 86,962 85,745
(320,597) (298,961)
IZ B & Auditor’s remuneration 5,405 5,904
BEREA Impairment loss on
EEERA Y available-for-sale investments
A ERE Y included in other operating
BB E expenses 8,987 238
FEZKAEER Cost of inventories recognised as
) Eifii ’ expenses 724,671 1,021,450
JEEE (s )18k Net exchange (gain) loss (1,698) 5,406
BERHEMEERM Urban land use tax included in other
YR SR+ 3 (0 FR A operating expenses 26,066 37,090
& REFEYZE - Gain on disposal and write-off of
B & 5%t 2 W ek property, plant and equipment (3,602) (839)
BN T RIEF 2 Operating lease charges in respect
EEHEER of land and buildings 5,137 5,561
FE{GESE = R Rl BiIE Share of tax of associates
(BEIEEREEEE D (included in share
EER) of loss of associates) - 9
(G FERIEHI A AT IR Share of tax of jointly controlled
(B BIETERE( entities (included in share of profit
HEZEH A BDER A ) of jointly controlled entities) 466,822 377,020
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M. RNEERN#)

Hiat -
BT EBU T BENLRE M ISREM 12 XM zE48(a)FT

BENEEENBTETESIFARRIZESEHET
ZEHEEAR -

12.EEME

BN T+ (ZE——4F ¢ )
EEIHEmT -

11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (CONTINUED)

Note:

The staff costs do not include the apportionment of management fee as disclosed in
note 12 and note 48(a) to the consolidated financial statements for certain Directors as
well as management personnel who are not Directors or staff of the Company.

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the fourteen (2011: fourteen)

Directors were as follows:

2012
Be/

MR E K& EREEL BIREF

HitiEH  AREzES sHEIfA

Salaries/ Performance  Retirement

EEZWE  service fee related benefits
Directors’ and incentive scheme st
fee other benefits  payments contributions Total
THET THEx TExT THET THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

(Kizt)
(Note)
AR R* Hu Aimin* 7 1,500 2,000 - 3,507
RIBH Song Zengbin 10 2,000 2,000 - 4,010
FRk(E Patrick Lee Seng Wei 10 2,722 2,660 114 5,506
=8 Ng Qing Hai 20 2,230 1,641 102 3,993
=5 Ma Sun 10 3,086 1,200 272 4,568
=1 Edwin Lo King Yau 10 828 1,108 38 1,984
TR Tao Tsan Sang 10 1,508 800 139 2,457
R Lee Seng Hui 10 3,452 3,116 34 6,612
BRE Moses Cheng Mo Chi 10 - - - 10
£y Lee Shu Yin 10 - - - 10
b e Francis J. Chang Chu Fai 10 77 - - 87
2EE Jin Hui Zhi 10 77 - - 87
IRELE Ngai Wah Sang 10 99 - - 109
BB Lisa Yang Lai Sum 10 77 - - 87
147 17,656 14,525 699 33,027
* @R E——F—A—AZ-—T——FHAA=-+mEB- * From IstJanuary, 2012 to 24th September, 2012.
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1N.EE8ML ) 12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
2011
e/
R E & EZAS RRET

Hiwtghl ARcES ATEIHR

Salaries/  Performance Retirement

ok service fee related benefits
Directors’ and incentive scheme FH
fee other benefits payments  contributions Total
FHAT FHT TAT TAT FHAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Kiat)
(Note)
HER Hu Aimin 10 2,000 500 = 2,510
ARIEHY Song Zengbin 10 2,000 2,000 = 4,010
TRKIE Patrick Lee Seng Wei 10 2,893 2,500 108 5,511
=58 Ng Qing Hai 10 1,976 716 0 2,792
j25y=2 Ma Sun 10 2,941 300 258 3,509
Eep=x Edwin Lo King Yau 10 766 990 35 1,801
TRAE Tao Tsan Sang 10 1,430 600 132 2,172
FRKIE Lee Seng Hui 10 3,190 4,500 31 7,731
B Moses Cheng Mo Chi 10 - - - 10
=T Lee Shu Yin# 8 - - - 8
L= Francis J. Chang Chu Fai 10 77 - - 87
2HEE Jin Hui Zhi 10 77 = = 87
BESE Ngai Wah Sang 10 99 = - 109
B Lisa Yang Lai Sum 10 77 - - 87
138 17,526 12,106 654 30,424
# H-_E——%=A+N \BE=-_Z—F+=H4 g From 18th March, 2011 to 31st December, 2011.
=+—H8-
HiaE - Note:
SEENZEENCH ARSI THEBES 2ABAT—  The amounts represent the actual discretionary bonus in respect of the preceding year
FEEERMEFRES - approved and paid to respective Directors during the year.
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12.EEMe )

RERR R-T—=F—H—Bi 5B
SMIMITES  BIEEIELL 2FERE
RELEENGRRLLIZRBER T ——
FEFHIZPG -

FREXEBRBTARBTHAR IBE - &R
A EW 2 e BRmEERITRAERH RS
ZHBE -

REBE—E——F+-_A=+—RI-EERE

EoE F+-A=t+-AILEE  TEE
EHREAME -

ETEER—RBAARREAERSE 2 AFIR
HE2EWBARIKEEE - ZARIAAEER
HERRY  WAASERZEES REMIT
FARREEZEEEAE KB IFTRHARTS
WENER - ZERC BEENT48) MRS
EIRBH o

P2 EBBNIREEEAERASESH
FiIfTE e BHGE YA EE ElES -
BB 5 A7,921,0008 L (=T ——%F
8,742,000/ 7T) * WEBFEELRA -

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (conTiNUED)

Subsequent to the year end date, the service fee of each of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Francis J. Chang Chu
Fai, Mr. Jin Hui Zhi, Mr. Ngai Wah Sang and Ms. Lisa Yang Lai Sum, was
increased by approximately 3% with effect from 1st January, 2013 as
compared with 2012.

Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei performs the function of the chief executive
of the Company and his emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by him as the chief executive.

None of the Directors waived any emoluments in the year ended 31st
December, 2012 and 31st December, 2011.

Certain Directors received remuneration from a company, or a wholly
owned subsidiary of such company which has significant beneficial
interests in the Company. Such company provided management services
to the Group and charged the Group a fee, which has been included in
management fee as disclosed in note 48(a), for services provided by those
Directors as well as other management personnel who were not Directors
and staff of the Company.

The above-mentioned management fee is calculated by reference to the
time devoted by the management personnel on the affairs of the Group
and can be apportioned to the Directors mentioned above. The total of
such apportioned amounts, which has been included in the above table, is
HK$7,921,000 (2011: HK$8,742,000).
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B.EERSREEAESHE

EBEME

AEFLUGEMEALTRENA(ZF——
F:OM)ES  EMEESBER LlkE12
o B (ZF——F: —f)ALZBE

13. EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS

Employees’ emoluments
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, four

(2011: four) were Directors whose emoluments are included in note 12
above. The emoluments of the remaining one (2011: one) individual were

N as follows:
2012 2011
FHET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
e M EMEF] Salaries and other benefits 2,220 2,112
HREER Performance related incentive
Ed payments 1,688 2,600
BRIKEFIFTE Retirement benefits scheme
K contributions 111 106
4,019 4,818
HMe 2 oM T : Their emoluments were within the following bands:
2012 2011
EEEE BEEEE
Number of Number of
employees employees
4,000,001 7T — 4,500,000/ 7T HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 1 -
4,500,001 7 — 5,000,000/ 7T HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 - 1

AEE 2 HHBERIZIRI T H# K k&8
AEEARLERNREZRBETE - REMF
A AEBYWENEAME FZAERSH
ZATEREBREMARKE Z R -

The remuneration policies of the Group are based on the prevailing
remuneration level in the market and the performance of respective
group companies and individual employees. During both years, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group.
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B.EERSREBAENE &

BREEAEME

AEB Y SREBAER  EFTHAA(ZE
—F: TV AES BE2HeERE
RALzHE -BE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—
BIEEE  H&Mu(ZZ——4%F : W) AL
e

13. EMPLOYEES’' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS (conTINUED)

Senior management’s emoluments

Of the senior management of the Group, fourteen (2011: fourteen) were
the Directors whose emoluments are included in the disclosure above.
The emoluments of the remaining four (2011: four) for the year ended
31st December, 2012 were as follows:

2012 2011
FET THET
HK$'000 HK$'000
e KHEAMER Salaries and other benefits 3,745 3,524
HEERR Performance related incentive
£e payments 5,142 5,476
BIREFE S Retirement benefits scheme
R contributions 217 200
9,104 9,200
HE4 > ST - Their emoluments were within the following bands:
2012 2011
EEHE EEEE
Number of Number of
employees employees
1,000,000/ 7L 3 LA T~ HK$1,000,000 or below 1 1
1,000,001/ 7T — 2,000,000/ 70 HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1 1
2,000,0017%7T — 3,000,000/ 7T HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 - 1
3,000,001/87T — 4,000,000/ 7T HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 1 -
4,000,00177T — 5,000,000/ 7T HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 1 1

BREERABKBZBERAFRIEZLD
REBRABZEAER ] —EIABE -

The biographies of members of the senior management are disclosed
in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.
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14. 8REF 14. EARNINGS PER SHARE
ARATIIRIENG 2 BREXRBF TR T 583 The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the owners
FTE of the Company is based on the following:
2012 2011
FET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
(&)
(Restated)
7| Earnings
FRAGTESRER Earnings for the purpose of basic
&R 2 7w A earnings per share (profit for the
(AR BIRRR FEAG year attributable to owners of the
RER ) Company) 401,403 747,019
2012 2011
Tz FAz
‘000 ‘000
R Number of shares
RUGTESRERRF 2 Number of ordinary shares in issue
REEEETT during the year for the purpose
Sl id= of basic earnings per share 1,506,769 1,506,769

HE—_T——#x-—FT——*F+-_HA=+—H
WHFE - WEEE25EREERT - BAERE
E_E—_HFR-FT——F+ZA=+—HIt
FERNILEEER LR -

No diluted earnings per share has been presented for the years ended
31st December, 2012 and 2011 as there were no outstanding potential
ordinary shares during the years ended 31st December, 2012 and 2011.

15. R &2 15. DIVIDEND
2012 2011
TExT FA&T
HK$'000 HK$'000
REEANRERDIRZ Dividend recognised as
RS distributions during the year:
BENZZE——F 2 KRHKRER Final dividend for 2011 paid of
BB (ZE—F - HK4 cents (2011: for 2010
BN —FE 2 FRI105) paid of HK10 cents) per share 60,271 150,677
AR RS Final dividend proposed of
G4 HK4 cents (2011: HK4 cents)
ZE——F : GRAB) per share 60,271 60,271

BEeEa k¥ E—_T——F+_-_A=+—
BIEBEREE 2 RBAREERIBWL(ZE——
F  FRRAB) - ERIABRBBFBRERAR
ARG ERITZ RERIBFE RS A& -

The final dividend of HK4 cents (2011: HK4 cents) per share in respect of
the financial year ended 31st December, 2012 has been proposed by the
Board and is subject to approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.
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16. W% - BERSE 16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
EREZ EREZ
REAS  hEENZ %6 G
IHREF BEARS EERRE
Land and Golf Leasehold
buildings course improvements,
inthe PRC in the PRC EEIR BEREE  furniture, RE
on medium- on medium- Construction Plantand fixtures and Motor it
termlease  termlease  inprogress  machinery  equipment vehicles Total

THTL T TETL TETL T T TETL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AEH THE GROUP
RAE COST
W=F—%—H—H At 1st January, 2011 288,802 72,586 115,079 127,543 60,185 38,303 702,498
EH A% Exchange adjustments 14,603 9,413 5,683 6,358 1,247 1,639 38,943
B2 Additions 2,060 - 28,000 2,636 14,527 7,647 54,870
EREERTYE Transfer from inventories of

"E completed properties 4,521 - - - - - 4,521
RSB Transfer to investment properties (21,809) - - - - - (21,809)
BEERENZRINE Surplus on revaluation of properties

EhBH upon transfer to investment properties 5,632 - - - - - 5,632
ENAE Reclassification 69,098 - (147,762) 75,079 3,585 - -
PEAGEEE Reclassified from assets held for sale 34,260 120,720 - = 28,462 5,034 188,476
HERFH Disposals and write-off (31) - - (292) (2,681) (3,981) (6,985)
REEHBARBHEL Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries - - - - (1,085) - (1,085)
W=F——&+=F=1—H  At31stDecember, 2011 397,136 202,719 1,000 211,324 104,240 48,642 965,061
[EH A% Exchange adjustments 7 - - - (4) (78) (109)
BE Additions 32,222 - 103,765 2,398 17,819 1,261 157,465
ERATRT Transfer from inventories of

3 completed properties 38,727 - - - - - 38,727
5 E Reclassification 1,882 - (2,633) 751 - - -
PEEREEE Reclassified from assets held for sale - - - - 3470 1,492 4,962
HERFSH Disposals and write-off (265) (948) - - (1373) (1,838) (4.424)
W=®-=F+=A=+-B  At31stDecember, 2012 49575 201771 102132 24473 14152 49479 1,161,682
ik DEPRECIATION
W=2——%-f-A At 1st January, 2011 9,928 6,669 - 9,206 20,329 17,161 63,293
5 R Exchange adjustments 822 1,554 - 743 608 782 4,509
REFEHE Provided for the year 9,282 5423 - 11,264 10,654 6,334 42,957
EEERENE Transfer to investment properties (2,806) - - - - - (2,806)
PEAGELE Reclassified from assets held for sale 8,609 24,767 - - 23,361 4,561 61,298
B Rt B bR Eliminated on disposals and write-off 2 - - (16) (589) 2,783) (3,390
N NG5 S Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries - - - - (715) - (715)
W=B——#+ZA=t-B  At3lst December, 2011 5833 38413 - 209 388 26055 165146
[EH A% Exchange adjustments 7 - - - (13) (115) (155)
KEEAR Provided for the year 11,922 5,557 - 11,737 12,898 6,581 48,695
PEBREEE Reclassified from assets held for sale - - - - 2,450 859 3,309
R E R MR Eliminated on disposals and write-off - - - - (1,230) (1,838) (3,068)
RZB--F+-A=1+—-H  At31st December, 2012 37,728 43,970 - 32,934 67,753 31,542 213,927
FEE CARRYING VALUES
RZZ-ZF+-FA=1—-H At31stDecember, 2012 431,947 157,801 102,132 181,539 56,399 17,937 947,755
WZE——F+-A=+—H  At31st December, 2011 371,303 164,306 1,000 190,127 50,592 22,587 799,915
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16. Y% -  MERZHE 2 16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conTiINUED)

B8 ~ BRI
HERZE
Leasehold
improvements,
furniture, AE
fixtures and Motor F
equipment vehicles Total
THT THT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PN THE COMPANY
BAME CoST
WZZE——%—H—H At 1st January, 2011 30,012 8,725 38,737
[E H Exchange adjustments 1,482 431 1,913
EE Additions 5,320 - 5,320
HE Kt Disposals and write-off (2,172) - (2,172)
R-ZE—F+=-A=1+—H At 31st December, 2011 34,642 9,156 43,798
BE Additions 2,472 287 2,759
HE Kt Disposals and write-off (125) (333) (458)
R-BE——F+=-A=+—H At 31st December, 2012 36,989 9,110 46,099
wE DEPRECIATION
R=ZZT——%—H—H At 1st January, 2011 16,798 5,499 22,297
P& 5, A2 Exchange adjustments 830 271 1,101
REFFHR Provided for the year 420 958 1,378
P E R ER S Eliminated on disposals and write-off (116) - (116)
RZZE—F+=A=+—H At 31st December, 2011 17,932 6,728 24,660
REFFHR Provided for the year 475 1,005 1,480
P& Rt SRR Eliminated on disposals and write-off (125) (332) (457)
R-—EBE——F+=-A=+—H At 31st December, 2012 18,282 7,401 25,683
IRE{E CARRYING VALUES
R-E-—H+=-A=+—H At 31st December, 2012 18,707 1,709 20,416
R—Z——F+=-A=1+—8 At 31st December, 2011 16,710 2,428 19,138
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17. REW = 17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
AEE
THE GROUP
2012 2011
TExT FA&T
HK$'000 HK$'000
DNREE FAIR VALUE
R—HA—H At 1st January 6,615,050 6,651,340
FE 5, 8% Exchange adjustments - 336,287
BE Additions 123,171 116,233
HERTIMESFE Transferred from inventories of
=N completed properties 16,401 3,264
ERBYE  BER Transferred from property, plant and
B equipment - 19,003
e T A2 TR Transferred from prepaid lease
HEX payments on land use rights - 1,708
ERERERYE Transferred to inventories of
FE properties under development (11,281) (72,436)
2B (B)FE Reclassified from (to) assets held
BE for sale 741,000 (741,000)
HhE Disposals (17,382) (7,718)
BB TYEFEEER Fair value gain on transfer of
EREYEL inventories of completed
N EBERE properties to investment properties 37,734 12,275
ERNEEEZ AT BE Increase in fair value recognised
0 in profit or loss 515,717 296,094
Rt+tZ—A=+—H At 31st December 8,020,410 6,615,050
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17. REVMZE %)

REBZREMFENERBERIVEFER
BV BER#EZ2BH T ——F+=
A=T—BEZFE—F+ZH=1+—HB2ZA
A EETHEREEEE (A EERNE L F ST
HE— LB REBTEERARNE BT
B EFERTEBRATERESEAER
ZMEXZERNKEE  stARTHS KRR
MEERFWAED - RERIEERNYEM
= MEDIRE —[EYFEERD —RBA K
RS2EEELRES  ERNRESEMSHESH
TE - RRERIYEFEEREREME L
MEMS @ HEDEREELEEL -

EREMELRNFTE - WIREBELODHTMN

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (conminuED)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at the date of transfer
from inventories of completed properties and from property, plant and
equipment, 31st December, 2012 and 31st December, 2011 have been
arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on that date by Norton
Appraisals Limited, a firm of independent and qualified professional
valuers not connected with the Group. The valuation was principally
based on investment approach by taking into account the current rents
passing and the reversionary income potential of tenancies. For the
properties which are currently vacant, the valuation was based on each of
the property interests by capitalisation of the hypothetical and reasonable
market rents with a typical lease term and also make reference to the
direct comparison approach. For the properties which were transferred
from inventories of completed properties to investment properties, the
valuation was based on direct comparison approach.

Investment properties are all located in the PRC and comprise properties

T held under:
REE

THE GROUP
2012 2011
FET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
RHEIFEAY Long lease 3,971,700 2,815,400
FRERFRAY Medium-term lease 3,302,210 3,799,650
5 HEAME 4 Short lease 746,500 =
8,020,410 6,615,050
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18. SFERYE 18. PROPERTIES FOR DEVELOPMENT
REH
THE GROUP
2012 2011
F&T T
HK$'000 HK$'000

RHPBZY%E  BRAE PROPERTIES IN THE PRC, AT COST
R—HA—Bz#&fH% Balance at 1st January 5,103,075 3,942,513
b H 3 EX Exchange adjustments - 148,850
BE Additions 2,656,247 967,309
R BRI Transferred to inventories of

FE properties under development (212,773) (182,268)
i Write-off (136,922) -
PEEFEEE Reclassified from assets held for sale - 226,671
Rt B=+t—Hz&H Balance at 31st December 7,409,627 5,103,075
HeERORE AMORTISATION AND

IMPAIRMENT

R—A—B &8 Balance at 1st January 434,298 355,885
b 5 SR B Exchange adjustments - 8,445
NG [ 5 Amortisation for the year 102,968 57,083
R B R Transferred to inventories of

FE properties under development (5,040) (9,069)
AT SRR Bl Eliminated on write-off (136,922) =
DEBFEEE Reclassified from assets held for sale - 21,954
R+—A=+—RH2z&& Balance at 31st December 395,304 434,298
BREE CARRYING VALUES 7,014,323 4,668,777
AEEBRFERYE The Group's properties for

BIE development comprise:
Rz A& L Leasehold land in the PRC

REAFRAY Long lease 2,432,883 3,246,884

R HRZR A Medium-term lease 4,581,440 1,421,893

7,014,323 4,668,777

RUARIFE  EFHEREDEETEEAR
BE—REERVEANFBHEEH L
WABEBELRMRE - B - HEESE
136,922,000 7T 2 R A BT G B L AER « RAK
FE - AZWEN T RO E BT - FTAE
T AE B AR U K 5% 5 B AR R AR T 8N o

AEEEEENFERMECIEUALAZEE
FEZBEEBTRERNE - TRRFEIR
BR-E——F+_A=+—HNBIEEM
EMET °

In prior years, the directors conducted a review of the properties for
development and determined that a piece of property for development
was impaired, due to demolition problem that made severe delay in the
development progress of the land site. Accordingly, impairment losses of
HK$136,922,000 have been recognised in prior years. During the year,
the land certificate of the property has been cancelled as the land return
to local authority and the property has been written off accordingly.

The management of the Group had carried out impairment assessment
on the properties for development based on the lower of cost and net
realisable value for properties for development. The net realisable values
were determined based on independent professional valuations at 31st
December, 2012.
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19. tHfFFHEZFANIHER 19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS ON LAND USE
RIGHTS
THE GROUP
2012 2011
FHET FAT
HK$’'000 HK$'000
REBE T RE 2 The Group's prepaid lease payments
ENHEERBLRE on land use rights comprise:
Rz HE i Leasehold land in the PRC
RHEAEA Long lease 40,395 48,876
FRHEATRAY Medium-term lease 69,976 64,285
110,371 113,161
MEmEMELH TR - Analysed for reporting purposes as:
EMENEE Non-current asset 107,626 110,523
mENEE Current asset 2,745 2,638
110,371 113,161

200 AMB AR Z2EZRHE AT 20.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS

EN DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES
RANF]

THE COMPANY
2012 2011
FET FBT
HK$’000 HK$'000

FEETIRE KRR Unlisted investments and capital

A contribution 4,733,330 3,151,037
J& - BEDRE Less: accumulated impairment (129,546) (111,146)
4,603,784 3,039,891

MEARIRFZEER  RERNEERKTE  Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
B -RZZT——F+-HA=+—H " RFHT repayable on demand. As at 31st December, 2012, the amounts due
@E@iﬁ%,ﬁﬂﬂiﬁé‘i’ B AMERE - FTLARZ©%  are not expected to be repaid within twelve months from the end of the
BIETB R E(HEFE53.68% ° reporting period. The balances are therefore shown as non-current and

carried at imputed interest rate of 3.68%.

FEWBRAAINZE—Z—_F+=A=FT—HZ Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31st December, 2012 are set out in
BRI HEN ST - note 51.

176 XZHEIREARAT Tian An China Investments Company Limited



mEMB®RXMNE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(BE_Z——F+-A=+—HLFE)
For the year ended 31st December, 2012

1. ABE DT 2R

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

TS 3
THE GROUP
2012 2011
TR TAT
HK$°000 HK$°000

RIELTHEERRIRE

Cost of investment in unlisted

A (Hiaz) associates (Note) 7,203 7,203
FEIE YRR 2 B Share of post-acquisition profits and
Efth 2 E W R losses and other comprehensive
B AR E income, net of dividends received 68 129
7,271 7,332

Mt REERRIRE Z KA BIER B FE K ER
BNARIFTEA Z 846,000 (ZF——4F ¢
46,000/ 7T) ©

A EAB A R 2 S AR E 25
T

Note:  Included in the cost of investment in associates is goodwill of HK$46,000 (2011:
HK$46,000) arising on acquisitions of associates in prior years.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s interests
in associates is set out below:

2012 2011

FERT THT

HK$’'000 HK$'000

BEAE Total assets 47,790 47,790

BfE#ERE Total liabilities (10,627) (10,434)

BESE Net assets 37,163 37,356
REEEEEE AR Group's share of net assets of

BEFE associates 7,271 7,332

WA Revenue - 418

KEFE B Loss for the year (205) (451)

NEFEARE B E(LHTE QA Group's share of loss and other

JE5 18 I EoAth comprehensive expense of

2HK associates for the year (61) (76)
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22 RS ARG T 2

22. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED

ENTITIES
rEE
THE GROUP
+=A=+-HB +ZR=+—-H —A—H
31st December,  31st December, 1st January,
2012 2011 2011
FTET FAT FHAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(&51) (&31)
(Restated) (Restated)
RIEEMHREHIRAIRE 2 Cost of investment in unlisted jointly
A (Hfata) controlled entities (Note a) 747,319 444,343 384,101
FE(RUEETR 2 m T & Share of post-acquisition profits and
Hih 2w other comprehensive income,
YR B net of dividends received 492,019 384,758 253,160
HEEEHIA BRI Amounts due from jointly controlled entities
(Hiztb) (Note b) 38,607 38,607 38,607
Ji - REREE Less: allowance for doubtful debts (38,607) (38,607) (38,607)
1,239,338 829,101 637,261
PN
THE COMPANY
2012 2011
FExT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RIE LT HRESIA R Cost of investment in unlisted
BE 2 KR jointly controlled entities 10,906 10,906

BHEEHARN - E——F+_A=+—
B2 BRI SR FES2 o

it -

(@) MEREEGHIARIRE 2K ABIERIBEFEREL
B35 H A R BT EE A& 2 2 409,000 T (=T ——
£ 1 409,000 7T) °

(b HREHA TS TEREERE T AANEE
R - HOEIRDLE - e BAREARLE
Rk o

Details of the principal jointly controlled entities at 31st December, 2012
are set out in note 52.

Notes:

(@) Included in the cost of investment of jointly controlled entities is goodwill of
HK$409,000 (2011: HK$409,000) arising on acquisitions of jointly controlled
entities in prior years.

(b) The jointly controlled entities are not expected to repay the advances within twelve
months from the end of the reporting period and the balances are classified as
non-current. The amounts are unsecured and interest-free.
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2. AHEEF AT 2 ER &)

AEBREREGI AR 2R 2 MEERBE
EFNT :

22. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED

ENTITIES (conTINUED)

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's interests

in jointly controlled entities is set out below:

2012 2011
FET THET
HK$'000 HK$'000
(&%)
(Restated)
BERE Total assets 13,008,959 9,862,367
BEEE Total liabilities (10,464,620) (8,167,844)
I s Non-controlling interests (45,081) (34,262)
BEFE Net assets 2,499,258 1,660,261
5= B A FE RIS A 7] Group's share of net assets of
BEFE jointly controlled entities 1,239,338 829,101
WA Revenue 3,732,706 2,894,634
AN s A Profit for the year 776,500 847,283
H b2 mias Other comprehensive income 72,631 206,986
REEREEES Group's share of profits and other
RS A Rl A comprehensive income of jointly
R H M 2 controlled entities for the year 245,005 483,456
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23. R HERE

23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

AEE

THE GROUP
2012 2011
FET FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000

REBAIN L2 Equity securities listed outside

PR GE % Hong Kong 16,650 14,149
JEETRAE S Unlisted equity securities 84,360 83,515
FEETmRAES Unlisted equity funds 29,818 32,775
130,828 130,439

REBEBAIMNETT LT 2 RAE AR EER
B ZFEREZANEBEIIREBBEXZZHM
HTHEAREBEE

I EMARAZ SRR B RAERBIAINK LAY
RAPTETZIFEMEAEZZRE - JELH
BAE S TR AR ER R E BRI ERR
5k - BB Z AR BEMAFZBERK - &
AEERR/ZERF LA BETER S

=
= °

FEEMBAESHENBEBRILZ I EMIRAE
SZRE  FEMBRAESUARERARZ AR
EBEFE - REBE2HE  AEERTEL—
& D901 T VER # & [ A 8 [0 38 &1 25K AR
BARELEAEEFEBOERL - FF EMBRA
ESZ AN EEHER RELRRE® -

Equity securities listed outside Hong Kong are stated at fair value which
is determined based on the quoted market bid price available on the
relevant exchanges.

Unlisted equity securities represent investments in unlisted equity
securities issued by the entities established in the PRC and outside Hong
Kong. Unlisted equity securities are stated at cost less impairment at the
end of the reporting period because the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant that the Directors are of the opinion that their
fair values cannot be measured reliably.

Unlisted equity fund represent investments in unlisted equity fund
established in Hong Kong. Unlisted equity funds are measured at
fair value at the end of the reporting period. Based on the relevant
agreements, the Group can require the relevant investment manager to
redeem the units at net asset value by giving a written redemption notice
not less than 90 business days. The fair value of the unlisted equity funds
are provided by the relevant investment managers.
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24. BERHERERH

SUREREME @ IERSIEE—EBLESL
AeBEUu((ELRSENM]) HPeE—FER
MEBRDFMBRF - RZTBE—_F+=
A=+—BZBEREEDEE NS

24. GOODWILL AND IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON
GOODWILL

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to
an individual cash-generating unit (“CGU"), including a subsidiary in
property development segment. The carrying amount of goodwill as at
31st December, 2012 allocated is as follows:

rEE
THE GROUP
2012 2011
FHET FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
L E Y Property development 640 640

REE_Z——F+_A=+—HLFEAN "
AEBEEER TR B EARSEMI
REEREZBER °

25 M¥EEFE

AEBEZYEFEURTE - IEVERE
BAARASEFEREEINE - REE
626,811,000 7T ( —Z =& — —4F : 784,449,000
AL ZERTOEEATEEREHRT =
A RER -

AEBEEEHMEFECRRARAIZERF

R-BE——F+-_A=1T—"HNBYEXEME
METE °

During the year ended 31st December, 2012, management of the Group
determines that there is no impairment of its CGU that contains goodwill.

25. INVENTORIES OF PROPERTIES

The Group's inventories of properties are situated in the PRC. All of
the inventories of properties are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Properties under development with carrying amount
of HK$626,811,000 (2011: HK$784,449,000) are expected not to be
realised within twelve months from the end of the reporting date.

The management of the Group had carried out impairment assessment
on the inventories of properties based on the lower of cost and net
realisable value for inventories of properties. The net realisable values
were determined based on independent professional valuations at 31st
December, 2012.

26. Hfh iz & 26. OTHER INVENTORIES
AEE

THE GROUP
2012 2011
FE T THTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
=8 Raw materials 36,036 39,729
& m Work in progress 304 303
BURY M Finished goods 39,251 23,065
75,591 63,097
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27. B AR R
BERARRKERIER - RERNEERTH
-

28. K EEZEH QTR
ARZHAARKEEER - RERREER
TS -

EEEEMAFRBERRE T —EARTK
@ o

29. IR KK

FEEBEBRRAZEER - RERRNEERT

s

B HE

fil

=

30. B E X

R-_E——F+_A=+—H BERER
55,358,000/ 7T ( =& ——4F : 179,630,000/%
TC) AW E KRR RIERER - EFENT
18%E20% (=T ——F : N F10%=E20%)
A —_E—=F—AE+—REE(ZZ——
F:RBE——_FNAET+AER) -

R=ZFE—=—F+=-_A=+—H BERER
93,525,000/t ( =& ——4F : 5,500,000/%7L)
AR RE B IER - X AR BRITRZE
FEMI% (ZF——F : HARITREFEM
4%) RZE—=F_AEER(ZZE——F:
RIZE—Z_F+AER) -

REBEEZZE——F+-_A=+—HIEFE "
RNEBE T — M50 ARE —EEEs
R AR 4% A AR 25,000,0007T (FHE R
30,864,000 70 ) WA A REEFE Z B ©
Zirtar I VKR EEEAER - ZREE
33,068,00078 o4 7 48 & I B FE W B SR04
—ZE—NF+— AREAERAEREERERF
BAETF11.16% °

RZE——F+_f=+—8 EKEXR
247200008 T ABIKHER - FH XA
4.25% BRZZE—_FEE -

27. AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

Amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

28. AMOUNTS DUE FROM JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES

Amounts due from jointly controlled entities are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

The management expects the amounts would be recoverable within
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

29. AMOUNTS DUE FROM NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Amounts due from non-controlling shareholders are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

30. LOANS RECEIVABLE

At 31st December, 2012, loans receivable of HK$55,358,000 (2011
HK$179,630,000) bear interests ranging from 18% to 20% (2011:
ranging from 10% to 20%) per annum, are secured by properties and
shares mortgage and repayable between January to November 2013
(2011: repayable between September to October 2012).

At 31st December, 2012, loans receivable of HK$93,525,000 (2011:
HK$5,500,000) bear interests at Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate plus
4% (2011: Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate plus 4%) per annum,
are secured by share mortgage and repayable in February 2013 (2011:
repayable in December 2012).

During the year ended 31st December 2012, the Group entered into
a trust agreement to subscribe units that were denominated in RMB
with an aggregate principal amount of RMB25,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$30,864,000) in a trust scheme. The trust scheme is secured by
pledged assets. The carrying amount of HK$33,068,000 is classified as
non-current loans receivable and is repayable in November 2014 at par by
the trust and carries effective interest of 11.16% per annum.

At 31st December, 2011, loans receivable of HK$24,720,000, bore
interests at 4.25% per annum, were unsecured and repaid in 2012.
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NEZRHEMBERERNR  RER
CRNEA
B 2 0 T 0 MR B U A

HRIEBE -

B THEWMERFARKRBMERENHE WA
RRAEBZEOGIZN  ARE—RETE
F=1tHE—F0NERRY -

RBERAR - BHRURFZFREC DI T -

31. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS

Proceeds receivable in respect of sale of properties are settled in
accordance with the terms stipulated in the sale and purchase

agreements.

Except for the proceeds from sales of properties and rental income from
lease of properties which are payable in accordance with the terms of the
relevant agreements, the Group generally allows a credit period of 30
days to 1 year to its customers.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables at the end of the
reporting period:

AEE

THE GROUP
2012 2011
TExT FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
=EAR Within 3 months 167,107 186,877
Mz~ EA Between 4 and 6 months 58,319 72,797
+Z=+_—1{@A Between 7 and 12 months 25,791 21,156
i@+ —1@ A8 Over 12 months 3,509 1,208
254,726 282,038

RZZE—F+=ZA=+—8 ' HMEKEX
BIE—T5217,706,000/8 LW iR & A ES S #
—ERARIREHEE 2 W - ZRANEE
wH—ENBARN —RESHE  ZX 50
RZZ——F+-A=1+—HILFERZK °

As at 31st December, 2011, other receivables included a deposit of
HK$217,706,000 which was paid for acquisition of properties held for
sale from a company, of which its entire interest is held by a director of a
subsidiary, and the transaction was completed during the year ended 31st
December, 2012.
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RNETEBESRIAABERE
ZERMEE

32. FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AS AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

AEE
THE GROUP
2012 2011
FTET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERBNAERE M Exchange rate linked structured
=N deposits 308,956 351,167

REBZE—E——F+-_A=+—RHIFERN
REBHPBITIIZAARKE  ASBBA
A R 268,000,000 7T (18 & 7 330,864,000
TTI(=ZZF——%F : AR¥678,000,0007C(HHE
816,867,000/ 7T ) ) Z # IR ANEL 18 1 15
o BHHENTF=@AE+ @A -

R IETF FR 0 A B B eSS T SR BT Sk SR T BB
MTHERES M AR - NERERE - &5
UEFBEERERBRSEAABEEELZS
REE -

ARREBE_ZT——F+_HA=+—HRZ=ZE
——F+_A=+—RALFER A&HLH
& A R # 305,000,000 7T (18 & 7 376,543,000
Bt ) kAR ¥ 428,000,000 7T (18 & R
515,983,000 70) &M FEREE B RAAR
312,775,000 7T ( 48 & P4 386,142,000 % 7T )
M A R¥434,138,0007T (48 & 7 523,057,000
BIL)ER  WHRREBEEZSE—Z=—F+=1
= t+—BEkZFT——FTZH=1T—HLHF
B BRECEBBFEANBEEEZS
MAEZ AN EBEKEARE3,330,0007T (48
E14,111,0007% 7T) & A K #5,871,0007T (1
& 7,074,0007C) c RZZE—Z—_F+=H
=+—HBk=ZZ—F+=ZA=+—H " &E
FRBREAACBERE SREE Y EAA
FHESINF - E—=FmMAE-_T—=4F
+AR—E——F—AE-_T——FNAZHE
BIMETFIR -

During the year ended 31st December, 2012, the Group entered into
new principal protected-structured deposits that are denominated
in RMB with the aggregate principal amount of RMB268,000,000
(equivalent to HK$330,864,000) (2011: RMB678,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$816,867,000)) with banks with maturity periods ranging from three
months to twelve months.

Interest rates of these structured deposits vary depending on the
movement of exchange rate between the United States Dollars and
the Euro or the United States Dollars and the Australian Dollars. The
structured deposits are designated as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition.

Structured deposits with aggregate principal amount of RMB305,000,000
(equivalent to HK$376,543,000) and RMB428,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$515,983,000) had matured and been redeemed at RMB312,775,000
(equivalent to HK$386,142,000) and RMB434,138,000 (equivalent to
HK$523,057,000) during the years ended 31st December, 2012 and 31st
December, 2011 respectively and resulted in fair value gains on financial
assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss of RMB3,330,000
(equivalent to HK$4,111,000) and RMB5,871,000 (equivalent to
HK$7,074,000) for the years ended 31st December, 2012 and 31st
December, 2011 respectively. The balance of financial assets designated
as at fair value through profit or loss as at 31st December 2012 and 31st
December 2011 represented structured deposits with maturity dates
ranging from April 2013 to October 2013 and from January 2012 to
September 2012 respectively.

184 XZHEIREARAT Tian An China Investments Company Limited



REMBRRWE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(BE-Z——H+-_A=+—HIFE)
For the year ended 31st December, 2012

NIETCEBERRIABEERE
LEMEE®)

DEAETEBEREANBEREZSRE
EZREBEEFIR_ZT——FER_ZT—F
TZA=T—RAZARBETBEREEEE
IR B R R 0] B A% B H 25Tl Am —
EHEBRTHERATNE BETEE - R
BHE-Z——F4+_A=1T—RHBEKZZE—%F
TZA=T—HILEFEFRIEEEBEREA
ABEEREZEREE AR EBAEREARE
7,254,000t (F8& 148,956,000/ 7T ) & AR #
4,445,0007T (#H& 15,355,000/ 70) ° ZIHE
FEERUBRRERESN  FTABBHETR
HRFEIRZ RER  URERBRKEE RS
HRITHEERBRIE AR -

33. Hitt B E R

32. FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AS AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (conTINUED)

The fair values of structured deposits classified as financial assets
designated as at fair value through profit or loss as at 31st December,
2012 and 2011 have been arrived at the basis on the valuation carried
out at that date by Norton Appraisals Limited, a firm of independent and
qualified professional valuers not connected with the Group, and resulted
in fair value gains on financial assets designated as at fair value through
profit or loss of RMB7,254,000 (equivalent to HK$8,956,000) and
RMB4,445,000 (equivalent to HK$5,355,000) for the years ended 31st
December, 2012 and 31st December, 2011 respectively. The valuations
are principally based on discounted cash flow analysis by taking into
account the specific terms and structure of the structured deposits as
well as the risk-free rate and specific risk of the counterparty banks as the
discount rate.

33. OTHER STRUCTURED DEPOSITS

AEH
THE GROUP
2012 2011
FTHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R BN LR Interest rate linked structured
=N deposits 216,613 189,225

REBEEZZE——F+_A=+—HIEFER
RNEERBITR]IAA R ERNRNE LR
MER - N85 A A K%170,000,0007T (48
E72209,877,000% 7T ) + EEAEARE N F A {E A
E+Z@A + FRENF4.90%%5.95% °

REBEE_E——F+_A=+—HILFEERN -
RNEB BT AA R ENRAREE
HEFR - A BEE A AR 150,000,0007T (48
E72180,723,000% 7T ) + EIEAEARI /T =& A
ZENM@EA - FHENT5.25%Z%5.80% °

During the year ended 31st December, 2012, the Group entered into
principal protected structured deposits that were denominated in RMB
with the aggregate principal amount of RMB170,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$209,877,000) with banks with maturity periods ranging from five
months to twelve months and carried interest ranged from 4.90% to
5.95% per annum.

During the year ended 31st December, 2011, the Group entered into
principal protected structured deposits that were denominated in RMB
with the aggregate principal amount of RMB150,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$180,723,000) with banks with maturity periods ranging from three
months to nine months and carried interest ranged from 5.25% to 5.80%
per annum.
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3B HMEBMER®)

RBE-_ZE——F+-_A=+—BILtFE
A - A& 4% A AR 150,000,0007T (HHE
185,185,000 L (=2 ——4F : ) 2 418
EERE RN ER - KT ——F+—4
=t+—HBk=—ZT—F+=-_fA=+—H " Hitt
EREMGERZEBRBIBES N T —=
FNAE—_ZT—=FLAK_T——F=A=
T FNAZEBERER

S ER/BBUET RN XA LBRTTRRXEF
B ([ LB RTTRI RN R ) Bk
o ZREBBUTREY BRRRER LIRS
SHACATIRR o

2 LBRTRIBEFAAN R EE EHRMEZ A S
M EFT e T RE5008F - AEEAEEER
EEM ENF4.20%ZE5.40% 2 FHRIEFE
El#R i Ll SR IETF K -

4. FFEERE

33. OTHER STRUCTURED DEPOSITS (conTINUED)

During the year ended 31st December, 2012, structured deposits
with aggregate principal amount of RMB150,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$185,185,000) (2011: Nil) had matured and been redeemed. The
balance of other structured deposits as at 31st December, 2012 and
31st December, 2011 represented structured deposits with maturity
dates ranging from April 2013 to July 2013 and from March 2012 to
September 2012 respectively.

Interest rates of these structured deposits vary depending on the
movement of the Shanghai Interbank Offered Rate (“SHIBOR"). The
structured deposits are classified as loans and receivables and stated at
amortised cost.

The Group has an option for early redemption of some of these
structured deposits at par plus the interest rate ranged from 4.20% to
5.40% per annum when SHIBOR increases or decreases by 500 basis
points comparing with SHIBOR at initial recognition date.

34. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS

rEE

THE GROUP
2012 2011
FTHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000

RBEBUINETZ Equity securities listed outside

NS Hong Kong 15,379 12,616
FEETARANF S Unlisted equity securities 2,403 2,403
17,782 15,019

REBBAIETZBAZZ TR RABED
B REREZROABEDNREBEIZ A
HMHEANEETE °

FEMBRABSFIRIRE NP BIKL 2 XA FTE
T2 IEEMBRAES - ARBZIFEMREHFIL
RARERRERR 2 BERBRIIE  REE
RRBEZHABERA  #HAKEIEER
RAEBHFLZ AR BETEAEMTE -

Equity securities listed outside Hong Kong are stated at fair value which
is determined based on the quoted market bid price available on the
relevant exchanges.

Unlisted equity securities represent investments in unlisted equity
securities issued by the entities established in the PRC. They are measured
at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting period because the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the directors
of the Group are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured
reliably.
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5. 7 BRATEEERAE

R-ZBENE—A=+=H KEHHEE
=HEIMNT —EEWRE  BEEER
&% 0 ANEE[RE 11,635,000 T 2 8
SRELE—FHRESVEZR B AR
2 E2EEE c FTEMNREELKDEES
RE S - ZEREMENRR - RiksH
R RSEATHK + RETEIRR HTHER
MREHRET—M@MAARNTK - R=ZF
——FXRA=1H ZMBRRANEEK
BBEEFEILSIEAFE -

N—E——F=F=-+=H  "EBEF
=HEINT —EEWmE  BEEER
= A5 E[RE AR 450,000,0007T
(F8552555,556,0008 0) 2SR EHE
—EREEYEIRERIE A FI50% K AR
ERIRFRER - ERZ TN+ AREFRE
HHEMBRARMES  XREEHR=F
——FNANZAEITEK /AT IERER
HHRE BE=FERLERZHTKHE
HeRZTE—Z—F+-A=1+—H X%
E 2 W R4 274,830,000 0 ( — T ——
£ : 256,067,000/87T) * ZiZEBERNE
5 BRREMEMNRIA R BEE
TEH - AR S TR EHRE BR
B+—EARZEK  R=_ZT—=—F+=A
=t+—HB ZMNBARMEERBERL
DERFEFE o

35. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS

HELD FOR SALE

On 23rd January, 2009, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with a third party. Pursuant to the sale and purchase
agreement, the Group agreed to sell its entire interest in a subsidiary,
which is engaged in property development for a cash consideration
of HK$11,635,000. Full consideration has been received and
included in trade, bills and other payables. The transaction has not
been completed at the end of the reporting date and the assets and
liabilities of the subsidiary ceased to be classified as held for sale as at
30th June, 2012 as the transaction is not expected to be completed
within twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

On 23rd March, 2011, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with a third party. Pursuant to the sale and purchase
agreement, the Group agreed to sell its 50% interest and
shareholder’s loan in a subsidiary, which is engaged in property
investment for a cash consideration of RMB450,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$555,556,000). The Group will lose of control of the disposed
subsidiary when the transaction completed and the transaction was
expected to be completed on or before September 2012. The third
party requested to extend the completion date in order to obtain
financing for the payment of the balance of the consideration.
As at 31st December, 2012, the Group received a deposit of
HK$274,830,000 (2011: HK$256,067,000) which has been included
in trade, bills and other payables and in the progress of negotiating
the new agreement. As the transaction is not expected to be
completed within twelve months from the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary ceased to be
classified as held for sale as at 31st December, 2012.
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5. 7 BRBEEERAE®)

RAMEHRENZMENBRARCEEREE
R-B——F+_A=+—"BoERFERE
REE(ATX) - EREXBRDEBRERFTIZ
ERBANEREAEENERE RMERR
(RMisE6) - RZTB——F+-A=+—H "
HEZSEWMBRRZ WA TREEB L KA EE
REEFREE At - ZFKEEXBHE
REFERGEAERERBERER -

WOBRGEZREEEAZTREERBEH
PR

35. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS
HELD FOR SALE (conTINUED)

As at 31st December, 2011, the assets and liabilities attributable to the
two subsidiaries as disclosed in this note had been classified as assets and
liabilities held for sale (see below). The operations were included in the
Group's property investment and property development as appropriate
for segment reporting purposes (see note 6). The proceeds of disposal
were expected to exceed the net carrying amount of the relevant assets
and liabilities at 31st December, 2011. Accordingly, no impairment loss
had been recognised on the classification of these operations as held for
sale.

The major classes of assets and liabilities comprising the disposal group
classified as held for sale are as follows:

REE
THE GROUP

2012 2011

FTHET FAT

HK$'000 HK$'000

(&%)

(Restated)

W - B NERE Property, plant and equipment - 1,653

LB Investment properties - 741,000
BERPYE Inventories of properties under

FE development - 72,436

B 5 N E b U ER R Trade and other receivables - 4,058

RITEF MRS Bank balances and cash - 33,861

DERGEERE Assets classified as held for sale - 853,008

B 5 - ZRIEAESIRK Trade, bills and other payables - 7,213

BERE Pre-sale deposits - 112

HMIRRE Tax liabilities - 133

RIEFIARE Deferred tax liabilities - 209,889
SRAFEEEZ Liabilities associated with assets

EEaE classified as held for sale - 217,347
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36. 25 - ZE R HMENIRR 36. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES
REHKR  BEHENER(BEEE The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills payables by age,
EREMENBERRN)BERER ,ﬁ,qfﬁljZEE presented based on the invoice date, which are included in trade, bills
BT ¢ and other payables, at the end of the reporting period:
REE
THE GROUP
2012 2011
FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
=EAR Within 3 months 139,612 184,409
oz <& A Between 4 and 6 months 68,989 12,833
+ZE=+ @R Between 7 and 12 months 20,243 5,656
BB+ @A Over 12 months 368,864 362,645
597,708 565,543

R-FE——F+—-_H=+—8 ~N&EFEFHE Asat 31st December, 2012, the Group has received HK$763,280,000
B AR WE% 4 763,280,000 (=—F (2011: HK$567,486,000) deposits for disposal of subsidiaries and
——%F : 567,486, ooo;‘%ﬁ)&@Am/H\{ﬂ;r&ﬁ included in other payables. The transactions are not expected to be

BRFNA o TEHAAS AEEREHIZR#E+ — (&  completed within twelve months from the end of the reporting period.
ARTER °
37. R A 37. SHARE CAPITAL
AEERADTE
THE GROUP
AND THE COMPANY
ZERKROEE HE
Number of Nominal
ordinary shares value
AT
HK$'000
HIREE0.20/8 T2 L @I (% Ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each
JAE Authorised:
R_E—F+_A=+—HK At 31st December, 2011 and
—E-——F+-A=+—H 31st December, 2012 2,000,000,000 400,000
BEETRHE - Issued and fully paid:
R_E——F+_A=1+—8xK At 31st December, 2011 and
—E——F+-_A=+—H 31st December, 2012 1,506,769,491 301,354
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38. A& 38. RESERVES

rEEH THE GROUP

B AEWEEN B A T ZEIMERFTES 2 Other reserves comprise the fair value adjustment on properties arising
VIE AR EEFAE - from acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries.

EHREKZ 2B AT e AT REZ M The remittance outside of the PRC of retained earnings of the subsidiaries,
¥ HufEEh BNz 2% MFERZME  associates and joint ventures established in the PRC is subject to approval
HEEAHEE - R FZE AR FHEZERE 240 of the local authorities and the availability of foreign currencies generated

EEETE

and retained by these companies.

KEEFZER#E Revaluation reserves of the Group
LES RE
B4R E EhiAfE
Property Investment
revaluation revaluation @t
reserve reserve Total
FAT FAT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZE—F—H—H At 1st January, 2011 3,614 19,587 23,201
A ERE Decrease in fair value
AREEZ of available-for-sale
D investments - (14,002) (14,002)
EL LR E Surplus on revaluation of
KEMFERZ properties upon transfer to
SHHERR investment properties 5,632 = 5,632
N—TE——F+-_H=+—H At 31st December, 2011 9,246 5,585 14,831
A ERE Decrease in fair value
AREEZ of available-for-sale
> investments - (10,190) (10,190)
AHEERE 2 Impairment loss on available-
BB E R for-sale investments
DEEEZ reclassified to profit or loss = 8,987 8,987
R=ZF-—=%+=H=+—H At 31st December, 2012 9,246 4,382 13,628
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38. @&t (@) 38. RESERVES (CONTINUED)
AN THE COMPANY
R E ¥k EXEE  EREH
e ERRE i i
Share Special Capital Exchange  Zit&Fl
premium capital redemption translation  Retained @t
reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total
THL THL TAL TAL AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
n=F——F—F—H At 1st January, 2011 3,352,781 1,417,669 134,679 912,389 4,131,917 9,949,435
BEMELVERER Exchange difference arising on translation - - - 492255 - 492,255
AEEER Loss for the year - - - - (414567) (414,567
BEAE Dividend recognised as distribution - - = - (150,677)  (150,677)

MZZ—F+=-A=1+—H At31stDecember, 2011
AEFGF Profit for the year

REDE Dividend recognised as distribution

3,352,781 1,417,669 134,679 1,404,644 3,566,673 9,876,446
- - - - 1,159,186 1,159,186
- = - - (60,271) (60,271)

R=ZZ--F+=H=1—H At31st December, 2012

3,352,781 1,417,669 134,679 1,404,644 4,665,588 10,975,361

RZE——F+=-A=+—H8  KAAT DK
T IR 2 & AR5 = F1,616,482,0007 7T
(== ——4% : 743,436,000 7T) °

BBRRIITHERF AR N ZEZMFRER
RNAEIBRDEEREE - stEERRGOEE
MEAZERBARKERNREE EARFERN
—EEMFE=RANAZAEBEREEER - I
HBEIRREERSEERSE - RZE—ZF+=A
=t+—H AREAR_ZZTNE=ANBEERF
EzBaES 35 14,064,0005 T( —T——
F 1 14,064,000 T) W ARFE °

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
as at 31st December, 2012 represent the retained earnings of
HK$1,616,482,000 (2011: HK$743,436,000).

When sanctioning a reduction in nominal value of the Company’s
shares in 2004, the High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region stipulated that the credit arising on the reduction be transferred
to a special capital reserve, and that reserve was not to be regarded as
distributable until all of the liabilities of the Company as at the date of the
order, 9th March, 2004, were settled. At 31st December, 2012, liabilities
of the Company included HK$14,064,000 (2011: HK$14,064,000) in
respect of liabilities in existence at 9th March, 2004.
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39. fif 2K

39. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

REE RAHE
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2012 2011 2012 2011
TFHET FAETT FHET T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RITEK Bank loans 3,277,087 3,307,669 160,000 200,000
H A Other loans 62,885 34,666 - =
3,339,972 3,342,335 160,000 200,000
B Secured 2,919,927 2,833,774 - =
AR Unsecured 420,045 508,561 160,000 200,000
3,339,972 3,342,335 160,000 200,000
IREE %A TERE ©  Carrying amount repayable:
—E R Within one year 709,217 1,175,202 10,000 -
ZR—5F - More than one year, but not
(ERN R E RS exceeding two years 256,623 642,964 - =
ZME - More than two years, but not
(ERY b RS exceeding five years 839,874 392,956 - -
ZAF More than five years 845,469 561,060 - =
2,651,183 2,772,182 10,000 -
BEREREE Carrying amount of bank loans that
ERRRITERZ contain a repayment on demand
BRMHEE : clause:
—FAER Within one year 223,322 84,718 150,000 200,000
ZN—4F - More than one year, but not
(ERN T EREES exceeding two years 380,931 223,322 - -
ENGESE More than two years, but not
BRHBBRAT exceeding five years 84,536 262,113 - =
688,789 570,153 150,000 200,000
3,339,972 3,342,335 160,000 200,000
JB - BRENRENBER  Less: Amounts due within
—FRFHZ one year shown under
S current liabilities (1,398,006) (1,745,355) (160,000) (200,000)
—F1RE|H 58 Amount due after one year 1,941,966 1,596,980 - -
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39. ft EfEF (&)

AEEmHZESERREHNE T ZEHA
(KEFEER)WT :

39. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (conTINUED)

The exposure of the Group’s fixed-rate borrowings and the contractual

maturity dates (or repricing dates) are as follows:

2012 2011
THET THTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
TESMER Fixed-rate borrowings:
—FR Within one year 772,089 936,752
RER—F In more than one year but not
BT EBBRE more than two years 179,835 485,776
MRERRE In more than two years but not
BRNBA=F more than three years 343,153 81,523
RER=F - In more than three years but not
(ERNEEEEES more than four years 266,254 92,246
RZ RIS In more than four years but not
BTNBART more than five years 190,138 169,812
RERTE In more than five years 845,469 505,745
2,596,938 2,271,854

FE @ ANEE2Z B ERTIREBRITRIZEN
BI—EWBED L - #ER0.13%E3.40% (=
T——4F : FEH0.95%FE3.40%):TER 5
WHE— - = RANEAEHEE -

In addition, the Group has variable-rate borrowings which carry interest at

Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate plus a certain percentage that ranging
from 0.13% to 3.40% (2011: ranging from 0.95% to 3.40%). Interest is

repriced every one, three and six months.
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39. ft EEF (&)

AEEBRZERMER(ANEHE T ZHER)E
BT

39. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (conTINUED)

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted
interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings are as follows:

2012 2011

i}

34 f 3

ﬁ

m o W
2

\
I

Gl Cl

AEENBERZREAER T EBTHE -

Effective interest rate:
4.50% to 10.00%
1.35% to 7.87%

4.50% to 10.00%
1.17% to 7.87%

Fixed-rate borrowings
Variable-rate borrowings

The carrying amounts of the Group's interest-bearing borrowings are
denominated in the following currencies:

BT

AR#¥  Hong Kong B

Renminbi dollars Total

FET FET T

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—_F 2012

RITRHMER Bank and other loans 2,586,562 753,410 3,339,972
—ET—%F 2011

SRITREMER Bank and other loans 2,480,199 862,136 3,342,335

ZEEBBUATSH TR TR -_T—=FF
- —FRH - FIEFIETI RN AL E KR
YIS R B TS o

The loans bear interest at market rates and will be matured from 2013 to
2022. The proceeds were used to finance the acquisitions of properties
and operating activities of the Group.
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40. £ BB 40. INTEREST-FREE BORROWINGS
FEE BN
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2012 2011 2012 2011

TERT FTAET TExT THAT
HK$°000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000

KB FEERR AR Advances from non-controlling

EE shareholders 448,430 3,494 - _
FET FE RS A R Amounts due to jointly controlled

I entities 189,224 6,070 - =
FET B N Rl FNIE Amounts due to associates 25,793 25,073 - =
FERTH B A Al A Amounts due to subsidiaries - = 81,401 299,583

663,447 34,637 81,401 299,583
SHEIATEE - Carrying amount repayable:

5'J)\m@)ﬁ1ﬁ On demand or within one year

EERTH—FA shown under current liabilities 663,447 34,637 81,401 299,583
REBE DB EREAERZR NIEBEE : The carrying amounts of the Group's interest-free borrowings are

denominated in the following currencies:

BT

AER¥  Hong Kong et

Renminbi dollars Total

BT FH&T FA&T

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F 2012

R EMER Interest-free borrowings 635,970 27,477 663,447
—E——fF 2011

R EERK Interest-free borrowings 13,476 21,161 34,637

ZeReEER  2ERNEERTER - The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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4. —BHEFZIEZERAS WA

R-BE_FRA-+"H AEBFE—FH
PREME—BEREMFEEN —HAHA=ZTF
HEWZ  EhazArRERNEERAEZ
A ENEE B 197,933,000/ 7T © LA
BYNGBEAEBEARAF2EERERS - m
BTFHERESAINEERAERS - ©
BHE-_ZTRFE T -_A=+—HILFERN "
REEEZBHEPERER - BHARKEAE
ZIRBEMERFIEE RIEE] /67,308,000/%8
T MR T EREFPENEFEXHS KR
Do WL FELRH - RAOBHARERAEZEEE
F4130,625,000% TT 1% 75 48/ — B = 2 IRIE
WA - WHERERZHEFHT-EFI
BEREFABREAEAASKA - RZE—=
F+ZA=1+—H ' BR—FAFTABRZ—
HHP 2 BEER S WA 8,879,000/ L (==
——% : 8,879,000 ) EBIELES « B
K E A ER BRFNA -

2. SEESH

SREFASAARER  HRFEFNEE
ABR-THRE  TAARENEERS
REZABERNZ Z A -

41.DEFERRED RENTAL INCOME FROM A
TENANT

On 26th May, 2002, the Group entered into a tenancy agreement with
a tenant in respect of leasing of an investment property for a period of
20 years. Pursuant to the agreement, the tenant agreed to bear the costs
of fitting out works of the investment property at an agreed amount
of HK$197,933,000 payable on behalf of the Group in lieu of paying
operating lease rental to the Group for a period of 6 years, and paying a
monthly operating lease rental over the remaining lease period. During
the year ended 31st December, 2005, the Group revised the terms of the
lease and determined with the tenant that the costs of fitting out works
of the investment property to be borne by the Group would be revised to
HK$67,308,000 and the annual operating rental payable by the tenant
for the remaining period would be reduced. Taking consideration of
the substance of the arrangements, the reduction of costs of fitting out
works to be borne by the Group of HK$130,625,000 was reclassified as
deferred rental income from a tenant and is released to the profit or loss as
rental income on a straight-line basis over the remaining lease term of 17
years. At 31st December, 2012, deferred rental income from a tenant to
be released within one year of HK$8,879,000 (2011: HK$8,879,000) has
been included in trade, bills and other payables.

42. MEMBERSHIP DEBENTURES

Membership debentures represent golf guarantee fees which are
refundable to members twenty years after joining the golf club or can be
used by members to set off against the cost of purchasing villas at the
golf course.
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43, ERERL IR

43. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised

MEEKREZESHINT and movements thereon during the current and prior years:
RRASKE EHEFHA
ERTE NERZ
F ] AAHER
Adjustments Elimination
toconformto  KARBA of inter-
£RAH the Group's ZRRB company
Business Ef§#1%  accounting  Withholding charges in
combinations  Revaluation policies tax on properties
(Hista) of (Wfizb)  undistributed (Hiitc) HEFE Hth -y
(Note a) properties (Note b) earnings (Note ¢) Tax losses Others Total
TR TAT TR TET TET T TET TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEF THE GROUP
WZZ——F—-A—H" Atlstlanuary, 2011 as
DYIER] previously stated 937,766 585,063 (115,649) 38,618 (26,751) (4,348) 116 1,414,815
SHHREEL Effect on change in Accounting
FE(W2) policies (note 2) - 516,539 - - - - - 516,539
4] As restated 937,766 1,101,602 (115,649) 38618 (26,751) (4,348) 116 1,931,354
AR Exchange adjustments
(&51) (Restated) 2,818 57,027 2,419) - - (215) - 57,211
RERE R (EE) (Credit) charge to profit or loss
(1) for the year (Restated) (1,079) 141,057 28,287 12,05 - - (83) 180,434
PERFE Redlassified as held for sale
(&5) (Restated) 63,204 (209,889) (5,489) - - - - (152,174)
R_E——F At 31st December, 2011
+=A=+—HB(&3) (Restated) 1,002,709 1,089,797 (95,270) 50,870 (26,751) (4,563) 33 2,016,825
EH A% Exchange adjustments = (337) = 346 = = = 9
RERE R (BE) (Credit) charge to profit or loss
i for the year (2,307) 229,377 (42,532) 9,339 - - 103 193,980
G Reclassified from
e held for sale - 209,889 - - - - - 209,889
R_E——F
+=f=t-H At 31st December, 2012 1,000,402 1,528,726 (137,802) 60,555 (26,751) (4,563) 136 2,420,703
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43, BRI (7)
Ktz -

() ERAMBARRUEAEREBEAABEELAR
MESZ R EERIERE o

(b) HEETHBRRSZRANEERERBA R EE
BRAABRNMez BREERRBELREMELEZ
RN ERNIATYE  SFE L IEEN 2B EMR
RO ERYE R T ERE 2 ANBEER
ZEEPTEL 2R ER BB E

(0 EEFEFAMBARNERTYE BERTIVEF
ERREMERA 2 ARIRERAMEEZ R ER

2/

I Z -

ETEEHRBEENBERELRS BRI EK
2TRABRMELEE - U TRELERIBZRE
1ERA TSRS MEREL DT

43. DEFERRED TAXATION (conTINUED)

Notes:

(@) This represents the tax effect of the temporary differences arising from the fair
value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities upon acquisition
of subsidiaries.

(b) This includes the tax effect of the temporary differences arising from the
adjustments to management accounts of certain subsidiaries to conform to
the Group's policies of revenue recognition and capitalisation of property
development cost, which includes tax effect of the temporary difference arising
from PRC Enterprise Income Tax saving on LAT and amortisation of properties for
development and prepaid lease payments on land use rights.

(c) This represents the tax effect of the temporary differences arising from the
elimination of inter-company charges originally capitalised as cost of properties
under development, inventories of completed properties and investment properties
of subsidiaries.

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial
position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset.
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

2012 2011

F&T T

HK$'000 HK$'000

(&%)

(Restated)

REFIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 2,544,158 2,091,752
REFIEEE Deferred tax assets (123,455) (74,927)
2,420,703 2,016,825

RIEBR AREHE T EHER KRN 2
R E) A # T8 E518 602,596,000 7T ( —F — —
£ : 509,395,000/ 7T ) © W IBEEE+R 2
18,252,000/ 7. ( =Z —— 4 : 18,252,000/
L) ERRABELEMIEEE - AREETEAMR
Hom ) - I EEREER T 2 18 E545584,344,000
BIC(ZZ——4F : 491,143,000/8 7T ) FERIELE
MIBEE - AERBHEEERERR=_Z—
S DARTZ B 2 H 2 E518529,552,00078 7T (=
T ——4F : 438,550,000/ T) ° E M EIEA LA
MR EARE o

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses
of HK$602,596,000 (2011: HK$509,395,000) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of HK$18,252,000 (2011: HK$18,252,000) of such losses. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$584,344,000 (2011: HK$491,143,000) due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$529,552,000 (2011: HK$438,550,000) that will gradually expire until
2017. Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
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43, BRI (7)

RBEER  ANEEEMAI TR GRER
/569,811,000 7L(=F——%F :579,569,000
BIT) o BRI KR BE B FE ok Ak A 4K 85
AESAZANRERER - WASEWER L
AMBEREZBERELERIBELE °

U.HEZH
AEEAEHBER

RBEHR  ETREVEZEEB LA -+
FRABEANMERZMENZ L2 BEFE
YREERTERAR RN SEENENE
SR - AMAZHETHEWRA (B MEREBER)
Z—ELLERGFR - BEFZHESTIRETE
o HtiREME 2 HERH —ETHFRAZ
FHOL BETEREABOELE - AEER
ETAREE € XMERRDEEESIT

43. DEFERRED TAXATION (conTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has other deductible
temporary differences of HK$569,811,000 (2011: HK$579,569,000).
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences can be
utilised.

44. LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, certain investment properties are
leased out for a period of 20 years from the date of commencement
of operation of a lessee that occupies the properties, with a renewal
priority at the end of the lease at the open market value. The rentals are
calculated at a certain percentage of the revenue (net of value added tax)
of the lessee, with a minimum annual rental. Other investment properties
were leased out for periods ranging from 1 to 10 years and the majority
of the leases did not have any renewal priorities given to the lessees. The
Group had contracted with tenants for the following future minimum
lease payments:

REHE

THE GROUP
2012 2011
FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
R—F 2R Within one year 257,971 253,596
RE_FEFERF(BIEEERE) In the second to fifth years inclusive 342,805 368,339
RAF 2% After five years 121,223 175,097
721,999 797,032

RAHAR R R A WA B B AR 5 & SRR 6
"3 B & 438,134,000/ T ( — 8B ——4F :
37,215,000 7T) ©

Contingent rents which linked to the lessee’s turnover recognised
inincome for the period amounted to HK$38,134,000 (2011:
HK$37,215,000).
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44 HE LB (=) 44. LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (ConNTINUED)
rEBARAMER The Group as lessee

RIBERR  AEBEFARFESIZATRRERIE At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
TARCEHN S X EZ BB - ENKR  future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

Bz ARKERS - in respect of rented premises and plant and equipment which fall due as
follows:

2012 2011
TET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
R—F2ZA Within one year 2,603 2,713
RE_FEZERF(BIEEERFE) In the second to fifth years inclusive 4,438 4,388
RAF 1% After five years 3,374 4,362
10,415 11,463

MEREERIEANEFBSNE T QY  Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
2 . MERBREZENTES c MK TERF  certain of its office properties and plant and equipment. Leases are

ERR—ZE_1% HelTg- negotiated for a term ranging from 1 to 20 years at fixed rentals.
45. E N K 45. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
REE NN
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2012 2011 2012 2011

TET TAT TExT TAET
HK$°000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000

D4 &G 2 A2y Capital expenditure in respect of

HA contracted commitments for:
—EERN .z i — acquisition of land use

12 rights in the PRC 380,706 380,706 - -
—EEWE - WEK - acquisition of property,

B plant and equipment 384,852 29,081 - -
—BEEAHEE — acquisition of available-for-sale

®E investment 105,593 111,989 - -
—EARAK T HE — capital contribution to

A A jointly controlled entities 502,469 246,914 - =
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46. HEEE

(@

RARRAEER T —FR_FT——
FHZA=+T—RZHERWT :

46. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@) At 31st December, 2012 and 2011, the Group and the Company had

guarantees as follows:

rEE /N
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2012 2011 2012 2011
FHE T FHT THExT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ML TOEEEE Guarantees given to banks in respect of
R E R MRTT mortgage loans granted to property
ER LR purchasers 56,807 165,617 - =
ML TER K Guarantees given to banks in respect of
BB ZR1T banking facilities granted and utilised
EEMRITIELER by
—MBLRR - subsidiaries - - 1975215 2,259,521
— A HHEKRE — available-for-sale investments 13,209 12,440 - -

(b)

M—HEERZEHAAFEMERES
3,001,000 L (=& ——4F : 5,424,000/
TL) BB R RS E 4 & i RE 1 TES
ETHHASE - ZMBERESHRARFEZ
TS TREMERE  RTEHH LT
HEREMEIBE R TERIN - HBA—FH
T B B SR S ETE R RS ©

BN - BRE A A766,754,0008 0 ( ==
——%F : 276,202,000/8 70) 2 BB E
BWBERERRELER - BTG EHKEA
MEXR  AEBEEHERZGEEDE
RIYEB M B B TR EB A RIE AL A
BIE RERZME

ZNER B3R IE i b At b 358 ) 35 f L S A
Exam MR BRRELDH B
B BERARZATY - REBEEEER -
AEBEEHEBEBIELRG  XRSE
LR R ISR AT RE TN A -

(b) A portion of a property for development that is held by a jointly

controlled entity with carrying value of HK$3,001,000 (2011:
HK$5,424,000) is under idle land investigation by the local authority.
The piece of land owned by the jointly controlled entity was entitled
for several land use right certificates. The development of more than
half of the piece of land was either completed or under development,
except for a portion of the land for the remaining development of
the whole project.

Moreover, further development of another property for development
of the Group with carrying value of HK$766,754,000 (2011:
HK$276,202,000) has been overdue. In order to comply with the
requirements of local authorities, the Group has made application to
restructure the ownership of that property for development and new
subsidiaries were established so as to hold and develop that property.

The Group is currently working diligently to prevent the possible
classification as idle land for the above land development, including
negotiating the feasibility of development plans with local authorities.
Based on legal advices, the Group has assessed the issue and
considers that the idle land confiscation may not materialise.
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46. BB

(@)

—ZAABAFI-ENEZER ' [
ARR—HM2EMB ARG ERZF
A EXRBHEEESRRERLDE MER
& #£49142,010,000 8 L (=ZF ——F
142,010,000 7C) REEE - RZT—=4F
TZA=+—H " BRE{E/19,507,000%
JL(—Z——4 : 19,507,000/ 7T) 2 &
IHHEGFEHERRERE - R=ZZZ L
FRZZT)N\F - 51O ERB R MER
i BUEMEBERRAER A ARMET
MEE - BHERAEEBEREUAMEERZ
BERBELZNMECERETE R —=
F+ZA  BRTRERBETI ERY
FERTFLENMENTBERES - R=
T—=F—HFZ=8  PEERBEHH
ERTEE ZMESMEHRENER o B
{8 418,157,000/ 7T B 56 — 3017 i 8 15
H23E - MEREIEA 1,350,000/ LM% —
BB EASRERMEERTFR —E0E
6,296,000/ T A RS ERIZESBIER T
BIRMRE EFRBEEUNEERCH
BRRLERTENMECERER  ZEA
REBERESHERETASE -

—EnHEES—HHNBAR  EX
REEFENRNEEERRERDY
31,272,000 T (=F——4 : 31,272,000
FBIT) © WIRMEDNETH - EAKER
RIBZRER - HHIBAREETHERR
RUTBREZ ZEEREHE RSB
AR BEAZE

46. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (conTINUED)

(0)

A property purchaser who previously purchased a property in
Shenzhen initiated legal proceedings against a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company to rescind the sale contracts and
claim for total sales proceeds paid of HK$142,010,000 (2011:
HK$142,010,000) together with compensation. At 31st December
2012, inventories of completed properties with carrying amount of
HK$19,507,000 (2011: HK$19,507,000) are held in the custody of
the court. In 2007 and 2008, conditional settlement agreements was
reached between the parties whereby the property purchaser agreed
to settle the case on condition that the Group has to arrange the issue
of ownership certificates of the subject properties under the name
of the property purchaser. In December 2012, except for 2 units of
shop, all ownership certificates of the subject properties were issued to
the property purchasers. During January to March 2013, the property
purchaser then agreed to release all properties held in custody of the
court to the Group by two portions. The first portion with carrying
amount of HK$18,157,000 will be released unconditionally while
the second portion with carrying amount of HK$1,350,000 will be
released on the condition that the Group has to place a RMB security
deposit with amount equivalent to approximately HK$6,296,000 to
the property purchaser. The RMB security deposit is agreed to be
released to the Group following the issue of ownership certificate
of the remaining subject property under the name of the property
purchaser.

A contractor has applied for arbitration against a subsidiary claiming
for outstanding construction costs and compensation of totally
HK$31,272,000 (2011: HK$31,272,000) which are being disputed.
The arbitration is still in progress, but based on legal opinions, the
Group has assessed the claim and considers that the final outcome of
the claim will not have material effect on the financial position of the
Group.
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46. EE B )

(e)

R—AANF - ARRRE—FHRNEBA
A ZMBARFAE —MURF B2
- ANREA—EERIZES AR 2 EmE
RABHIEAZNBMHKERE - 282
BMABL ZEnEA ARARRIRLERE
FEA  BMMIBFRMAA AR _EENF=
RAKREERER - AR RFNEBIEZ
HEAEG AR ZRIEBAFLEFRT B
FERBTEEEREGARERRRE
23,506,000/ (==& ——4 : 23,506,000
BIL)EBECARKER  FEREME
B RZZEZTNFLANEEERHSAK
REBFEREEREEHF -RZF—=
FNANERERERINHAS AR E B
5 MEREEHFIRD L - ZRMHFIERTF
BEBr R ER - AEEDHILTEREETT
FEREHBKEEERE  RAUIEBERE
CERREREAEENT B AT EER

=271
=

—ZYEER - m—RHENBRREARE
FEd  ERRERCEINS R D2
WEE(BRELATEERNMTE)KEELD
2,500,000/87C(=ZF——%F : &) o ZRKMHF
ERABERBEF - AEEDEILER
BETTHEREGBRKEEERE  RER
PEER A TREELE C BEX ARHE -

—ZALEBEHE AR A KB AR H
ERE REEEAGEQBMERNEBXL
K BEE#%919,769,0008 L (=T ——F :
) AEBHRAZMBARTEEAE
RABRABEARAELGINAEHBRAM
AT R FHE ARG o LWIEPE
MATEREETH - AEBEHHIBERE
BITTEREBTERERE RANKIE
RIE 2 IR ERE A BRI N I 4%
BAYE-

46. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (conTINUED)

(e)

In 1998, the Company acquired a subsidiary that held a land site in
the PRC with the consideration partially satisfied by disposing of its
interest in a jointly controlled entity to the vendor. A person who
claimed to be the beneficial owner of the vendor has initiated legal
proceeding against the Company, for which proceedings a writ was
received by the Company in March 2008, claiming the transfer of
the interest in the jointly controlled entity and losses in Renminbi of
HK$23,506,000 (2011: HK$23,506,000) equivalent plus interest and
other costs on the grounds that the Company had not effectively
transferred the legal title to the interest in that jointly controlled
entity to the vendor. The court judgment made in July 2009 was held
in favour of the Company and the plaintiff had appealed. The retrial
court judgment made in August 2012 was also held in favour of the
Company and the plaintiff has further appealed. The case is under
trial by the court in the PRC. The Group has assessed the claim and
obtained legal advice, and considers that the final outcome of the
claim will not have material effect on the financial position of the
Group.

A property purchaser initiate legal proceeding against a subsidiary
claiming for total compensation of approximately HK$2,500,000
(2011: Nil) for the delayed handover and the decrease in area of that
property including private garden and basement. The case is under
trial by the court in the PRC. The Group has assessed the claims and
obtained legal advice, and considers that it is too early to assess the
possible liability at this stage.

A joint venture partner has applied arbitration against a subsidiary of
the Company to claim for loss of capital injected into the joint venture
company and compensation of approximately HK$19,769,000 (2011:
Nil). The joint venture partner is arguing that the subsidiary has not
contributed capital into the joint venture and the business license of
the joint venture was then revoked by the local authority in 2005.
The arbitration is still in progress in the PRC. The Group has assessed
the claim and obtained legal advice, and considers that the final
outcome of the claim will not have material effect on the financial
position of the Group.
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46. BB

(hy —RAKBER ATV EHEER AR R A
MEBARIRLARFRA  ERREEF
ENANIERDAHERREEZLLD
8,617,000/ L(—ZZF——% : 8,617,000%
TT) o SERERURH L BIYIEHE R BT o A
SEERE LF - MeBARER AL
BEURY - ERZEREIERES
SR KA T TR A A2 EEAV4,454,00078 7T
—Z——%F 44540008 7T) - AEE
EHNGEREETIHREBREEER
& RR/UBEREZBRRERESAREER
MBSARRN EEATLE -

47. RIKERIET S

—1 /

AEE2ERBRERAKBIGIIE L ZER
G 8 ([ B R IAGT S |) RARIB R £ 5P
R-TZTF+ - AR ZBESAE([8TE
EtE]) - ZFA B EERAEE 2 EED
FIEE  AXRATEZERESMEE - &
SR ETEIKAL AT - RASBERIKGTEIKE
ZEEFEREES BRI ENBER
BEAE AR -_ZETTF T _A—HIM
BMABZEEF2EGESHE -
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3

HRBBEEFEIKE BEERAEBZHEHK
EEESAEBRTFEZ5%  BHIELRA
250008 T (B ——4xA—HB# A
20,0007 T8 00) - MBI/ A 2 EAF BB
25,0008 7T - AREBINEEL 5% L TR AN ©

BEMAKE 25 ARFARERNRGEIRM
B - REENASBEZTHEFE EEZH
RERERFEZ0%E% » MAEERIE
5%E10% 21 - HEREETEN A KR
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46. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (conTINUED)

(h) A former materials supplier of cement business has initiated legal
proceeding against subsidiaries of the Company claiming for
outstanding construction and material supply costs and compensation
of HK$8,617,000 (2011: HK$8,617,000) which are being disputed.
The court judgment was held in favour of the former materials
supplier. The Group had appealed and the Higher Court had ordered
retrial to the case. A total of HK$4,454,000 (2011: HK$4,454,000)
was recognised as trade, bills and other payable in relation to these
claims. The Group has assessed the claims and obtained legal advice,
and considers that the final outcome of the claim will not have
material effect on the financial position of the Group.

47. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme which is
registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance (“ORSO
Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme")
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in December
2000. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees. Employees who were
members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the MPF
Scheme were offered a choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme or
switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees joining the
Group on or after 1st December, 2000 are required to join the MPF
Scheme.

For members of the MPF Scheme, both employees’ and the Group’s
contributions are calculated at 5% of the employee’s monthly relevant
income, with the mandatory cap of HK$25,000 (increasing from
HK$20,000 since 1st June, 2012), and the Group will make 5% top-up
contribution if an employee’s monthly basic salary exceeds HK$25,000.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from the
employees at rates ranging from 0% to 5% and from the Group at rates
ranging from 5% to 10% of the employee’s basic salary, depending
on the length of service with the Group. Where there are employees
who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions,
the contributions payable by the Group are reduced by the amount of
forfeited contributions. During the year ended 31st December, 2011
and 31st December, 2012, there was no forfeited contributions used to
set off contributions. At the end of the reporting period, no forfeited
contributions, which arose upon employees leaving the ORSO Scheme,
are available to reduce the contributions payable in future years.
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47. R RERIFTE(2)

AR AR B2 KB R ) E 8 T i B
FEEBEREERKENTEIZKE - KB
RAZERBREFHFEZETEDL  ERZ
BARENGFE2ES - ARBZH—BERR
LR NIET SR SR E ROHEK -

REBEE-_ZTE——F+_A=+—HLFE
A AEEESZNZ2RBRREBAEERE
30,938,000/8 T ( ==& — —4F : 24,655,000/8
JT) °

48. EBREAN T 2R F R &tk

AEBEREREAL ZEAR S REHRIT

47. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (conTINUED)

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC are
members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the
PRC government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit schemes is to make the specified contributions.

During the year ended 31st December, 2012, the Group made
contributions to the retirement benefits schemes of HK$30,938,000
(2011: HK$24,655,000).

48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES

The Group had material transactions and balances with related parties as
follows:

2012 2011
FTHET FAT
HK$’'000 HK$'000
(@) BEEAFENZ (@) A major shareholder with
FERE significant influence
HEtE(BE)ERAA Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited
([HeEthE ) REWB AR R ("APL") and its subsidiaries
HHSRIERR A 7 R E AR AR and its ultimate holding
RRIZHBAF] company and subsidiaries of
its ultimate holding company
— [N & B U ER Y — Rent, property management
e MEEER and air-conditioning fees
=HAEA charged to the Group 3,546 2,644
— [N & E U ER A — Management fee charged
EEE to the Group 18,150 16,200
— MRS F U E Y — Interest expenses charged
FEEHA to the Group 1,408 429
— [N & E AR AY — Loan arrangement fee
ERLHE charged to the Group 92 =
— R EHRELAY — Loan arrangement fee
ERLZHE earned by the Group 450 —
— [N & E AR AY — Sundry expenses charged
HAiE to the Group 122 329
— H M FETBR SR — Other payable 5,021 4,377
—ERER(HEE ) — Loan payable (Note i) 37,725 23,056
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48. EREAN T 2R Z Rt =)

48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES (CONTINUED)

2012 2011
FEx T
HK$'000 HK$'000
(b) BreiEs —HERR (b) A subsidiary of APL
FIEEABRAT([FBE]) & Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited
HB AR (At i) (“SHK") and its subsidiaries
(Note i)
—MASEYEEREE A — Insurance charged
to the Group 1,494 1,367
—REEBRDNERLHE — Loan arrangement fee
WA income earned
by the Group 1,426 2,000
— &R [E HREAY — Interest income earned
MBUA by the Group 953 2,026
— AR SR E U E Y — Underwriting commission
BiEAe and disbursements
EXH charged to the Group - 4,155
— H e BRK — Other payable 1,777 6,224
—EWER — Loan receivable - 24,691
— W E TS — Loan interest receivable - 29
(© AEEZHEBARZ (¢) Non-controlling shareholders
FEERARARER of the Group's subsidiary
— RS B U ER A — Management fee charged
TR to the Group 55 81
— AR SR B U ER A — Interest expenses charged
FMEER to the Group 891 701
(d) RRRI—(IIFNTESER (d) A partnership of which a non-
HEERH 21k executive director of the
Company is a partner
— [N & B U ER A — Legal and professional fees
FRERBEFEER charged to the Group 2,011 3,605
— HAth FEATRR R — Other payable 326 1,095
(e) FEZEEEAR (e) Key management personnel
el compensation
— ¥ K E MRS HY — Salaries and other short-
& A term benefits 34,598 32,503
—RARBENER — Post-employment costs 736 729
(f) HEEZEHIAF (f) Jointly controlled entities
—AREEBE YL - Dividend received or
FEMEI AR B (HT A i) receivable
by the Group (Note iii) 263,505 351,465
—AEEEENYE — Properties purchased by the
Group 377,787 -
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FRADREB A ME Z SAER AR L2 E
RIATRUIRTS B & B AR %5 0 8 e S AN R R ERL 3
He 2 — I/ R R RT S 2 R B AR A AR 75 1 o
Sh - A EMBRIEA L Z RS URBERARE]
RIBH X PR s EMRAIFT R ENA T RER
BR G o

AEEETIBREEBABK —REAALQA
EXEGZARHELENE R RWEE -
ZABIRAAEERHEERRS - LAANEER
ZEABNEMAIFAEE L TREEEAR
PR IRISWERE R - ZBRC BREARNE
M@EBDAIRECEEET

iy ERENREEERAEB SN H
ZEBFE WA oRELMREZTEREA
8 - A5 ME% 410,228,000 (=& ——
% :11,550,000/87L) * WEBRBE Ll ZFE
BEEAEFHMA -

it -

() BRERAEERER -
—T S AHE-

FEFRAE50% 1 FR

(i) BMAMEARNRRAAEEARTENRANBERKA
HER B AR -

(i) BZEEREHARR=-ZT—=—F+=-A=+—~H
IEARFEE S M 2 % 5263,505,0008 (=T ——
4 : 351,465,000) EF - AEBRAFED WS
206,714,000 7T ( — & — — 4 : 54,067,000 /5
TL)  AEBEHBRRARERRET=Z@AR
W7z o

48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (conTINUED)

Apart from the renewed sharing of administrative services and
management services agreement entered into by the Company with
the ultimate holding company of APL and insurance brokerage services
agreement entered into by the Company with a subsidiary of SHK,
none of the above related party transactions constitutes a discloseable
connected transaction as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange.

Certain key management personnel of the Group received remuneration
from a company, or a wholly-owned subsidiary of such company, which
has significant beneficial interests in the Company. Such company
provided management services to the Group and charged the Group a
fee, which has been included in management fee as disclosed in part (a)
of this note, for services provided by those personnel as well as others
who were not key management personnel of the Group.

The above-mentioned management fee is calculated by reference to the
time devoted by the management personnel on the affairs of the Group
and can be apportioned to the above key management personnel. The
total of such apportioned amounts, which has been included in the key
management personnel compensation above, is HK$10,228,000 (2011:
HK$11,550,000).

Notes:

(i)  The loan payable bears interest at 5.0% per annum, is unsecured and repayable in
July 2013.

(i) APL has significant influence on the Company and SHK is a subsidiary of APL.

(i) Of the HK$263,505,000 (2011: HK$351,465,000) dividend declared by the jointly
controlled entities during the year ended 31st December, 2012, the Group received
HK$206,714,000 (2011: HK$54,067,000) in the current year. The remaining
balance is expected to be received by the Group within twelve months after the
end of the reporting period.
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49. EE K #

RZE—=—F+=-A=+—H"

(a

AEEKBETWBERAFAE Z2RITE
o UE - BERSE  FERYE - %
BRAYME BERIVERE  REWMHE
ER—HNBAR 2 E=EEED A
5,800,000/%8 7t ( =& — — 4 : 8,802,000
7 7T ) 243,395,000 T ( =& — —
4 : 310,004,000 7t ) ~ 1,015,243,000
BL(ZZF — — F : 613,732,000 5
JC) * 369,997,000/ ;L ( =& — —4F :
349,550,000 % 7T ) - 875,417,000
L (=ZF ——4 : 893,855,000 jt )
6,347,609,000 /& 7t ( = & — — &F
5,920,105,0007% 7T, ) % 130,818,000/ 7T
—Z——4 : 115,014,000/8 70 ) 45 R 1T1E
RASBEERRITEE 2HEA -

AEEFKREED 541,643,000 (=
T ——4F : 1,864,000/ 1) & 3,951,000/%5
T(ZE——F : M) ZFEEMERER
ZREREMER I o

AEEFREES R/573,598,000/87L(=
T ——4F : 43,210,0005 7T ) 538,457,000
BT(ZE——F : &) 2iR1TFREEM
EBETERERENEE M -

REBER1TFER942,0008 L (—F——
1 910,000/8 T ) SRIBITIEBME B RIE
BIRBE R 2 I -

AEBZETEE @ BHfE46(c) T - 3]
HERRERA °

RZBE——F+-A=+—8  A&EEEEH
E/4115,341,0008 T 2 W% « B=E M EREE
BN EE AR o

49. PLEDGED ASSETS

At 31st December, 2012,

(a)

Bank deposits, property, plant and equipment, properties
for development, properties under development, inventories
of completed properties, investment properties and interest
in a subsidiary of certain subsidiaries with carrying values of
HK$5,800,000 (2011: HK$8,802,000), HK$243,395,000 (2011:
HK$310,004,000), HK$1,015,243,000 (2011: HK$613,732,000),
HK$369,997,000 (2011: HK$349,550,000), HK$875,417,000 (2011:
HK$893,855,000), HK$6,347,609,000 (2011: HK$5,920,105,000)
and HK$130,818,000 (2011: HK$115,014,000) respectively were
pledged to banks for banking facilities granted to the Group.

Properties for development and bills receivable with carrying value of
HK$1,643,000 (2011: HK$1,864,000) and HK$3,951,000 (2011: Nil)
respectively were pledged against other loans.

Bank deposits and other structured deposits with carrying value of
HK$73,598,000 (2011: HK$43,210,000) and HK$38,457,000 (2011:
Nil) respectively were pledged against the bills payable.

Bank deposits with carrying value of HK$942,000 (2011:
HK$910,000) were pledged against mortgage loans granted to
property purchasers.

Certain assets of the Group are under the custody of courts, as
described in note 46(c).

At 31st December 2011, property, plant and equipment with carrying
value of HK$115,341,000 was pledged against the bills payable.
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50. HEHIBEREIR

NZE—=F=A=-+—H A"&EFHE—
EBIE=ZFITVEARUBESREAR
1,050,000,000 7T (#H & 7 1,296,296,0005%8 7T )
HER—RIM B A F50% MR - 32w E 2 M
BRARBES —HNEMEZERESRKRIE
LB B AF68.4%MHER - ZHEEHR
ZE—RNE=A-+BHZATK °

51. T EMB QAR F1E

BRBEHAN  AETENBARGESE
Aty WEETBREBRELZEE  F15

50. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 21st March, 2013, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party in relation to the
disposal of 50% interest in a subsidiary at the cash consideration of
RMB1,050,000,000 (equivalent to HK$1,296,296,000). The subsidiary
to be disposed of holds 68.4% interest in another subsidiary which is
engaged in property development and golf course operation. The disposal
is expected to be completed on or before 20th March, 2016.

51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of principal subsidiaries which are incorporated and are
operating principally in Hong Kong except where otherwise indicated are

R as follows:
ERAZERREEE
&Rz Al
Proportion of nominal value of
ERTHE issued ordinary share capital/
EERBRA registered capital

R EmER RAR*
Paid up issued HEBAREE

ordinary share held by AEEEN
i) NG capital/Paidup  the Company*/ attributable TEER
Name of subsidiary registered capital subsidiaries to the Group Principal activities
2012 2011 2012 2011
% % % %
All - Shanghai Inc.™ US$15,376,500 83.33 83.33 62.50 8333 REEMK
Investment holding
All - cement Limited"” US$1 100 100 75 100 B
Investment holding
HANKRERARATY HK$6,600,000 75 100 75 100 REEK
Allied Cement Holdings Limited" Investment holding
St REHEEAEER AT US$15,600,000 100 100 100 100 YEZERIEE
Beijing Nanhu Huayuan Apartment Property development
Co., Ltd.® and investment
CBUREBR AR HK$151,031,629 99.97 99.97 99.97 99.97 REEK

CBI Investment Limited

Investment holding
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51. TEMB A RFE @)

51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

BERTEERRAHEE

Proportion of nominal value of

HEMER L

ERITHE issued ordinary share capital/
ZERRE registered capital
EREEMELR RRF*/
Paid up issued MEBAREE
ordinary share held by REBRERN
i) NG capital/Paidup  the Company*/ attributable FTEER
Name of subsidiary registered capital subsidiaries to the Group Principal activities
2012 2011 2012 2011
% % % %
REXLZEMERZEBERAT" RMB50,000,000 100 100 100 100 WEER
Changchun Tian An Real Estate Property development
Development Co., Ltd.”
BINRLHTERERAF" US$2,650,000 100 100 100 100 MEFE
Changzhou Tian An City Development Property development
Co., Ltd.®
BMNRZESEFERARFY US$8,000,000 100 100 100 100 #EBERKRE
Changzhou Tian An Landmark Property development
Co., Ltd.” and investment
FMELZTHEmEREEAR AT US$32,300,000 100 100 100 100 MEEE
Changzhou Tian An Yuan Cheng Property development
Real Estate Development Company
Limited®
ERABARD US$1 100 100 100 100 #ERAE
Cheerchoice Limited?&® Property investment
EREBRRARAF HK$200 100* 100* 100 100 HEER
Chinaland Management Limited Investment holding
BHMEER(LE)BRAR" US$620,000 100 100 100 100  MEEERREEER

Cornell Properties Services (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd."
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51. TEMB A RFE @)

51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

ERTEERRAHEE
HEMERZ LA

Proportion of nominal value of

ERITHE issued ordinary share capital/
EERBRAE registered capital
EHEEMELR ARF*/
Paid up issued MEBARREE
ordinary share held by AEBREN
i) NG capital/Paidup  the Company*/ attributable TEEY
Name of subsidiary registered capital subsidiaries to the Group Principal activities
2012 2011 2012 2011
% % % %
REXRLEHEREERAR" US$6,800,000 60 60 60 60 MEERE
Dalian Tian An Property Development Property development
Co., Ltd.®
REXZEBEXEERAR"Y US$29,000,000 100 100 100 100 YEBRRIEE
Dalian Tian An Tower Co., Ltd.” Property development
and investment
ETESERAF HK$2 100 100 100 100 #ERAE
Grandview Square Limited” Property investment
EIRMARAR" HK$2 100 100 100 100 #ERAE
Grand Kings Limited” Property investment
Grand Rise Investments Limited” US$1 100 100 100 100 ®EER
Investment holding
EIESBRAR" HK$3,756 100 100 100 100 YERE
GRP VI Limited” Property investment
BEmAKERER AR AR HK$50,000,000 100 100 100 100 WERFREKE
Huiyang Danshui Xinyangcheng Property development
Construction Company Limited” and investment
EEZRERARA HK$604,108,798 68.40 68.40 68.40 68.40 AR
Jack Rock Development Limited Investment holding
SERBRAA HK$2 100 100 100 100 RS
Join View Development Limited Money lending services
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51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

51. TEMBARFE @)

BERTEERRAHEE
HEMERZ LAl

Proportion of nominal value of

ERITHE issued ordinary share capital/
TERRA registered capital
EHEEMER NG
Paid up issued MEBAREE
ordinary share held by REBRERN
i) PN capital/Paidup  the Company*/ attributable TEER
Name of subsidiary registered capital subsidiaries to the Group Principal activities
2012 2011 2012 2011
% % % %
Kylie Nominees Limited HK$2 100 100 100 100  HREAIEARS
Provision of nominee
services
HRAMEEFERAR" US$13,500,000 100 100 100 100 YEBRERE
Nanjing Tiandu Industry Co., Ltd.” Property development
and investment
HRREEXRRAR" US$41,000,000 100 100 100 100 YEER
Nanjing Tianning Real Estate Co., Ltd." Property development
ARRLREHHREAERAF"Y RMB71,333,350 100 100 100 100 YEER
Nantong Tian An Cyberpark Property development
Development Company Limited”
REF(EMNSREELBERAT"Y US$3,000,000 100 100 68.40 68.40 KESBRHS
Pacific (Fuzhou) Golf Club Ltd." Golf course operation
RS ERAKRBRAR" US$14,360,000 100 100 75 100 A& REENREMAE
Shandong Allied Wangchao Cement Manufacturing and sales
Limited® of cement and clinker
WER FBKRERAR AR US$1,000,000 100 100 75 100 HENHEED
Shandong Shanghai Allied Cement Manufacturing and sales
Co., Ltd.® of slag
EEsEKEARARY US$24,000,000 60 60 37.50 50  EBENEMAR

Shanghai Allied Cement Co., Ltd."
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51. TEMB A RFB @)

51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

ERTEERRAHEE
HEMER 2L

Proportion of nominal value of

ORITHE issued ordinary share capital/
EERBRAE registered capital
EHREMER RRF*/
Paid up issued HEBARRE
ordinary share held by REBREN
i) NG capital/Paidup  the Company*/ attributable TEER
Name of subsidiary registered capital subsidiaries to the Group Principal activities
2012 2011 2012 2011
% % % %
LROKREBERR AR HK$10,000,000 100 100 75 100 ®REEK
Shanghai Allied Cement Holdings Investment holding
Limited
e EEXERAR" RMB275,933,200 100 100 100 100 WEZBRRIEE
Shanghai Greentree | Company Ltd."” Property development
and investment
LEgEEEERAA" RMB266,315,300 100 100 100 100 YEBREKRE
Shanghai Greentree Il Company Ltd."” Property development
and investment
bEsnEEaRAR" RMB260,000,000 100 100 100 100  MEEE
Shanghai Haibo Real Estate Limited® Property investment
EEsERMELLERRAT" RMB37,000,000 100 100 100 100  HEKE
Shanghai Haiguang Real Estate Holdings Property investment
Limited®
PEERELARAA" RMB140,000,000 100 100 100 100 #ERE
Shanghai Haisen Real Estate Limited” Property investment
HEBREEERAR"Y RMB66,000,000 100 100 100 100 YERE
Shanghai Haiyi Real Estate Limited" Property investment
PERILBRELBERARF US$36,240,000 100 100 100 100 YEZE
Shanghai Sheshan Country Club Property development
Company Limited®
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51. TEME A AFE 2 51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)
BERTEERRAHEE
HEMERZ LAl

Proportion of nominal value of

ERITHE issued ordinary share capital/
ZERRE registered capital
EHREMER RRF*/
Paid up issued R NGIEEZ =]
ordinary share held by REBRERN
i) PN capital/Paidup  the Company*/ attributable TEER
Name of subsidiary registered capital subsidiaries to the Group Principal activities
2012 2011 2012 2011
% % % %
EERZHLREERARY Us$28,000,000 98 98 98 98 WEBRERE
Shanghai Tian An Centre Building Property development
Co., Ltd.® and investment
EERLAEEEER AT RMB50,000,000 99 99 99 99 WEBRIEE
Shanghai Tianan Riverview Co., Ltd."” Property development
and investment
EEXEEERR AT RMB50,000,000 100 80 100 80 WMETRERRIKE
Shanghai Tianyang Real Estate Property development
Co., Ltd.? and investment
R RARAR HK$10 100 100 100 100 REER

Sky Full Enterprises Limited

Strait Investments (Shanghai) Limited™” Us$47,500,000

emRAaRAR"Y US$30,000,000
Sun Hai Tung Co., Ltd.?

FEE(PE)ARARY HK$2,000,000
Sun Hung Kai (China) Limited”

TARERBEER AR HK$2

T.A. Secretarial Services Limited

Investment holding

99.99 99.99 99.99 99.99 HEIEH
Investment holding

100 100 100 100 MRFRLREEKR
Property development
and investment
holding

100* 100* 100 100 #ERAE
Property investment

100 100 100 100 fREMERS
Provision of secretarial
services
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51. TEMB A RFB @)

51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

ERTEERRAEE

Proportion of nominal value of

HEMERZ LA

ERTHE issued ordinary share capital/
EBRRE registered capital
EHREMER NG L
Paid up issued MEARFE
ordinary share held by rEBRERN
MEBARERE capital/Paid up the Company*/ attributable TEEK
Name of subsidiary registered capital subsidiaries to the Group Principal activities
2012 2011 2012 2011
% % % %
Tanya Nominees Limited HK$2 100 100 100 100  REREARS
Provision of nominee
services
AREPHEXARAT HK$2 100* 100* 100 100 REEREREFEER
Tian An China Enterprise Limited Investment holding and
securities dealing
REPEBEFENEREBRAR HK$2 100* 100* 100 100 HREEK
Tian An China Hotel and Property Investment holding
Investments Company Limited
AREBEECRINBRREY HK$350,000,000 100 100 100 100 YERFRNREER
Tian An Investments (Shenzhen) Property development
Co., Ltd.® and investment
holding
A2 (WL ERBEBRATF HK$2 100* 100* 100 100 HEER
Tian An Pearl River Company Limited Investment holding
Az (LB REBRAF US$30,000,000 100" 100" 100 100 YEBERRER
([RZ L& REZER
Tian An (Shanghai) Investments Co., Property development
Ltd. (“TASH")® and investment and
investment holding
T2(FY)BERRER AT HK$150,000,000 100 100 100 100 MEEE
Tian An (Shenzhen) Enterprise Property development
Development Ltd."
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51. T EM B A B #) 51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)
ERAZERREEE
&Rz A
Proportion of nominal value of
ERTHE issued ordinary share capital/
TERRA registered capital

R REmER NG
Paid up issued MEBAREE

ordinary share held by REBRERN
i) PN capital/Paidup  the Company*/ attributable TEER
Name of subsidiary registered capital subsidiaries to the Group Principal activities
2012 2011 2012 2011
% % % %
EHRTEEMEEXERAT" RMB197,174,341 100 100 100 100 WEEE
Tianan Intelligent Park Properties (Wuxi) Property development
Co., Ltd. @
(FifE - MBHRLEBHERRIR
BRAR])
(Formerly known: Tianan Intelligent
Park Sensory Technology (Wuxi)
Co., Ltd.)
ALBE(RE)EHEREARAR" US$40,657,069 100 100 68.40 68.40 WEHERE
Tianan Summit (Fujian) Real Estate Property development
Development Co., Ltd. @
KRRz RHEREERA A" RMB550,000,000 100 100 100 100 WEEBR
Tianjin Tian An Science Parks Property development
Development Limited
EREe g ERAFD US$16,000,000 100 100 100 100 WIEBE
Value Harvest Real Estate (Shanghai) Property development
Co., Ltd."
EHAILEEXBRARF" US$5,000,000 95 95 95 95 YEBRE
Wuxi Redhill Properties Co., Ltd.? Property development
EHREEEERAA" US$18,400,000 100 100 100 100 WEEE
Wuxi Tianxin Properties Co., Ltd."” Property development
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51. T EMBE A RIFE @) 51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)
BRALBRRAEE
&Rzl
Proportion of nominal value of
ERTHE issued ordinary share capital/
BERRE registered capital

EHEEMER KAR*/
Paid up issued MEARFEE

ordinary share held by FEBRERN
MEBARERE capital/Paid up the Company*/ attributable FTEEK
Name of subsidiary registered capital subsidiaries to the Group Principal activities
2012 2011 2012 2011
% % % %

EERRRERARAAY US$12,000,000 88 88 87.97 8797 WEBFRIZEETHR
Zhao Qing Golf and Development ki

Co., Ltd.® Property development

and golf course
operation

RELBERMAEREFTAERE RMB226,348,222 100 100 100 100 WEEE

ARARY Property development
EEERERFEHESRAR" US$50,000,000 100 100 99.99 99.99 YEBE

Property development
EEIRERtEBRREER AR RMB46,000,000 100 100 100 100  #EFRE
Property development
Biat - Notes:
() FEERHLEEE- (i)  Operating principally in the PRC.
(i) 1EAR B S AAS & S - (i) Established and operating principally in the PRC.
(i) FEEBHEREES ML - (iiiy  Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.
(iv) ANATEEEBARAL LH60%E  MA T 240%  (v) The 60% interest in TASH is held directly by the Company and the remaining 40% is
ERA B AREE ° held by a subsidiary.
() HEFSESEMKL - ZMBATKR-_Z——4— (v Incorporated in the Cayman Islands. This subsidiary is listed in Hong Kong as at
A+N\BERSELT  BHZARZE—LFHEH 18th January, 2012 and further details are available in its published accounts.

RERAMHZERAA °

U ERBIHE N EESR AN AER Y 245  The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the

BEBEATEZNBAT - EFE23RA5|HE  opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets of the

HEMHB AR FEE<ERBRITE Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

HEAFREISEEMEAT MBERKZBZ  None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end of
% o the year.
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52, TEHFEH D BFHE

RBEHR - NREBER T HIHKRZEGE R BEAE

52. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had interests in the

o RERAEEIN  BLAFESZEREHAE  following jointly controlled entities which are corporate joint ventures
FR RS AR A M AR A 48 1 established in the PRC except where otherwise indicated:
7N 55 8 P = 1
FTERE I =Nl
HEEZEE AT ERE Principal place Proportion of registered  FEX&
Name of jointly controlled entity of operation capital held by the Group Principal activities
2012 2011
% %
ERRLZREBRAT Bl 40" 40" YEIRE
Beijing Tian An Building Company Limited  Beijing Property investment
BN E BRI R EERER AR £ 50 50" YEBERIRE
Guangzhou Panyu Hi-Tech Ecological Park ~ Panyu Property development
Development Co., Ltd. and investment
Multi Major Investment Corporation® HBBETHEE 50 - EER
British Virgin Islands Investment holding
SunCore Holdings Ltd™ EBHERES 50 - REZR
British Virgin Islands Investment holding
Ultimate Success Investment Corporation®™ B4 RELE 50 - REZR
British Virgin Islands Investment holding
EMNRLHEREFRAERAF BN 50 50" WEBRERIEE
Changzhou Property development
and investment
BEERTEISHER AR X 50 50" ¥EBE
Chonggqing Property development
REMAREIERBERA R R 39® 39" PEBERIZE
Dongguan Property development
and investment
BT R LN AR AT Bl 45% 45" WEBRERRIGE
Foshan Property development
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5. T EHEE4IATFE )

52. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES (conTINUED)

REE FrG R
FTERE I BEXRLH
HEEZEE AT ERE Principal place Proportion of registered FEH%¥
Name of jointly controlled entity of operation capital held by the Group Principal activities
2012 2011
% %
TRRLZEISHE X AR AR Ik 50 50" MEBE
Jiangyin Property development
RINRLYEEBRBR AR sl 50 50 WIEEBRIREER
Shenzhen Property management
and investment
holding
ARYITRE R R BT AR A7 Y 50 50" ¥EBERERIRE
Shenzhen Property development
and investment
RINRLEEREERBRADA sl 50 50 WIEERE
Shenzhen Property development
AL HEW(EE)ER AR sl 50 50 WIEBERMIRER
Shenzhen KA
Property development
and investment and
investment holding
RERREIGEH AR LA K= 50 50" MERE
Tianjin Property development
BEERREIGEHAR LA 55 50 - PEEER
Qingdao Property development
it - Notes:

iy REAEEZANGRNE AEEREMEEE
HZ AR B R S E BRI R -

(i) ZARR—MEAREZEHNAR(RLHER(KE)E
BRAR])ZHBRR]

(i) ZARBBEZENBARREAE LR -

(0]

(i)

(iii)

Based on the contractual agreements between the venturers, the Group and
other venturers have joint control over the financial and operating policies of the
company.

The company is a subsidiary of a jointly controlled entity, X7 553 (22 ) B IR
AR).

The company holds Taiwan listed shares through its wholly-owned subsidiaries.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
FAT FAT FAT FAT TExT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(=71) 27
(Restated) (Restated)
E | RESULTS
WA Revenue 473,329 1,083,528 1,411,986 1,986,707 1,410,086
FRADBIRREN Profit for the year attributable to
23 owners of the Company 711,087 1,067,379 1,326,748 747,019 401,403
BERARE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
WEE Total assets 14,936,023 18,985,033 20,433,978 22,885,881 24,864,834
“EE Total liabilities 4,797,702 7,599,516 7,723,931 8,952,042 10,452,520
FEERR R Non-controlling interests 291,234 501,201 767,658 785,323 953,929
ARAIREEN Equity attributable to owners of
2R the Company 9,847,087 10,884,316 11,942,389 13,148,516 13,458,385
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
(&E51) ==270))
(Restated)  (Restated)
REREE PER SHARE BASIS
BREAREF () Basic earnings per share (HK cents) 46.98 70.84 88.05 49.58 26.64
BRRAEE GBL) Dividend per share (HK cents) 3 7 10 4 4
BREEFEGET) Net assets per share (HK$) 6.5 7.2 7.9 8.7 8.9
Hiat - Note:

—F-TER-F—FEELBCEEY  URRE
ABERAN AT BETRRE
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Amounts for the years 2010 and 2011 have been adjusted to reflect the change in
accounting policies as described in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.
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